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Definitions

2

“AGMH

“Apple Trust”

“Articles of
Association”
“associate(s)”

“Audit Committee”

“Board”

“BVI”

“Cheerful Trust”

“China”, “Mainland
China” or “PRC”

“Commodity
Ingredients”

BEGEGZERAERAA

the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held at Unit 01-05, 27F, Tower B, Sino-Ocean
Office Park, No.10 Jintong Road West, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, PRC on Monday, May 19, 2025
or any adjournment thereof

a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong
with UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited acting as
trustee

the articles of association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

the audit committee of the Board

the board of Directors of the Company

the British Virgin Islands

a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Sean Shi (it
k%) and Ms. Hailey Lee (Z&#) with UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited acting as trustee

the People’s Republic of China and, except where
the context requires, references in this annual
report to the PRC or Mainland China excluding
Hong Kong, China; Macau, China; and Taiwan,
China

food ingredients which do not require processing,
primarily consist of meat, seafood, unwashed
vegetables and condiments

Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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“Companies Act”
or “Cayman
Companies Act”

“Companies
Ordinance”

“Company” or
“Haidilao”

“connected person”

“connected
transaction”

“Contractual
Agreements”

“Controlling
Shareholders”

“Corporate
Governance
Code”

the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands

the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time

Haidilao International Holding Ltd., a company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on July 14, 2015 and,
except where the context otherwise requires, all
of its subsidiaries

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules

a series of contractual agreements reached to
consolidate our interest in Shanghai Kiwa entered
into among, the WFOE, Shanghai Kiwa and its
registered shareholder

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing
Rules and unless the context requires otherwise,
refers to Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping, NP
United Holding Ltd., ZY NP Ltd. and SP NP Ltd.

Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
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Definitions

2

“Corporate
Governance
Committee”

“Deed of Non-
competition”

“Director(s)”

“Financial
Statements”

“First Loan
Agreement”

“Fuhai”

“Global Offering”
“Greater China
region”

“Group”

BEGEGZERAERAA

the corporate governance committee of the Board

the deed of non-competition dated September
6, 2018 and entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders in favor of our Company, details
of which are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition” of the Prospectus

director(s) of the Company

the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 as
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

the loan agreement dated May 29, 2024 was
entered into between Sichuan Xinpai and Xi’an
Yanging, pursuant to which, Sichuan Xinpai, as
the lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanging, as the
borrower, a loan facility in a principal amount
of up to RMB20.0 million during the term of the
agreement

Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology Co., Ltd. (38
B(EE)RERHER A E]), a company owned as
to 60% by Yihai Shanghai and 40% by Shanghai
Xinpai as of the Latest Practicable Date

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Prospectus

the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

the Company and its subsidiaries

Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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“Haidilao Japan”

“Haidilao
Singapore”

“HK$” or “HK
dollars”

“Hong Kong”

“IFRS16”

“instant self-serving
products”

“JAPAN HAI”

“Jarud Qi Haidilao”

HAIDILAO JAPAN CO., LTD., a company
incorporated in Japan on September 3, 2014
with a share capital of JPY50,000,000, and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Super Hi

Hai Di Lao Holdings Pte. Ltd., a private company
limited by shares incorporated in Singapore on
February 28, 2013 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC

International Financial Reporting Standards 16
Leases

instant self-serving food products including the
self-serving instant small hot pot products, self-
serving instant rice products, instant powder and
shacks, and other related products

Japan HAI Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in
Japan on September 15, 2023 with a registered
capital of JPY50,000,000, and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Jarud Qi Haidilao Food Co., Ltd. (FL&4EE
EHRERAERLDT), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on January 28, 2013,
which is wholly owned by Sichuan Haidilao and is
a connected person of our Company
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Definitions

2

“Jinghai
Investment”

“Jingyuan
Investment”

“J PY"

“Kiwa Group”

“Latest Practicable
Date”

“Leda Haisheng”

BEGEGZERAERAA

Jianyang Jinghai Investment Co., Ltd. (&
FEREABR DT, a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on May 11, 2011,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jingyuan
Investment and is a connected person of our
Company

Jianyang Jingyuan Investment Co., Ltd. (5™
FRIREABRLDT), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on March 13, 2009,
which is owned as to 52.00% by Mr. Zhang
Yong, 16.00% by Ms. Shu Ping, 16.00% by Mr.
Sean Shi and 16.00% by Ms. Hailey Lee, as of
the Latest Practicable Date and is a connected
person of our Company

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Shanghai Kiwa and any subsidiary it may establish
from time to time

April 17, 2025, being the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this purpose of ascertaining
the information contained herein

Shanghai Leda Haisheng Enterprise Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. (L/5%E 54 bEEEER
BPRA 7)), a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC on May 23, 2017, which is held as to
62.70% by Beijing Yihan Consulting Management
Co., Ltd. (t REREEZEHABR A F), a company
controlled by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
and each as to 14.85% by Mr. Sean Shi and
Ms. Hailey Lee, respectively as of the Latest
Practicable Date

Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Main Board”

“Model Code”

“Newpai”

“Nomination
Committee”

“one-year LPR”

“Processed
Ingredients”

“Prospectus”

September 26, 2018, the date on which dealings
in our Shares first commence on the Main Board

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange

the stock exchange (excluding the option market)
operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Main Board excludes the GEM of the
Stock Exchange

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules

Newpai Ltd., a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on July
15, 2015 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

the nomination committee of the Board

one-year loan prime rate, i.e. the one-year loan
prime rate announced by the National Interbank
Funding Center (2EIR{TERZEIFEF L) of the
PRC on the 20th day of each month (or the next
Business Day in case of holidays)

food ingredients which require processing, which
primarily consist of meats that require processing
and flavoring, vegetables that require washing
and cutting, seafood paste (such as shrimp paste
and fish balls)

the prospectus issued by the Company on
September 12, 2018
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Definitions

2

“Remuneration
Committee”

“Renminbi” or
“RMB”

“Reporting Period”

“Rose Trust”

“Second Loan

Agreement”

“SFO”

“Shanghai Kiwa”

“Shanghai Xinpai”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

BEGEGZERAERAA

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

the year ended December 31, 2024

a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Shu Ping with
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited acting as trustee

the loan agreement dated November 15, 2024
was entered into between Sichuan Xinpai and
Xi’an Yanqing, pursuant to which, Sichuan Xinpai,
as the lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanging, as
the borrower, a loan facility in a principal amount
of up to RMB2.0 million during the term of the
agreement

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

Shanghai Kiwa Internet Technology Co., Ltd. (k£
BERRAKZRELERAT), a company established
in the PRC on August 20, 2018

Xinpai (Shanghai) Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. (3TkK(LB)EREEBR LA, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on May
12, 2013 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the
Company with nominal value of US$0.000005
each

shareholder(s) of the Company

Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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“Shuhai”

“Shuhai Group”

“Shuyun Dongfang”

“Sichuan Haidilao”

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co.,
Ltd. (BBt R)HEHEESEARET A T), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on
June 3, 2014, which is held as to 42.72% by Leda
Haisheng and 26.17% by Jinghai Investment as
of the Latest Practicable Date and is a connected
person of our Company

the group of companies comprising Shuhai and
its subsidiaries

Beijing Shuyun Dongfang Decoration Project Co.,
Ltd. (It RBERFEHTEBERAF), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on May
10, 2006, which is owned as to 80.00% by Mr.
Zhang Shuoyi (3RFE#X) and 20.00% by his spouse,
Ms. Wang Dongyu (E£3®)8), as of the Latest
Practicable Date and is a connected person of our
Company

Sichuan Haidilao Catering Co., Ltd. (X)I/8K#E
B2 BBR A 8)) and its predecessor (as the case
maybe) previously known as Sichuan Jianyang
Haidilao Catering Co., Ltd. (B0)|| &5 /BEEE
BLBEREEQ ) a limited company incorporated
in the PRC on April 16, 2001, which is owned as
to 50.00% by Jingyuan Investment, 25.50% by
Mr. Zhang Yong, 8.00% by Ms. Shu Ping, 8.00%
by Mr. Sean Shi, 8.00% by Ms. Hailey Lee, 0.20%
by Ms. June Yang Lijuan (#%48), 0.10% by Mr.
Gou Yiqun (Bj#kE%), 0.10% by Mr. Yuan Huagiang
(RE3), 0.06% by Mr. Chen Yong (FRE) and
0.04% by Mr. Yang Bin (88) as of the Latest
Practicable Date, and is a connected person of
our Company
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Definitions

2

“Sichuan Xinpai” or
“WFOE”

“Stock Exchange”

“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries’

“Super Hi”

“Third Loan
Agreement”

MUS$1! or “USDH

“Weihai Group”

BEGEGZERAERAA

Sichuan Xinpai Catering Management Co., Ltd.
(I FRBEREEFRAAE), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on September
28, 2016 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

SUPER HI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (4%
EEFRERBR A F), a company incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on May 6, 2022, which was spun-off from
the Group and separately listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9658)
and NASDAQ (HDL.NASDAQ)

the loan agreement dated December 9, 2024 was
entered into between Sichuan Xinpai and Xi’an
Yanging, pursuant to which, Sichuan Xinpai, as
the lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanging, as the
borrower, a loan facility in a principal amount of
up to RMB500.0 million during the term of the
agreement

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the
United States

Weihai Holding and all of its subsidiaries

Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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“Weihai Holding”

“Xi’an Yanging”

Wei Hai International Holding Ltd., an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on January 15, 2020, which
was held as to approximately 36.95% by ZY WH
LTD., approximately 13.00% by SP WH LTD. and
approximately 19.89% by SYH WH LTD. as of
the Latest Practicable Date, and is a connected
person of the Company

Xi’an Yanging Catering Management Co., Ltd.
(ARBEEREEBRAQT), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on April 25,
2024, a connected subsidiary of our Company.
As of the Latest Practicable Date, Xi’an Yanging
is held as to 63.50%, 10.00%, 14.00%, 5.00%,
5.00%, 2.00% and 0.50% by Sichuan Hi Series
Catering Management Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), HITE UNION
MANAGEMENT LTD. (wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yong), Ms. Yang Hua, Blissing Fortuna Investment
Ltd. (wholly owned by Mr. Gou Yiqun), KIWI
LIMITED (wholly owned by Ms. June Yang Lijuan),
Ms. Song Qing and ZCYW Ltd. (wholly owned by
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng), respectively
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Definitions

2

“Yihai” Yihai International Holding Ltd. (B8R IERER [EE] B BESERERERLD

AH]), an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on October
18, 2013 and is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1579), and is a
connected person of the Company

A —xXK2013F
105 18HEHEHE
HMALNERREE
BRETERAT @ REER
FrER L™ (BRHA
58 1 1579) » BAEXAQ

AIREA L
“Yihai Group” the group of companies comprising Yihai and its BRERESRENBEL
subsidiaries FERNLATIES
“Yihai Retail the soup base for hot pot and Chinese-style ESEBEMHEN NN
Products” compound condiment products supplied by Yihai BRI R RIES AR
Group manufactured using formulae owned by m KABSREE
Yihai Group for display and sales to consumers in BHmMAEEE &K
our hot pot restaurants and on our various online PR KIRIE R & ER
platforms (e.g. the Haidilao App) FFE(MBREE
ARF)CEEER
TREE
“Yihai Shanghai”  Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. (& (L8 &M [EEtEl  ES(LE®RRER
FR/A 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yihai as of AE BHERERER
the Latest Practicable Date A{TEE - BEESH
2 ENBAT
“0%” percentage [% ] 1 Baotk

12 BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Gou Yiqun (appointed with effect from July 1, 2024)

Mr. Li Peng

Ms. Song Qing

Ms. Gao Jie

Ms. June Yang Lijuan (resigned with effect from July 1, 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chua Sin Bin

Mr. Hee Theng Fong

Mr. Qi Daqging

Dr. Ma Weihua

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang

Mr. Zhang Junijie (appointed with effect from August 27, 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qi Daqing (Chairman)
Mr. Hee Theng Fong
Dr. Chua Sin Bin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hee Theng Fong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Yong
Dr. Chua Sin Bin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Hee Theng Fong
Mr. Qi Daqging

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Dr. Ma Weihua (Chairman)

Dr. Chua Sin Bin
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang
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Corporate Information

DNREFR

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Li Peng
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Peng
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISER

Kirkland & Ellis

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

7th Floor, No. 1 Building

No. 398 Yard, Zhongdong Road
Dongxiaokou Town, Changping District
Beijing, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai
Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

E: ir@haidilao.com

WEBSITE

www.haidilao.com

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange: 6862
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Five-Year Performance Review

hFEEMRE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

HRGEEAER S ERER

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (AR®FTT)
(RMB’000)
For the year ended December 31,
HZ12R31HLLEE
2024 2023 20220 2021 2020
20245 20234 2022 20214 20204
Revenue A 42,754,687 41,453,348 34,740,957 41,111,624 28,614,255
Profit (loss) before tax BRELAEA (B518) 6,624,055 5,833,072 1,913,801  (3,976,019) 735,142
Profit (loss) for the year FREF (B8) 4,700,278  4,495399  1,373216  (4,161,206) 309,546
Profit (loss) attributable to N2 R #EHE AELEF
owners of the Company (E518) 4,708,084 4,499,080 1,374,477  (4,163,175) 309,271
Non-IFRS measure?: FEE B T 2 2R
irEe
Core operating profit (loss)® /UM R (F518) @ 6,229,880 5,246,494 1,822,604  (3,486,834) 1,183,286
Notes: Fiz

(1) Include both continuing operations and discontinued operations. The
discontinued operations in 2022 only include the results of Super Hi from
January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022.

(2) Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Core Operating
Profit (Non-IFRS Measure)” in this annual report.

(8) Core operating profit (loss) represents the profit (loss) for the year
excluding the following: interest income, additional tax deduction, listing
expenses, share of results of associates, share of result of a joint venture,
gain on disposal of certain restaurant business to franchisees, gain arising
from redemption of long term bonds, net foreign exchange (loss) gain, net
gain (loss) arising on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
finance costs and income tax expense.
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Five-Year Performance Review

FFEEERE
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AR SR &
POSITION (AR%FIT)
(RMB’000)
As of December 31,
R12831H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20244 2023% 2022 20215 20204
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,757,099 9,769,959 10,932,565 16,615,985 20,933,888
Current assets RBEE 13,024,158 14,907,039 10,506,590 11,405,502 6,593,256
Total Assets BEME 22,781,257 24,676,998 21,439,155 28,021,487 27,527,144
Equity attributable to RAREE AELER
owners of the Company 10,433,794 11,526,630 7,443,187 7,914,560 10,233,951
Total Equity B 10,417,496 11,516,940 7,456,092 7,928,625 10,237,258
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 5,259,940 5918246 6,750,973 10,206,993 7,421,943
Current liabilities REBAE 7,103,821 7241812 7,232,090 9,885,869 9,867,943
Total Liabilities BEBEE 12,363,761 13,160,058 13,983,063 20,092,862 17,289,886
Total Equity and Liabilities ~ # % & & E4858 22,781,257 24,676,998 21,439,155 28,021,487 27,527,144
EERE
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

MR. ZHANG YONG

Chairman

| hereby present our annual report for the year ended December 31,
2024 to the Shareholders.

OVERVIEW

In 2024, China’s economy overall maintained a stable yet progressive
momentum. Within the catering segment, local governments rolled
out a series of policies aimed at stimulating consumption, proactively
boosting food and beverage consumption. Catering industry peers also
actively innovated and diversified their types of catering operation, with
categories such as tea beverages and stir-fried dishes developing and
growing rapidly, providing consumers with richer and more diversified
choices and facilitating the overall revival and high-quality development
of the catering industry. Haidilao steadfastly adhered to its management
philosophy of “customer satisfaction and employee efforts” and its
core value of “changing your future with your own hands”. As the
competition in the catering market becomes increasingly fierce,
while steadily advancing our core hot pot business, we initiated the
“Pomegranate plan” and vigorously expanded our secondary brands.
We are on the lookout for new growth drivers and strive to overcome
challenges and risks to ensure long-term sustainable development.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to RMB42,754.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 3.1%. The core operating profit in 2024 reached RMB6,229.9 million,
up by 18.7% year-on-year. The profit for the year in 2024 witnessed
a 4.6% uptick compared to the previous year, reaching RMB4,700.3
million. In 2024, the average table turnover rate for our Haidilao
restaurants was 4.1 times per day, compared to 3.8 times per day in
2023. Throughout the year, a total of 415.0 million customer visits were
tallied, reflecting a 4.5% increase from the previous year.

We kept a relatively stable pace of expansion while continuing to adjust
and optimize our restaurants. In 2024, the Haidilao brand launched 62
new restaurants, with 59 being self-operated and 3 being franchised
and resumed the operations of 2 Haidilao restaurants that were
previously suspended. Meanwhile, 70 Haidilao restaurants were either
closed or relocated during the year. By the end of the year, the Haidilao
brand had operated a total of 1,368 restaurants. Among them, 1,332
self-operated restaurants were located in mainland China and 23 in
the Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions, and 13 were franchised
restaurants.

BREERERBRLA
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The Group officially launched the “Pomegranate plan”, aiming to
encourage the incubation and development of more new catering
brands and promote innovation in catering services. As of the end of
2024, the Group had established a total of 11 catering brands through
internal entrepreneurship, such as “YEAH QING BBQ (}&:5 & R4
¥)”, “BarBecue (XIEE)” and “XIAOHAI HUOGUO (“)\§§ X #8)”, which
collectively operated 74 restaurants. In 2024, revenue from other
restaurants amounted to RMB483.3 million, representing a year-on-
year growth of 39.6%. We will continue to pay close attention to the
market’s practical testing on the operation, growth and risks of the new
brands.

The Board is dedicated to enhancing returns for shareholders.
Considering the Group’s performance in 2024, the Board will
recommend the distribution of a final cash dividend of HK$0.507
(equivalent to RMBO0.468) per share (amounting to a total dividend of
approximately RMB2,534.2 million) for the year ended December 31,
2024 at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Reflecting on 2024, the Group encountered challenges such as shifts in
the external economic landscape and rapid iteration within the industry.
Our efforts were primarily concentrated on the following areas:

I. Creating “Different Haidilao” Powered by Differentiated
Operation. The Group has set a fundamental limit on restaurant
management. As long as it never exceeds the limit, a frontline
restaurant is more entitled and fully encouraged to act on
differentiated operation in a bid to satisfy customers’ individual
demands, thereby creating “Different Haidilao”. In 2024, each
Haidilao restaurant continued to make flexible adjustments
to its products, ambiance and pricing based on the specific
dynamics of their local business districts and daily customer
flow, aiming to fulfill diverse customer needs and attract potential
patrons. We customized our menu offerings and seasoning table
options according to regional dietary preferences and ingredient
availability. To cater to the extended needs of specific customers,
we gradually introduced different forms of specialty themed
restaurants in 2024, including private dining rooms, family-
oriented venues and late-night snack shops, as well as enterprise
restaurants in cooperation with large corporations.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

In 2025, we will continue to deepen our understanding of
customer preferences, ensuring that every restaurant aligns
more closely with customer demands. Our product offerings
will highlight a blend of “popular” and “personalized” choices,
with a focus on a “fresh-cut” series for meat dishes, while
other categories will emphasize “seasonal” items. In terms of
ambiance, our central theme will remain “happiness”, leading
to the creation of a variety of themed restaurants. Regarding
pricing, we will adopt a strategy of “absolute quality at a relatively
low price”, enabling our restaurants to implement differentiated
pricing strategies tailored to their individual circumstances. We
will maintain vigilant monitoring of market changes, assess the
risks involved, gain insights into consumer needs, and strive for
dual growth in attracting new customers as well as promoting
repurchase actions.

Focusing on Enhancing Frontline Operation and Management.
We have optimized the evaluation system for regional and
restaurant managers, empowering regional managers with the
authority to make product decisions. The restaurant management
team monitors performance through tools like the “Three Tables
(=5&3R)” and “Four-color Cards (F9f&F)” and take timely actions
to ensure steady improvement in our two core metrics “customer
satisfaction” and “employee dedication”. In 2024, we implemented
the “twin-restaurant manager” model and the “multi-restaurant
manager” model to encourage exceptional restaurant managers
and employees to increase their earnings through hard work
and strengthen their job skills, thereby truly embodying our core
value of “changing your future with your own hands”. To further
strengthen the relationship between customers and Haidilao and
to energize restaurant employees, we introduced a dedicated
customer manager program at the end of 2024, which will enable
our employees to interact more closely with customers, thereby
improving customer satisfaction.
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Iv.

Advancing the “Pomegranate Plan” to Achieve Diversified
Development. As of the end of 2024, the “Pomegranate plan”
has incubated and developed 11 sub-brands that cover different
consumption scenarios, including full-service dining, casual
dining, and fast food. Meanwhile, to further unleash the potential
of internal entrepreneurship, we started with the entrepreneurship
mechanism and encouraged more ace employees to participate
in the “Pomegranate plan” by means including optimizing the
incentives and submission process. By integrating with the “twin-
restaurant manager” and the “multi-restaurant manager” models,
we achieved the sharing of outstanding talents. Meanwhile, we
are also fully aware that the new brand will inevitably face fierce
competition and market testing, and we will pay close attention to
consumer acceptance and potential risks.

Bolstering Customer Experience through Brand Upgrade.
In 2024, Haidilao carried out a brand upgrade based on its
brand mission of “Igniting joy with delicious food”. We launched
a new brand slogan, “Haidilao, Happy Now”, a global brand
ambassador named Xiaolaolao, and a brand song. Throughout
the year, Haidilao collaborated with multiple well-known IPs to
boost the dining experience of customers with added fun. As
of the end of 2024, the number of members of Haidilao had
exceeded 188.7 million. The number of active members this year
exceeded 52 million, representing an increase of 8.8% compared
to the previous year. On the other hand, we have introduced and
optimized exclusive privileges for our “Black Sea” members,
including access to express queue channels, distinctive badges,
and invitation-only off-line events, delivering even greater value
and exceptional experiences for our “Black Sea” members.

—
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

VI.

Steadily Developing the Franchise Business for Contributing
an Impetus to the Group’s Development. In 2024, the Company
officially launched the franchise business. As of the end of
2024, the Company had successfully completed the review
and establishment of 13 franchised restaurants, preliminarily
verifying the feasibility of the franchise model for large-scale
expansion. Since launching the franchise model, we have
observed robust demand in the lower-tier markets. Over 70% of
franchise applications originated from third-tier cities and cities
in lower tiers, and quite a few were from county-level cities.
To ensure the quality of franchisees and business operations
of franchised restaurants, the Company established a three-
round screening mechanism encompassing “qualification review,
operational capacity assessment, and long-term development
compatibility”to guarantee the service quality of restaurants and
maintain the brand’s style right from the source. Moving forward,
we will remain committed to our principle of “quality first and
steady progress.” By optimizing regional resource coordination
and enhancing training support systems, we aim to methodically
expand our high-quality franchise network.

Boosting the Efficiency of Management and Operation
through Digital Operation. We have been exploring the use
of digital means to improve management and operational
efficiency. In terms of enhancing customer experience, by
analyzing consumption data, we identified over 3.4 million
pieces of feedback data throughout the year. The follow-up rate
by restaurants was over 88% and our customer stickiness has
improved with lower customer churn rate. Leveraging the analysis
of Al-powered post-meal evaluation system, we implemented
targeted improvements across key areas such as product quality,
service, hygiene, and dining environment. We are also actively
exploring the application of new technologies to empower
restaurant operations. In the future, our technology department
will closely track the development and application of emerging
technologies. Empowered by Al, Haidilao will upgrade all working
systems in place on all fronts.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY
Going forward, our development initiatives mainly include:

° continuing to enhance the dining experience at Haidilao, including
the continuous refinement of our service capabilities, offering
further value-added services for customers, and empowering
management with digital operations;

° continuing to explore a diversified business strategy, implementing
the “Pomegranate plan”, and keeping exploring franchise models;
and

° strategically pursuing acquisitions of high-quality assets to further
diversify our catering business patterns and customer base.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our heartfelt gratitude to
all Haidilao employees for their dedication and hard work throughout
the year. We are also deeply thankful to our customers, Shareholders
and business partners for their unwavering trust and support, which
have been instrumental in our success.

Moving forward, we remain committed to delivering exceptional
customer satisfaction through attentive service and premium-quality
products, ensuring steady and sustainable growth for the years to
come.

Chairman’s Statement

ERWE

REARR  RMMNBREETECHE

s FERMBELENERR BET
ETRERMVRERED - BETE
—SRHABERYE  REFLEE
e EEE

s HWERRZTCHNEERE Bt
[AAMETE ] ARHEHMARRE
HWRRE &

s KEMWSRWBEZEELEE E—
TEERMNEREBEMER
B o

B

RAERRESSHZREREA—F
ROFHENEFHHARORH - &
MTAHERBHER RRREBBFE
FEEREIABNEEESTE  BHR
MORDEFER -

REARNE - HME - MR EEBERR
BNBEERRAZTFREE  BEXR
RPN TELR

FERSE
2024 Annual Report

23



24

Management Discussion And Analysis

EEEWED N

REVENUE

The revenue of the Group increased by 3.1% from RMB41,453.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023 to RMB42,754.7 million in 2024.

REVENUE BY SEGMENT

We generate substantially all of our revenue from (i) restaurant
operation, (ii) delivery business, (iii) sales of condiment products and
food ingredients, and (iv) franchise business. The following table sets
forth the components of our revenue for the period indicated:

LN

REBRAREZ2023F12A31 A LEE
ENAREEA41,453.3 BB TIEMIARE
2024 FE M ANREEL2,754.THETT ©

HRIR 5 &R & 53 RYUIN

BB A2 WARE ()EREE | (i)
HINEET  (iARKMREMEE 5 R(v)
MERET - TREFIWARFIRBEN
AREDD

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2024 2023
20244 20234

(RMB’000 except percentages)
(ANE¥FT BN

Haidilao restaurant operation BEEEELE 40,397,616 94.5% 39,266,603 94.7%
Delivery business HNEEK 1,253,869 2.9% 1,041,475 2.5%
Sales of condiment products ARBRRMEE

and food ingredients 575,140 1.4% 788,651 1.9%
Other restaurant operation HtnBELe 483,335 1.1% 346,176 0.9%
Franchise business IEZES S 16,706 0.0% = =
Others Hith 28,021 0.1% 10,443 0.0%
Total revenue LT ON 42,754,687 100.0% 41,453,348 100.0%
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Management Discussion And Analysis

The revenue of our Group is mainly generated from Haidilao restaurant
operation, which accounted for 94.5% of our total revenue in 2024.
The revenue of Haidilao restaurant operation increased by 2.9% from
RMB39,266.6 million in 2023 to RMB40,397.6 million in 2024, mainly
due to the increase in the restaurants’ table turnover rate, which
reached 4.1 times per day in 2024. The average spending per guest of
our Haidilao restaurants decreased from RMB99.1 in 2023 to RMB97.5
in 2024, primarily due to the change in dishes consumption structure.

Revenue from delivery business increased by 20.4% from RMB1,041.5
million in 2023 to RMB1,253.9 million in 2024, mainly attributed to
the revenue generated from the single-serving high-quality fast food
business, which commenced in the second half of 2023.

Revenue from other restaurant operation increased by 39.6% from
RMB346.2 million in 2023 to RMB483.3 million in 2024, primarily
attributed to other innovative catering brands launched under the
“Pomegranate plan”, and the contribution from various catering
scenarios, for instance, camping hot pot restaurants, campus hot pot
restaurants and corporate hot pot restaurants.
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The following table sets forth certain key performance indicators of our
self-operated Haidilao restaurants for the period indicated.

TREJINFARBEEEBEEEEN
ETERRRRER -

For the year ended
December 31,
BE=12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Average spending per guest" (RMB) BEEAHHEY(AR¥ER)
Tier 1 cities® — &R H@ 104.0 105.7
Tier 2 cities® —JHHe 96.9 98.3
Tier 3 cities and below® =HERUTHR® 91.4 92.8
Mainland China restaurants BT A EERE 95.7 97.3
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BREHE 199.7 202.8
Overall E-3: 97.5 99.1
Table turnover rate® (times/day) BEEOCR X)
Tier 1 cities® — &R He 4.0 3.8
Tier 2 cities® TR 4.1 3.9
Tier 3 cities and below® =HERUTHR® 4.0 3.6
Mainland China restaurants o A 4.0 3.8
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BREHE 4.3 4.2
Overall E3: 4.1 3.8
Newly-opened restaurants® FBEREC 4.4 3.7
Other restaurants HibBRE 4.1 3.8
Overall g 4.1 3.8
Notes: B EE

(1)  Calculated by dividing gross revenue generated from restaurant operation
for the period by total guests served for the period.

(2)  Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.
(3) All municipalities and provincial capitals excluding tier 1 cities, plus
Qingdao, Xiamen, Ningbo, Dalian, Zhuhai, Suzhou and Wuxi.

(4)  All the cities and regions excluding tier 1 cities and tier 2 cities.

(5) Calculated by dividing the total tables served for the period by the
product of total operation days for the period and average table count
during the period.

(6) We define our newly-opened restaurants as those that commenced
operations during the Reporting Period.

BREERERBRLA
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The following table sets forth details of our same store sales of THRHIINRFARHBEEE EELEER
self-operated Haidilao restaurants for the period indicated. JESHEE -

For the year ended
December 31,
BE=12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 % 2023
Number of same stores!" EEEEM
Tier 1 cities — R 203
Tier 2 cities —#&RE™ 478
Tier 3 cities and below =BRRUTHET 520
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BRAHE 21
Overall 3 1,222
Same store sales® (in thousands of RMB) BFESHEHE? (AR¥TT)
Tier 1 cities — T 6,628,970 6,511,516
Tier 2 cities T 14,508,547 14,283,862
Tier 3 cities and below ZHRR AT 15,182,082 14,246,340
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BRAHE 1,309,742 1,286,259
Overall e 37,629,341 36,327,977
Average same store sales per day® EEFH HHEES
(in thousands of RMB) (NE®TT)
Tier 1 cities —#RIE ™ 89.4 88.1
Tier 2 cities TR 83.2 82.2
Tier 3 cities and below =BRRUTHET 80.0 75.4
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BREHE 171.6 168.7
Overall 30 84.4 81.8
Average same store table turnover rate® B 5 FEEERe
(times/day) &R/ X)
Tier 1 cities — R 44 3.9
Tier 2 cities TR 41 4.0
Tier 3 cities and below =ZHERUTHET 4.0 3.7
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions BREHE 4.3 4.2
Overall E-30 4.1 3.8
Notes: F=E
(1) Includes restaurants that had commenced operations prior to the (1) BELERHEERACHRBEERER
beginning of the periods under comparison and opened for more than 2023 F K 2024 FEXEBEBI00KXRHNE
300 days in both 2023 and 2024. BE o
(2)  The gross revenue from restaurant operation at our same stores for the @ RETRHERMREEEEERNRAZ
period indicated. o
FEHRSE
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(8)  Calculated by dividing the gross revenue from restaurant operation at our
same stores for the period by the total operation days at our same stores
for the period.

(4)  Calculated by dividing the total tables served at our same stores for the
period by the total operation days for the period and average table count
during the period.

REVENUE FROM HAIDILAO RESTAURANT OPERATION BY
GEOGRAPHIC REGION

Our business was mainly conducted in mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions. The following table sets forth our
breakdown of gross revenue from Haidilao restaurant operation by
location for the periods indicated:

@) EBNEE RIS R R KRR
B SR M -

@) BHEREEREESHRUBREER
RERHMAFHERBEE -

R I8 B B 7 R B IR B RS
A

BMNEBTERNDEARE  BREM
EFE o TRHSINFRHAEREIE
EEHE D EESERAERI AR

As of and for the year ended December 31,

BE12R3 HREZZHLEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%

Gross Gross

Number of Revenue/ Number of Revenue/

restaurants Revenue restaurants Revenue

EEHE BBA /A ZEYE HAPA /WA

(RMB'000) (RMB000)
(AR¥TTT) (AR¥TR)
Mainland China PR K

Tier 1 cities — &M 220 7,156,988 17.7% 232 7,195,389 18.3%
Tier 2 cities —&Em 531 15,700,301 38.7% 538 15,610,835 39.7%
Tier 3 cities and below ZBRUTHS 581 16,177,821 40.0% 581 15,160,451 38.5%
Subtotal NGt 1,332 39,035,110 96.4% 1,351 37,966,675 96.5%
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions ~ BRAHE 2 1,446,043 3.6% 23 1,369,938 3.5%
Total restaurants/gross revenue EEEY /BB 1,355 40,481,153 100% 1,374 39,336,613 100%

Net of: Customer loyalty program k- g8BATE (83,537) (70,010)

Total restaurants/revenue EEEY /BN 1,355 40,397,616 1,374 39,266,603

28 BREERERBRLA
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SYSTEM SALES GROWTH FOR HAIDILAO RESTAURANTS

In 2024, Haidilao restaurants achieved a year-on-year system sales
growth of 3.0%.

The system sales for Haidilao restaurants represent the total sales
generated by all Haidilao-branded restaurants, including both
self-operated and franchised restaurants. Although sales from
franchised restaurants are not directly recognized as part of the
Company’s revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, they contribute to our revenues through
ongoing royalty fees. We consider system sales growth a valuable
metric for investors, as it serves as a key driver of our revenue and
profit, while reflecting the overall performance of our business.

RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Our raw materials and consumables used decreased by 4.3% from
RMB16,946.2 million in 2023 to RMB16,211.1 million in 2024. As a
percentage of revenue, our raw materials and consumables used
decreased from 40.9% in 2023 to 37.9% in 2024, mainly because of
the decrease in the purchase price of raw materials and consumables.

STAFF COSTS

Our staff costs increased by 8.2% from RMB13,039.8 million in 2023
to RMB14,113.3 million in 2024. As a percentage of revenue, our
staff costs increased from 31.5% in 2023 to 33.0% in 2024, mainly
attributable to the Company’s efforts to raise employees’ overall salary
and benefit levels, as well as the addition of certain positions to better
incentivise staff and enhance the customer experience.

RENTALS AND RELATED EXPENSES

Our rentals and related expenses increased by 17.6% from RMB361.9
million in 2023 to RMB425.5 million in 2024, primarily driven by the
increase in short-term leases and other lease-related expenses, as well
as higher variable lease payments resulting from revenue growth. As
a percentage of revenue, our rentals and related expenses remained
stable at 0.9% and 1.0% in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

EEETWED N
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UTILITIES EXPENSES

Our utilities expenses increased by 6.6% from RMB1,374.3 million in
2023 to RMB1,465.7 million in 2024, broadly in line with the overall
revenue growth trend. As a percentage of revenue, utilities expenses
remained stable at 3.3% and 3.4% in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

TRAVELLING AND COMMUNICATION EXPENSES

Our travelling and communication expenses increased by 26.0% from
RMB204.3 million in 2023 to RMB257.4 million in 2024, primarily due
to a higher frequency of employee travel for inspections and business
communication. As a percentage of revenue, our travelling and
communication expenses remained relatively stable at 0.5% in 2023
and 0.6% in 2024, respectively.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Our depreciation and amortization decreased by 13.1% from
RMB2,945.4 million in 2023 to RMB2,558.5 million in 2024, primarily
due to the full depreciation and amortization of property, plant and
equipment at certain restaurants in prior periods. As a percentage of
revenue, depreciation and amortization decreased from 7.1% in 2023
to 6.0% in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in depreciation and
amortization.

OTHER EXPENSES

Our other expenses increased by 15.7% from RMB1,611.0 million in
2023 to RMB1,864.1 million in 2024. As a percentage of revenue, our
other expenses increased from 3.9% in 2023 to 4.4% in 2024, primarily
due to (i) an increase of RMB219.6 million in business support and
development expenses, driven by more diverse marketing activities
in 2024 and higher promotion and support fees associated with our
delivery business; and (ii) an increase of RMB69.0 million in daily
maintenance expenses, bank charges, and storage expenses in line
with revenue growth.

BREERERBRLA
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SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

Our share of results in relation to (i) our associate Fuhai, in which we
held a 40% equity interest; (ii) our joint venture Ying Hai Holdings
Pte. Ltd., in which we held a 51% equity interest and which had
been deregistered as of the date of this annual report; and (iii) other
associates invested by Beijing Youdingyou Catering Co., Ltd. (1t
BEREEHREEERAT), increased from RMB45.9 million in 2023 to
RMB51.8 million in 2024.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Regarding other gains and losses, we recorded gains amounting to
RMB352.2 million in 2024, compared to RMB227.5 million in 2023.
This increase was primarily attributable to: (i) an increase of RMB141.9
million in net gains arising from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and (ii) an increase of RMB99.2 million in gains from the
disposal of certain restaurant business to franchisees; partially offset by
(iii) the net foreign exchange loss with the amount of RMB63.7 million in
2024, mainly resulting from currency exchange activities, compared to
a net foreign exchange gain of RMB84.6 million in 2023.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs decreased by 21.8% from RMB351.4 million in 2023
to RMB274.7 million in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in interests
on bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense increased by 43.8% from RMB1,337.7 million
in 2023 to RMB1,923.8 million in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in
utilization of tax losses and the increase in profit before tax in 2024.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
As a result of the foregoing, we recorded profit of RMB4,700.3 million

in 2024, as compared to the profit of RMB4,495.4 million recorded in
2023.
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CORE OPERATING PROFIT (NON-IFRS MEASURE)

To supplement our consolidated financial statements that are presented
in accordance with IFRS, we also use core operating profit that is not
required by or presented in accordance with IFRS. The core operating
profit (non-IFRS measure) represents the profit for the year excluding
the following: interest income, additional tax deduction, share of results
of associates, share of result of a joint venture, gain on disposal of
certain restaurant business to franchisees, net foreign exchange (loss)
gain, net gain arising on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, gain arising from redemption of long term bonds, finance costs
and income tax expense.

The following table sets out a reconciliation of the core operating profit
(non-IFRS measure) for the year indicated to the profit for the year (the
most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented
under IFRS):

2oL B & FIE (IF B BB 75 3 2 R

g)

AERBEMARBERMEREER 25
MEREMBHRE - BT RALIFRE
Bt 75 R o 2 B AR TE 2 3R AR 15 B PR B S 4R
FENZINROEEFE - L EE
ME CEEBRMBHREENTE) BTE
BUTHEBEWNFRER  FMESWA - &
IEMEHOER - BEBE QR REE - B
BELEXE BEREeTEEEBKSGM
BEHRE  BERX (BR) WaEFE - &
MREFABEENEREEEEN RS
FE - BORHEFELENWD - MK
AR SRS o

TREIFRFRNROEERE GERE
PHJ/EERGFE) BFREN (REE
MU BRELEAFERZIINREET
EeEAREET &) MYEHER

For the year
ended December 31,
BZE12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
2024 & 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Profit for the year FWEH 4,700,278 4,495,399
Net of the following gains/(losses): HIBRAI T Wozs ~ (E518) -
Interest income FIEUA 382,926 326,889
Additional tax deduction BT AN HIRR - 427,470
Share of results of associates FEihBE N R EE 56,897 53,372
Share of result of a joint venture EheELEER (5,122) (7,509)
Gain on disposal of certain restaurant business EEE T EEXBLMNBEHN

to franchisees U= 99,158 =
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain B X (5518) W F5E (63,708) 84,633
Net gain arising on financial assets at fair value ZQARBEFABZENESHEE

through profit or loss EENWRFEE 194,297 52,365
Gain arising from redemption of long term bonds f&[E & #i&E 5 & 4 MU 4,405 788
Finance costs B RRAR (274,678) (351,430)
Income tax expense iR (1,923,777) (1,337,673)
Core operating profit (non-IFRS measure) B R &I (EEBRIERE

R E) 6,229,880 5,246,494

BREERERBRLA
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We present the non-IFRS financial measures because they are used by
our management to evaluate our operating performance and formulate
business plans. These non-IFRS financial measures are not intended
to be a substitute for the presentation of the Company’s financial
results in accordance with IFRS. Rather, the Company believes that the
presentation of such non-IFRS financial measures provides investors
with additional information, and removes items that the Company does
not believe are indicative of its core operations, to better compare past
and current results. We believe that the presentation of core operating
profit (non-IFRS measure) provides additional information to further
enhance the comparability of our historical results of operations with
the trends in their underlying results of operations, while we utilize this
metric to assess the performance of our core operations. We consider
both quantitative and qualitative factors when assessing whether to
adjust for the impact of items that may be material or that may affect
the understanding to our ongoing financial and business performance
or trends.

The core operating profit (non-IFRS measure) should not be considered
in isolation or construed as an alternative to profit for the year or any
other measure of performance. Investors are encouraged to examine
our historical non-IFRS financial measures with the most directly
comparable IFRS measures. The core operating profit (non-IFRS
measure) presented here may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures presented by other companies. Other companies may
calculate similarly titled measures differently, limiting their usefulness as
comparative measures to our data. We encourage investors and others
to review our financial information in its entirety and not rely on a single
financial measure.

CAPITAL LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For year ended December 31, 2024, we primarily funded our operations,
expansion and capital expenditures through cash generated from our
operations. We monitor our cash flows and cash balance on a regular
basis and strive to maintain an optimum liquidity that can meet our
working capital needs while supporting continuing business expansion.

EEETWED N

B2 FEBR B REENSETE
5 DHEREEEERZSEEN MG
BHNWEEXARHERBKTE - ZE
FEMRTBRELENGBAEBIEILIF
B R A 2 BAR 15 B B B 3 3R 22 A
2YMBEE - AR - ARAEEZF
FERMBEREERMBAEBIENZ
I AREERMBBEIER  BRED
ARREEAREROEENEE - 7
Fruk BB ERBAINES - RARA
5 2IREERE CERBR I BRE
HAFE) BE-DMBRRMBELEX
AEHEREEEXEBEN T HRE
TEINER - BRI AZIERRT
EROEBENEY - AREREYH IR
EAYARELEHRMAFTEVBNEE
REYBENERNEENLEETH
i BMEZREENEMREE -

Rt 2 & R (SR B R B 35 3R &5 22 RI G
B) PEMYERE - T AEER/FRR
N EMEETENBRER - RAR
B 1% & & 5 B P AR B 3 W B AV B PR B
BHREETTERBEMIVBERRRE
BB EENNHEITE - LEZIIHX
DEE R GERER I B RELERNGE)
AREEEREAMA T2 BB
BRELE - R QB AREEUTENS
XAERLUBBNER  ERSEEHE
BEEMANEBETLERENERAER -
EMHBREERAEMATZEHERR
M BER  MARMBE-—NIH

B e
EERPHERMEER

HZE2024512A31BLEE » BRPEE
ERLLEELENBRSBARMANEE B
RMEATHEHRES - RPBBERH
ERBSREMNBEES  URERE
BENRBMRREEEELRATRRIE
SEMEKER ©

FERSE
2024 Annual Report

33



34

Management Discussion And Analysis

EEEWED N

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Our principal uses of cash are for procuring food ingredients and
consumables, paying staff costs, renovating and decorating our
restaurants and other business activities. Our cash and cash
equivalents decreased from RMB6,475.5 million as of December 31,
2023 to RMB6,406.9 million as of December 31, 2024. In addition, as of
December 31, 2024, the Group held certain time deposits with original
maturity over three months, and the total amount of bank balances and
cash was RMB7,474.8 million.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Under IFRS 16, we recognize right-of-use assets with respect to our
property and land leases. Our right-of-use assets are depreciated over
the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset, whichever is
shorter. As of December 31, 2024, the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets was of RMB3,018.8 million.

INVENTORIES

Our inventories mainly represented our food ingredients, condiment
products, beverage and other materials used in our restaurant
operation. Our inventories decreased from RMB1,074.6 million as of
December 31, 2023 to RMB1,060.6 million as of December 31, 2024.
The inventories turnover days remained relatively stable at 23.9 days for
the year ended December 31, 2023 and 24.0 days for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of our trade receivables were in connection with bills
settled through payment platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay.
Receivables from these payment platforms were normally settled within
a short period of time. Our trade receivables decreased from RMB412.0
million as of December 31, 2023 to RMB346.3 million as of December
31, 2024. The turnover days of trade receivables remained relatively
stable at 3.2 days for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2024.
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TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables mainly represent the balances due to the independent
third party suppliers of food ingredients and consumables. Our trade
payables decreased from RMB1,859.4 million as of December 31, 2023
to RMB1,796.4 million as of December 31, 2024. The turnover days of
trade payables increased from 34.3 days for the year ended December
31, 2023 to 41.2 days for the year ended December 31, 2024.

BANK BORROWINGS
As of December 31, 2024, we had bank borrowings of RMB97.5 million.
In 2024, the Group obtained new bank borrowings amounting to

RMB97.1 million and repaid bank borrowings amounting to RMB619.7
million.

OTHER BORROWING

As of December 31, 2024, all of our other borrowing had been settled.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2024, we did not have any material contingent
liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or claims of material importance,
pending or threatened against any member of our Group that is likely to

have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition
or results of operations.

CHARGE OF ASSETS
As of December 31, 2024, the Group’s pledged/restricted bank
deposits amounted to RMB373.8 million, primarily as a guarantee for

our foreign exchange currency forward contracts.

As of December 31, 2024, no fixed asset was charged by the Group.

DEBT-TO-EQUITY RATIO

As of December 31, 2024, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 20.8%.

Note: Equals long-term bonds, bank borrowings divided by total equity as of
the same date and multiplied by 100%.
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EEENWET A

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with most of the
transaction denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has
certain business operations outside mainland China and monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies, which
is exposed to foreign currency exchange risks. We manage foreign
exchange risk by performing periodic reviews of our net foreign
exchange exposures and try to minimise these exposures through
natural hedges, wherever possible and may enter into forward foreign
exchange contracts, when necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had a total of 137,178 employees.
For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group has incurred a
total staff costs (including salaries, wages, allowance and benefits) of
RMB14,113.3 million.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals during the
Reporting Period.

NO MATERIAL CHANGES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no material changes affecting the Group’s performance that
needs to be disclosed under Paragraphs 32 and 40(2) of Appendix D2
to the Listing Rules.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

As of December 31, 2024, the Group has no specific plans for any
material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

The Group will continue to extensively identify potential strategic
investment opportunities and seek to acquire potential high-quality
target businesses and assets that create synergies for the Group.
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Directors And Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yong (3R 8), aged 54, is one of our founders and has
over 30 years of experience in restaurant management business. He
was appointed as a Director on July 14, 2015 and was subsequently
redesignated as an executive Director on May 2, 2018. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Board on January 17, 2018 and
served as our chief executive officer from January 17, 2018 to March
1, 2022. He is mainly responsible for leading the Board and the
senior management team of the Company to guide and supervise the
Group’s operations, and to formulate the Group’s long term strategies.
Mr. Zhang Yong has held various positions in our Group since its
establishment. From April 1994 to March 2001, he served as the
general manager of Sichuan Haidilao. From April 2001 to June 2009,
Mr. Zhang Yong served as both the executive director and the general
manager of Sichuan Haidilao. Since July 2009, Mr. Zhang Yong has
been serving as a director and the chairman of the board of Sichuan
Haidilao and was re-designated as a non-executive director in January
2018. Mr. Zhang Yong has been serving as a non-executive director of
Yihai since March 2016. Mr. Zhang Yong has been serving as a director
of Chagee Holdings Limited (CHA.NASDAQ) since April 2025.

Mr. Zhang Yong is also holding directorships at six subsidiaries of our
Group.

Mr. Zhang Yong completed the master of business administration
program and completed the finance master of business administration
program hosted by Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (K317
E28%) in October 2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (ElJk£), aged 51, was re-designated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director and the vice chairman
of the Board on December 13, 2023. He served as an executive
Director and an authorized representative of the Company from April
2020 to December 2022 and a non-executive Director from December
2022 to December 2023. Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng was also a joint
company secretary of the Company from May 4, 2020 to December
30, 2022 and the chief strategy officer of our Company from April 3,
2018 to December 2022. He is responsible for assisting the chairman
of the Board in leading the Company in terms of strategic direction
and planning, with a focus on regional layout, organizational structure
updates, new format incubation, marketing strategy optimization,
compliance supervision, corporate ESG and sustainable development
etc.. Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng was the chairman of the board of directors
and an executive director of Super Hi from May 2022 to December
2023.
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EEREREER

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng worked as a journalist
at Economic and Trade Reporter from September 1994 to June 1997
and a reporter at Xinhua Daily from June 1997 to July 1998. From
September 1999 to October 2015, Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng worked as
a senior news sub-editor, the associate chief sub-editor of Lianhe
Zaobao and the editor of Zaobao Online in Singapore, successively.
During his tenure as the editor of Zaobao Online from 2011 to 2015,
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng was responsible not only for news management,
but also for strategic planning and operational management of the
internet business of Zaobao Online. From April 2009 to October
2015, Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng also worked as the editor at Crossroads
of Lianhe Zaobao. Subsequently, Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng worked as
the assistant vice president (new growth) at Lianhe Zaobao from
November 2015 to December 2016 and the vice president of new
markets at Singapore Press Holdings Limited from January 2017 to
March 2018, where he was directly responsible for the new markets
outside Singapore and the development and management of new
businesses such as electronic commerce. Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng also
served as a director at CulCreative International Pte. Ltd. and ZBJ-SPH
Pte. Ltd. from June 2017 to March 2018 and from July 2017 to March
2018, respectively, where he was responsible for strategic guidance
of corporate management and operations. ZBJ-SPH Pte. Ltd. is a
Chinese e-commerce platform jointly established by Singapore Press
Holdings Limited and ZBJ.com. Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng worked at
Nanyang Centre for Public Administration of Nanyang Technological
University as an adjunct assistant professor since September 2012 and
was promoted as an adjunct associated professor in October 2016,
teaching the Master’s programme in Media, Public Communication
and Policy Practice. He has been a visiting professor at School of
Journalism and Communication of Guangdong University of Foreign
Studies (BRIMEINE KE) since September 2014. He is currently the
president of Jiangsu Association (Singapore) and the consultant of
Peking University Alumni Association (Singapore), as well as a standing
committee member of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce and
Industry. From January 2011 to July 2011, he was also a media fellow
of the Sanford School of Public Policy at Duke University. Mr. Zhou
Zhaocheng is also the author of Public Policy Communications Strategy
in Singapore, a monograph focusing on public policy communication.
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Directors And Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng obtained his bachelor’s degree in classical
literature from Nanjing Normal University (= ET&E K E) in 1994,
his master’s degree in Chinese studies from National University
of Singapore in June 2000 and his doctoral degree from Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore in January 2007. In August 2020,
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng was awarded as one of the 100 Most Creative
People in Business by Fast Company, a business media brand with an
editorial focus on innovation.

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng is also holding supervisory positions at three
subsidiaries of our the Group.

Mr. Gou Yiqun (% &%), aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
July 1, 2024. Mr. Gou Yiqun has been a pivotal member of our Group
since January 2000, bringing over 25 years of industry and management
experience. He has excelled in various leadership roles, significantly
enhancing our financial strategies, supply chain efficiency and digital
operations. His deep understanding of industry dynamics and expert
navigation of complex financial landscapes have been instrumental in
our strategic growth and operational excellence. Throughout his tenure
with the Group, Mr. Gou Yigun has ascended through various positions
including but not limited to chief financial officer, head of information
technology, head of supply chain and procurement management of
Haidilao, etc. contributing significantly to our operations and strategies.
Prior to his appointment as the chief executive officer of the Company,
Mr. Gou Yiqun was our deputy general manager responsible for the
investment business.

In addition, Mr. Gou Yiqun has been serving as the chairman of Shuhai
since February 2023. He also held the position of chairman at Shuhai
previously, from July 2011 to December 2018. Mr. Gou Yiqun also
acted as a non-executive director at Yihai, from October 2013 to March
2018, chaired its board of directors from March 2016 to November
2017, and served as a member of its remuneration committee from
March 2016 to March 2018 and the chairman of its audit committee
from July 2016 to November 2017.

Mr. Gou Yiqun’s extensive background also includes several key
positions at Sichuan Haidilao, where he served as the financial officer
from December 2001 to June 2009, the chief financial officer and vice
general manager from July 2009 to December 2014, and as a director
from July 2009 to May 2022.
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Mr. Gou Yiqun completed his study in commodity business at Shaanxi
Commerce College (PRAARIZEERIELR) in July 1993 and received
an executive master of business administration degree from Renmin
University of China (FEI A K XE) in June 2010.

Mr. Li Peng (Z=58), aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director
on August 24, 2021 and a joint company secretary and an authorized
representative of the Company on December 30, 2022. He has served
as the financial director of the Company since April 2020. He is mainly
responsible for the finance and budgeting of the Group. He joined the
Group in 2014 and successively served as a senior manager of the
sharing center of our finance management department and an overseas
finance senior manager. He has intensive knowledge and over 20 years
of experience in finance and accounting.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Li Peng held various positions in a
number of large-scale corporations in consumer sector. Mr. Li Peng
successively served as an accountant, a branch finance manager and
the central control manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage (Shaanxi)
Co., Ltd. (42 0] O AT 4818 (B Fa) B BR 2 7)), previously known as Xi’an
BC Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. (FaZHEE0] O AJZ480RIE R A 7))
from March 2002 to March 2012. He served as the finance manager of
Anheuser-Busch InBev (China) Sales Co., Ltd., Beijing Branch Co. (B
BE(FE)EEFR AT TD A7) from April 2012 to January 2014,

Mr. Li Peng is also holding directorships and other positions at three
subsidiaries of our Group.

Mr. Li Peng obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting (online
courses) from Xi'an Jiaotong University (782X #AE) in September
2018 and completed the business administration program at Xi’an
Jiaotong University (78 % 38 K £) in December 2020. He is qualified as
Chinese Certified Public Accountant and is currently a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Strategic Development and Finance Committee of the
Shaanxi Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Song Qing (X&), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director on August 24, 2021. She has served as the president of
product committee of the Company since November 2021. She is
mainly responsible for the procurement, research and sales of the
Group’s products. She was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Group in February 2024 and executive deputy general manager
of the Group in February 2025, in charging of the product management
department, the business expanding and engineering department,
the brand marketing department, the quality and safety management
center and the new technology innovation center.
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Directors And Senior Management

Ms. Song Qing is also holding directorships and other positions at two
subsidiaries of our Group.

Ms. Song Qing has held various positions since she joined the Group
in August 2000. She successively served as a restaurant manager in
various regions from May 2002 to July 2008, a regional manager from
August 2008 to May 2015 and a coach of the Company from May 2015
to May 2021.

Ms. Song Qing obtained her junior college’s degree in tourism
management (online courses) from Nankai University (FB K2) in
January 2018.

Ms. Gao Jie (&%), aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director
on August 25, 2020. Ms. Gao Jie has also been the manager and legal
representative of Beijing Shi Ba Cuan Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. (=T N\REREEBR A F]) since September 2022 and the
director of digital operating center (previously known as Super APP
business department) of the Company since August 2020. She is also
responsible for the innovation business of the Group. She has served
as the general manager of Macau Haidilao Restaurant Limited (BP9
BRI EE— ABPFRAQF) since May 2018 and its operation director
since July 2019. She served as the assistant restaurant manager of
Hai Di Lao Hongkong Company Limited (& #8EE# AR D7) from
September 2017 to April 2018. From August 2016 to September 2017,
Ms. Gao Jie served as the assistant of the general manager office of
the Company.

Prior to joining our Group, she served as a copywriter and was
responsible for e-commerce operation in Beijing Wecook Technology
Co. Ltd. (At ZIMEEE R F B BR A F)) from February 2016 to August 2016.
Ms. Gao Jie worked as a game designer of Beijing 4399 Information
Technology Co. Ltd. (ItIRA=A1EEREBRAT) from December
2014 to February 2016. Ms. Gao Jie also worked as a Chinese teacher
in the Confucius Institute of the University of Granada (1§ {1 4hZE K27
FEP%) in Spain from September 2013 to August 2014.

Ms. Gao Jie is also holding manager position at one subsidiary of our
Group.

Ms. Gao Jie obtained her bachelor’s degree in both TCFL (Teaching
Chinese as a Foreign Language) and English from Zhengzhou
University (Z84N KX 22) in July 2012, and obtained her master’s degree in
Chinese Language and Literature from Peking University (15X K22) in
China in July 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chua Sin Bin (%3#f[K), aged 77, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on May 2, 2018 with his
appointment taking effect from the Listing Date, and is responsible
for providing independent advice and judgement to our board. He has
comprehensive experience in the areas of food safety, food science
& technology, agriculture and zoonoses. Dr. Chua Sin Bin has been
serving in a number of private companies:

BIAFHITESR

BWREE 775 R2018F5H2R%
ZREALRQNABIFATES  HEZE
BELmBHEN EEQEESGRHES
VERRYE FEREREZE  EmE
B -BERAEBHERSEEYHEEER2AE
KR BEFRBELERZSIAAL
=R

Name Period of service Positions

28 {EEEHA R B far

NTUC Fairprice Co-operative Ltd. 2009 to 2018 Board Director

BIASVYESIFLERAR 2009F £2018%F EEgEE
2015 to 2016 Member of Board Property Review Committee
20155 22016 EEEVEREEEENE
2014 t0 2018 Member of Board Audit and Risk Committee
2014F £2018%F EEEERRREBZEEENE

NTUC FairPrice Foundation Ltd. 2014 to 2018 Board Director

BARLESELEELSBRAR 20145 F201845 EEgEE

Agrifood Technologies Pte Ltd. 2009 to 2019 Principal consultant

ERREAABRAR 2009F £20195F AR

Accenture Since 2024 Advisor

BRIRE EH2024F RS
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Dr. Chua Sin Bin also held or has been holding positions in a series
of government bodies, academic institutions and professional
associations in the areas of food safety and food science & technology:

Name

&

Period of service

EHAE
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SHRBE-—HEEZERRZEZNEM
M BENBUTHE - BITHERESE
EEER

Positions

B fir

Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of
Singapore
KRR EREE S

Standard, Productivity and Innovation
Board of Singapore (SPRING)
I EEENERNEZEE

Abu Dhabi Food Control Authority of
United Arab Emirates

A AEEEERERMRESS

Health, Welfare and Food Bureau of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region

HERRRTHERNFEEENREYR

2005 to 2009
20055 & 200945
2002 to 2009
2002 = 20094
2002 to 2009
2002 F E2009F
2009 to 2020

2009 F 220204
Since 2015

B2015F

201510 2018

2015F £20184F
Since 2009

B 2009 F B
2006 to 2012
2006 F E2012%F

2011 to 2014

20115220144

Board Member, Chief Executive Officer and
Director-General

EEENE - THESREE

Chief Veterinary Officer

BEEREE

Deputy Chairman, Food Standards Committee

BEmEEZESRITE

Advisor, Food Standards Committee
EmEEZE 2R

Chairman of National Mirror Committee for ISO
TC34/SC17 (ISO 22000) Management Systems
for Food Safety

BmEZ2IZ#|ISO TC34/SC17 (ISO 22000) =1
B2 % [ =X ¥ FE & £ 2 (National Mirror Committee)
FE

Chairman of Working Group on Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Point and Guidelines for its

Application
BED T MERZEFIR R ARSI TEEE
&

Member of the Scientific Committee

RlEZ B2 (Scientific Committee) Z &
Member of Expert Committee on Food Safety

RmER2EREEEZEE

Member, Ad Hoc Working Group on
Microbiological Safety of Food

RRBEYZ2HRIEENE
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Name Period of service Positions
&8 EEHA R B
National University of Singapore Since 2013 Chairman, Industrial Academic Advisory
Board, Department of Food Science and
Technology
Nk B i K2R H20134F 8 B mRIEEER T & (Department of Food Science
and Technology) T ¥ 2 R 3£:#Z & & (Industrial
Academic Advisory Board)Ef&
Since 2008 Adjunct Professor, Department of Food Science
and Technology
H 200858 RmBI AR ARBHE
Singapore Polytechnic 2004 to 2012 Chairman of the School of Chemical & Life
Sciences Advisory Committee
IR T2k 2004 £2012F LBEEGNEBRBAEESETE
Since 2011 Chairman of Food Innovation and Resource
Centre Advisory Panel
H2011 5 RmAIFRERPOBANERE
Agency for Science, Technology and 2005 to 2020 Member of the Genetic Modification Advisory
Research of Singapore Committee of Singapore
FEREHER 2005F Z20204F #rhnsg B FH B3 7570 Z B S (Genetic Modification
Advisory Committee of Singapore) X &
2010 to 2020 Chairman of GMAC Labelling Sub-Committee
2010F £ 20204 HERMGEZAZESZE /) (GMAC Labelling
Sub-Committee) £ &
The International Academy of Food Since 2022 Fellow
Science and Technology
Bl R m R 2 H2022F 2 B+

Dr. Chua Sin Bin graduated from the University of Queensland in RFIRBLEERMNETHABE TEER
Australia with a bachelor’s degree in veterinary medicine and becamea  BHXELE{] > WHR1973F2 AKX AR
member of Royal College of Veterinary Surgeons (MRCVS) in February BIERERBZEHRME -

1973.
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Mr. Hee Theng Fong (&%), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on May 2, 2018
with his appointment taking effect from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hee Theng Fong is a lawyer in Singapore with over 30 years
of experience. Mr. Hee Theng Fong is an experienced arbitrator in
international arbitration with many awards written by him in both English
and Chinese. He served as the chairman of the Citizenship Committee
of Inquiry of Immigration and Checkpoints Authority of Singapore
(ICA) from June 2012 to June 2020. He sits on the board of many
international arbitration institutions. Mr. Hee Theng Fong is serving
as a specialist mediator (China) for Singapore International Mediation
Centre (SIMC), a full-time independent arbitrator and mediator of
The Arbitration Chambers and an accredited mediator of Singapore
Mediation Centre (SMC). He is currently serving as the deputy chairman
of Medishield Life Council. Mr. Hee Theng Fong is currently serving
as the ambassador for Singapore International Mediation Centre
(SIMC) and a member of the Compliance and Discipline Committee of
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority in Singapore. Mr. Hee
Theng Fong is currently an independent director of Straco Corporation
Limited (S85.SGX), Yanlord Land Group Limited (Z25.SGX), and China
Aviation Oil (Singapore) Corporation Ltd. (G92.SGX). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Huazhu Group Co., Ltd. (1179.
HKEX) and an independent non-executive director of Green Link Digital
Bank Pte. Ltd. and Hi-p International Pte Ltd. He is currently serving
as a board member of the Traditional Chinese Medicine Partitioners
Board.

He also served as an independent director of Zheneng Jinjiang
Environment Holding Company Limited (BWM.SGX) from 2016 to 2022.
Mr. Hee Theng Fong has ceased to serve as a consultant of Harry Elias
Partnership LLP since February 2023.

Mr. Hee Theng Fong was awarded the Public Service Medal Awards
twice by the Ministry of Home Affairs of Singapore as Pingat Bakti
Masyarakat in 2008 and, as Bingtang Bakti Masyarakat in 2015. He
was also appointed as a Justice of the Peace (JP) in April 2018.

Mr. Hee Theng Fong graduated from the law faculty in National
University of Singapore (formerly known as the University of Singapore)
with a bachelor’s degree of law (with honours) in May 1979 and
obtained a diploma in Chinese law from Suzhou University (&N A£2) in
China in October 2004.
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Mr. Qi Daqing (% X E), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on May 2, 2018 with his
appointment taking effect from the Listing Date.

Mr. Qi Daging is currently a professor in Accounting in Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business (L& ZFt) where he has worked since
July 2002 and previously served as a director and the associate dean
of the executive master of business administration department. Mr. Qi
Daging’s academic research primarily focuses on financial accounting,
financial reporting and their impact on corporate business strategy.

Mr. Qi Daging has served as an independent non-executive director
of listed companies in Hong Kong. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Bison Finance Group Limited (formerly known
as RoadShow Holdings Limited (0888.HKEX) since November 2017,
an independent non-executive director of Yunfeng Financial Group
Limited (0376.HKEX) since February 2016 and an independent non-
executive director of SinoMedia Holding Limited (0623.HKEX) since
May 2008. Mr. Qi Daging also served as an independent non-executive
director of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (3303.HKEX) from July
2015 to April 2022, an independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (0196.HKEX) from January 2008 to December 2017 and
an independent non-executive director of Dalian Wanda Commercial
Properties Co., Ltd. (3699.HKEX), a company delisted from the Stock
Exchange on 20 September 2016, from January 2016 to September
2016 and an independent director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (2202.
HKEX; 000002.SZSE) from April 2008 to March 2014. Mr. Qi Daqging
has served as an independent director of companies previously listed
on NASDAQ. He has been an independent director of Sohu.com Inc.
(SOHU.NASDAQ) and Hello Group Inc. (formerly known as Momo Inc.)
(MOMO.NASDAQ) since June 2010 and December 2014 respectively.
Mr. Qi Daging also served as an independent director of Focus Media
Holding Limited (FMCN.NASDAQ; 002027.SZSE) from February 2006
to June 2013 and an independent director of AutoNavi Holdings Ltd.
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(AMAP.NASDAQ) from June 2010 to July 2014, an independent director
of Bona Film Group Limited (BONA.NASDAQ) from December 2010 to
April 2016 and an independent director of iKang Healthcare Group, Inc.
(KANG.NASDAQ) from July 2014 to January 2019, all of which were
previously listed and delisted later on NASDAQ.

Mr. Qi Daqing graduated from Michigan State University in the United
States with a doctor’s degree in accounting in December 1996. He also
obtained a master’s degree in management from University of Hawaii
in the United States in August 1992 and dual bachelor’s degrees in
biophysics and international news from Fudan University (8 B KE) in
China in July 1985 and July 1987, respectively.

Dr. Ma Weihua (55 5 #E), aged 76, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on August 24, 2021, mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to our Board.

Dr. Ma Weihua currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of China Gas Holdings Limited (0384.HKEX), the chairman
of the board of directors and a non-executive director of Modern
Innovative Digital Technology Company Limited (2322.HKEX), a director
of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (RYIHRE LR ER D F),
a director of Qianhai Fangzhou Asset Management Co., Ltd. (A1:87
BEEEAMR AT, a director of Shenzhen Royole Technologies Co.,
Ltd. (RYIFZFRIEL IR EBRQF), a director of Shenzhen Metro Group
Co. Ltd. (RYITmH#EEBEBR 2 7)), a director of China Merchants
Financial Holdings Company Limited (AR £ mIERER A7), an
independent non-executive director of Sichuan Bank Co., Ltd. (Z4)I$R
TR EPR2AE]) and a supervisor of Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co.,
Ltd. (FBRILIE T £ & E 5B BR A7) (600660. SSE).
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Dr. Ma Weihua was also an independent non-executive director of
Legend Holdings Corporation (3396.HKEX) from June 2015 to June
2024, the chairman and an non-executive director of Bison Finance
Group Limited (E#Z & EEE AR Q7)) (0888.HKEX) from May 2018
to September 2023 and from November 2017 to September 2023,
respectively, an independent director of Guangdong Qunxing Toys
Joint-Stock Co. Ltd. (BREFHIT AR {3 H R A 7)) (002575.SZSE) from
August 2020 to October 2022, an independent non-executive director
of China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (600007.SSE) from August 2014
to June 2020, Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. (1658.HKEX)
from December 2013 to December 2019, and China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited (0670.HKEX; 600115.SSE) from October 2013 to
December 2019.

In addition, Dr. Ma Weihua is a member of the Standing Council of
China Society for Finance and Banking (FEl¢RE2FEESE), the
director-general of One Foundation (EE£ A AREEEBEER) and the
director-general of Council of National Fund for Technology Transfer
and Commercialization (B RBHE R RE(LS| EESEESEER).

Dr. Ma Weihua was awarded the doctor of philosophy degree in
economics from Southwest Finance and Economics University in 1999.

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang (R & Jt), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on August 24, 2021, mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
our Board.

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang has extensive experience in product research and
development, product planning, product operation and marketing
of Internet business. Mr. Wu Xiaoguang joined Tencent Holdings
Limited (0700.HKEX) in 1999 and had served as the product manager,
general manager of instant messaging products, general manager of
Internet business division and senior vice president of Internet services
division. From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Wu Xiaoguang had served as the chief
executive officer of Tencent E-Commerce Holdings Limited and was
responsible for the development and management of the e-commerce
business of the said company. Mr. Wu Xiaoguang has been the
founding partner of Welight Capital (Hongkong) Limited (4t &l#% (& 8)
AR F]) since 2015.

BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

EEEHE LI N2015F6 5 £2024456
B TEE 8 IR IR 47 B BR A 5] (3396.HKEX)
BEBIFHITES » N2018FE58 2
2023F9ARMN2017F 11 BE20235F9
BEE#REREEBR A T(0888.HKEX)
DREEEERFEHTES » 1B2020F
8HZE2022F 10 A EERFHEIT AR
BBRA T (002575.9ZSE)EFBLEE -
M2014F8 8 £2020F6 A £ P EIEMK
g 550 R {98 R A E(600007.SSE)
M2013F12 A E2019F 12 B EHEE
B#HERITR D BR QT (1658.HKEX)
LUK A2013F10 B Z2019F 12 B £
Bl R 75 A28 iR 19 B BR 2 81 (0670.HKEX;
600115.SSE) I BIEEBILIHITES

i SEHEFBLATHEESMESER
B SHENGESSEBERURE
FRBERRELCIEESHESEER -

SR ML 1900 F EE BBHE A BE
BB LR -

REKEE - 4958 - N20215F8H24H
BEZEABUFUNTES T EEEE
ZESENOHREHRE LA -

REXEEREBRAERNERME -
EmFE EnEEREHIOERE
EEE o REKEEN1999F AR
RAEPR AT (0700.HKEX) @ SWiEEE
mKE  RNBEEMIALE - B
REXLALEROBRAERRTSR
BI#E o M2012F £2015F » REKE
4 #=1ETencent E-Commerce Holdings
LimitedVITHAEE  ESHBKERE
ZARNEFRERKEK - RBEXEER
2015 F AWK AIR (B8) BRATN
RIIRERA °



Directors And Senior Management

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang currently serves as an independent director of China
Online Education Group (COE. NYSE) and LexinFintech Holdings Ltd.
(LX. NASDAQ). Mr. Wu Xiaoguang also served as an independent non —
executive director of 7Road Holdings Ltd. (0797.HKEX) from June 2018
to August 2019.

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang received his bachelor’s degree in meteorology from
Nanjing University (B K 22) in 1996.

Mr. Zhang Junjie (5R{&#%) (former name: Zhang Jun (38 E)), aged 30,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on August
27, 2024, mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to our Board.

Mr. Zhang Junjie founded Chagee (/£ %:14E) in June 2017 and is
currently serving as the chairman of the board of directors and chief
executive officer of Chagee Holdings Limited (CHA.NASDAQ). Mr.
Zhang Junjie has more than 13 years of operational and managerial
experience in the food and beverage industry. Prior to founding
Chagee, Mr. Zhang Junjie worked at Shanghai Muye Robotics Co., Ltd.
(LB REE#SE AR MAR DT (currently known as Shanghai Nuoya
Mumu Robotics Technology Co., Ltd. (L£E@s I RARESE A R AR
A &) from July 2015 to March 2017 and last served as the deputy
head of cooperation department in charge of Asia Pacific businesses.
Previously, Mr. Zhang Junjie served as a regional deputy manager and
subsequently, a franchise partner of Yunnan David’s Beverage Co., Ltd.

(ERRERBERAT).
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gou Yiqun (% &%), an executive Director, the chief executive
officer of the Company. See “— Executive Directors” in this section for
his biographical details.

Mr. Li Peng (Zf), an executive Director, the financial director and
company secretary of the Company. See “— Executive Directors” in this
section for his biographical details.
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The Board of the Company presents this corporate governance report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE COMPANY

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and sense of responsibility.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Code sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance
practices, as follows:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed
issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Company regularly reviews its compliance with corporate
governance codes and the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended December 31, 2024.
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A.

THE BOARD

1.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board also reviews
the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees’
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference which are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

All of the Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of
the Company including the approval and monitoring of all
major policies of the Group and overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of the Directors and
joint company secretaries, and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board before any significant
transaction is entered into.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently has 12 Directors
including 2 female Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Gou Yiqun
(appointed with effect from July 1, 2024)
Mr. Li Peng
Ms. Song Qing
Ms. Gao Jie
Ms. June Yang Lijuan
(resigned with effect from July 1, 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Chua Sin Bin
Mr. Hee Theng Fong
Mr. Qi Daqing
Dr. Ma Weihua
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang
Mr. Zhang Junjie
(appointed with effect from August 27, 2024)

Mr. Gou Yigun was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer with effect from July 1, 2024
and Mr. Zhang Junjie was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from August 27, 2024.
Mr. Gou Yiqun and Mr. Zhang Junjie obtained legal advice
on the effective date of their respective appointment as a
Director from Kirkland & Ellis, a firm of solicitors qualified
to advise on Hong Kong law, as regards the requirements
under the Listing Rules that are applicable to him as a
director of a listed issuer and the possible consequences
of making a false declaration or giving false information to
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules, and confirmed that he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

The list of the Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best
knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business,
family, or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

For the gender diversity, the Board currently has two female
Directors and as such has achieved gender diversity in
respect of the Board. We will continue to strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance
of gender diversity with reference to the shareholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best
practices.

In 2024, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

All independent non-executive directors have confirmed
their independence pursuant to the factors set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence factors set out in Rule
3.18 Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles
of Association. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

The executive Directors have each entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which each of them
agrees to act as an executive Director, subject to re-election
as and when required under the Articles of Association, until
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the service contract or by either party giving to the other not
less than one month’s prior notice in writing.
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Each of our independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company.
The initial term for their appointment letters shall be three
years and is subject always to re-election as and when
required under the Articles of Association, until terminated
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
appointment letter or by either party giving to the other not
less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the Board has power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any new Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
understands the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually provided with information
relating to the developments in the legal and regulatory
regime and the business and market environments to
facilitate the execution of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development for the Directors
were arranged by the Company and its professional
advisers.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, each Director
has attended training sessions arranged by the Company
regarding the continuing obligations of listed companies and
its directors, disclosure requirements of listed companies
and update on the Listing Rules.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Name of Director Training*

Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng
Mr. Gou Yiqun

Mr. Li Peng

Ms. Song Qing

Ms. Gao Jie

Ms. June Yang Lijuan
Dr. Chua Sin Bin

Mr. Hee Theng Fong
Mr. Qi Daqing

Dr. Ma Weihua

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang
Mr. Zhang Junjie

*

L S S S U

Each of the Directors has attended training sessions arranged
by the Company on connected transactions, corporate
governance and other continuing obligations of listed
companies and its directors. On top of the above-mentioned
trainings, each of the Directors has also read materials
prepared by external professional advisers on the same
topics.
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6.

Attendance Record of Board Meetings

a

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code prescribes that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority
of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Board met five times during the year ended
December 31, 2024 for purposes including but not
limited to reviewing and approving the audited annual
results for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
unaudited interim results for the six months ended
June 30, 2024.

The chairman of the Board held meeting with the
non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) once during the year ended
December 31, 2024 without presence of the other
executive Directors.

The Company held one general meeting on June 5,
2024. All proposed Shareholders’ resolutions put to the
above general meeting were resolved by poll vote and
were duly passed. The vote tally of each such resolution
was set out in the Company’s announcements released
on the same date of the relevant general meeting.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings and general meeting of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2024 are set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/

Number of Number

Board of General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings
Mr. Zhang Yong 5/5 11
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng 5/5 11
Mr. Gou Yiqun 3/3 N/A
Mr. Li Peng 5/5 11
Ms. Song Qing 5/5 0/1
Ms. Gao Jie 5/5 11
Ms. June Yang Lijuan 2/2 11
Dr. Chua Sin Bin 5/5 11
Mr. Hee Theng Fong 5/5 11
Mr. Qi Daqging 5/5 11
Dr. Ma Weihua 5/5 0/1
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang 5/5 11
Mr. Zhang Junjie 11 N/A

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
of the Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notices were generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all of the Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.

Each Director also had separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company
whenever necessary.
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The senior management of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

7. Mechanism for the Board to Obtain Independent Views
and Opinions

The Company recognizes that independence of the Board
is a key element of good corporate governance. The Board
has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. A summary of these
mechanisms is set out below:

Q)

@

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one
third of its members being independent non-executive
Directors. Further, independent non-executive Directors
will be appointed to Board committees as required
under the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to
ensure independent views are available.

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
director nomination policy of the Company with regard
to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to assess
annually the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement.
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No equity-based remuneration with performance
related elements will be granted to independent non-
executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence.

Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are entitled to seek further information from
the management on the matters to be discussed at
Board meetings and, where necessary, independent
advice from external professional advisers at the
Company’s expense.

These mechanisms in place are reviewed by the Board
annually to ensure the effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board believes that corporate governance shall be a
collective responsibility of the Directors, whose corporate
governance functions includes:

1)

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in complying with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
the Directors;

to develop and review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, and make
recommendations and report on related issues to the
Board; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosures in the
corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All of
these four committees are established with defined written terms
of reference which are available at the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

1.  Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee with terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules as well as
the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
consists of three Directors, namely, the independent
non-executive Directors Mr. Qi Daqging, Mr. Hee Theng Fong
and Dr. Chua Sin Bin. The chairman of the Audit Committee
is Mr. Qi Daging, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

S

=
=

i
il

A

ETETREOEEES @ HEAZE
Eg  FHESE - REZEEER
TEEREES  UEREAQFSE
BHBELRE - NEZEE9F]E
RENEEHRERLE  B2SHE
SOEN B P R A A B A uh £ ATt
Eh -

BT EEE  FMWEES  REZ
EEREXERZETNHERS

HRBUIFITES -

EZZESRERMARERBITH
ERE  WARNRHEGEEREE
BEEBRTERBUEXER A
BB ST A N BRI o

1. EEEE

BB LEHRAIREES
SASFRIRR S B E M E T
ZEE - BT ZEBH=FE
EAR BV IERTESRE
KERE - FEF TEREH
REBE -BHEEENEREA
BERELE  HEELmRA
5£3.10Q) K321 KB THREMN
BESXEK -



The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting, risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, and assisting the
Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit. Its duties and
powers should include:

() relationship with the Company'’s internal and external
auditors

° to propose the appointment, re-appointment
or replacement of external audit institution, to
provide advice to the Board, to approve the
remuneration and engagement terms of external
audit institution;

° to review and monitor external audit institution to
see if it is independent and objective and whether
its auditing process is effective, to discuss the
nature, scope and method of auditing and the
relevant reporting responsibilities with the audit
institution prior to the commencement of audit
work, to formulate and implement policies for
engaging external audit institutions to provide
non-audit services;

° to supervise the internal audit system of the
Company and its implementation, to review
financial information of the Company and its
disclosure;

° to be responsible for communication between
internal auditors and external auditors; and

° to perform other responsibilities required by laws,
regulations, rules, regulatory documents, and
the Articles of Association and assigned by the
Board.

(i) review of the Group’s audit plan report, annual report
and half-year report; and
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review of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review
of material connected transactions.

The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2024 and its
main work involved the following:

reviewing the audited annual results and financial
report for the year ended December 31, 2023;

reviewing the unaudited interim results and financial
report for the six months ended June 30, 2024;

reviewing the financial reporting and the compliance
procedures;

reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance;

reviewing the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosure requirements
in the corporate governance report as contained in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules;

reviewing the code of conduct and the compliance
manuals for employees and the Directors, the financial,

operational and compliance monitoring;

reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems;

reviewing the internal audit work of the risk
management and internal audit department; and

reviewing the work of the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee also met with the auditor of the
Company without the presence of management in 2024.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings
are set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Member Meetings
Mr. Qi Daqing 3/3
Mr. Hee Theng Fong 3/3
Dr. Chua Sin Bin 3/3

The Company’s annual results for the year ended December
31, 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
on March 25, 2025. The Audit Committee considers that
the annual financial results for the year ended December
31, 2024 are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and appropriate disclosures
have been duly made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee consists
of three Directors, namely, the independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Hee Theng Fong and Dr. Chua Sin Bin, and
the executive Director Mr. Zhang Yong. Mr. Hee Theng Fong
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate appraisal standards and conduct appraisals for
Directors and managers of the Company, and to formulate
and review the remuneration policies and proposals for
Directors and senior management of the Company. The

details are as follows:
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to make proposals and recommendations to the
Board on remuneration plans or proposals and
establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for the formulation of the above remuneration
plans or proposals according to the primary scope,
responsibilities, importance of the management
positions of Directors and senior management
members and the remuneration standards of relevant
positions in other relevant enterprises;

to formulate the specific remuneration packages
for all executive Directors and senior management
members, and to make recommendation to the Board
on remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time);

to review the performance of duties of Directors
(non-independent Directors) and senior management
members of the Company and to conduct annual
performance appraisals on them; and

to perform other responsibilities required by laws,
regulations, rules, regulatory documents and the
Articles of Association and assigned by the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2024
to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and consider and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and

the senior management of the Company.
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The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Member Meeting
Mr. Hee Theng Fong 3/3
Mr. Zhang Yong 3/3
Dr. Chua Sin Bin 3/3

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 12
to the Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration
payable to the senior management of the Company
(excluding senior management members who are also
Directors) by band for the year ended December 31, 2024
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report - C. Remuneration of Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the
executive Director Mr. Zhang Yong, and the independent
non-executive Directors Mr. Hee Theng Fong and Mr. Qi
Daqging. Mr. Zhang Yong serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee shall have the following duties
and powers:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;
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to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships based on merit and having due regard
to the policy in Board diversity (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) and other factors which are relevant to the
Company;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors (in particular the
chairman or chairlady and the chief executive), taking
into account the Company’s corporate strategy and
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future;

to develop, review, implement and monitor, as
appropriate, the policy for the nomination of Directors
(the “Nomination Policy”) and make recommendations
to the Board for consideration and approval;

to review the Board Diversity Policy and any
measurable objectives for implementing such Board
Diversity Policy as may be adopted by the Board from
time to time and to review the progress on achieving
the objectives; and to make disclosures of its progress
its review results in the annual report of the Company
annually; and

to do such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it
by the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended December 31, 2024 to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience and length of
service) of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company, to nominate
suitable Director candidates, to review the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management, and to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

Attendance/
Name of Committee Member Number of Meeting
Mr. Zhang Yong 3/3
Mr. Hee Theng Fong 3/3
Mr. Qi Daging 3/3

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy was approved and adopted by the
Board on March 26, 2019 for evaluating and selecting any
candidate for directorship. The Nomination Committee
would consider the following criteria, including, among other
things, character and integrity, qualifications (cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the Board Diversity Policy), any potential contributions the
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).
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The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director
and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. The Nomination Committee should
then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship with a ranking of the candidates (if
applicable) by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate.

The composition and diversity of the Board were considered
by adopting the Board Diversity Policy including the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business development of the
Company and for effective leadership. All the executive
Directors possess extensive and diversified experience
in management and broad industrial experience. The six
independent non-executive Directors possess professional
knowledge in management, finance, accountancy and legal,
respectively with broad and extensive experience in business
advisory and management, respectively. A summary of the
Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose:

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity of the Board and enable the Board to
comply with the Corporate Governance Code.

Board Diversity Policy statement:

The Company considers increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of
its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives:

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Progress on achieving the objectives:

After considering the measurable objectives, the Nomination
Committee is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy and
the Nomination Policy are successfully implemented.

In reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, the Nomination Committee has taken into
account the measurable objectives as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee is of the view
that the diversity level of the Board is appropriate in terms
of knowledge, experience, gender and skills of the directors.
However, the Nomination Committee will continue to
observe the Board Diversity Policy and consider potential
candidates against the objective criteria set out in the Board
Diversity Policy in order to achieve increasing diversity at the
Board level.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company has established the Corporate Governance
Committee with terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Corporate Governance
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the
independent non-executive Directors Dr. Chua Sin Bin, Mr.
Wu Xiaoguang and Dr. Ma Weihua. Dr. Ma Weihua serves as
the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee.
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The primary duties and powers of the Corporate Governance
Committee should include:

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors;

to provide proposal on the major project of the
Company for the Board,;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions contained in the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report; and

to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee has held one meeting
during the Reporting Period.
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The attendance records of the Corporate Governance
Committee meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Committee Member Meeting
Dr. Ma Weihua 11
Dr. Chua Sin Bin 11
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang 11

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company, excluding those members of senior management who
are also Directors is shown in the following table by band:

(members of senior
management of
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during the year
ended December 31, 2024.

Our employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of our Group, have also been subject to the
Model Code for the securities transactions. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by our employees was noted
by the Group during year ended December 31, 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2024.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management of the Company has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Company in order to put forward
such information to the Board for approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to the dividend
policy, the Company may from time to time in general meeting
declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the members
of the Company but no dividend shall be declared in excess
of the amount recommended by the Board. Dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realized or
unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits which the
Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of an
ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and paid out
of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with Cayman
Companies Act.

Except in so far as the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue
of, any share otherwise provide: (a) all dividends shall be declared
and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares in
respect of which the dividend is paid, but no amount paid up on
a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of
the Articles of Association as paid up on the share; and (b) all
dividends shall be apportioned and paid pro rata according to the
amounts paid up on the shares during any portion or portions of
the period in respect of which the dividend is paid.
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The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the
profits of the Company and in particular (but without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing) if at any time the share capital of
the Company is divided into different classes, the Board may pay
such interim dividends in respect of those shares in the capital
of the Company which confer on the holders thereof deferred
or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares
which confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard
to dividend and provided that the Board acts bona fide the
Board shall not incur any responsibility to the holders of shares
conferring any preference for any damage that they may suffer
by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares
having deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any
fixed dividend which is payable on any shares of the Company
half-yearly or on any other dates, whenever such profits, in the
opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.

The Board may deduct from any dividend or other moneys
payable to a Shareholder by the Company on or in respect of
any shares all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to
the Company on account of calls or otherwise. All dividends or
bonuses unclaimed for one (1) year after having been declared
may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend or
bonuses unclaimed after a period of six (6) years from the date of
declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company. The
payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend on a share into
a separate account shall not constitute the Company a trustee in
respect thereof.

Whenever the Board or the Company in general meeting has
resolved that a dividend be paid or declared, the Board may
further resolve that such dividend be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid up shares, debentures or warrants to subscribe securities of
the Company or any other company, or in any one or more of such
ways, and where any difficulty arises in regard to the distribution
the Board may settle the same as it thinks expedient, and in
particular may issue certificates in respect of fractions of shares,
disregard fractional entitlements or round the same up or down,
and may fix the value for distribution of such specific assets, or
any part thereof, and may determine that cash payments shall be
made to any Shareholder upon the footing of the value so fixed
in order to adjust the rights of all parties, and may vest any such
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specific assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the Board
and may appoint any person to sign any requisite instruments of
transfer and other documents on behalf of the persons entitled
to the dividend, and such appointment shall be effective and
binding on the Shareholders. The Board may resolve that no such
assets shall be made available to Shareholders with registered
addresses in any particular territory or territories where, in the
absence of a registration statement or other special formalities,
such distribution of assets would or might, in the opinion of the
Board, be unlawful or impracticable and in such event the only
entitlement of the Shareholders aforesaid shall be to receive cash
payments as aforesaid. Shareholders affected as a result of the
foregoing sentence shall not be or be deemed to be a separate
class of Shareholders for any purpose whatsoever.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the resolution of the 2024 AGM, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was re-appointed by the Company as the auditor
of financial statements prepared under International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
under the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this
annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and
auditor’s independence.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company for the provision
of audit services and audit-related services for the year ended
December 31, 2024 amounted to RMB7.4 million and RMB1.9
million, respectively.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the remuneration
paid/payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect
of non-audit services for the year ended December 31, 2024
amounted to RMB2.5 million. The nature of such non-audit
services is primarily tax related services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the establishment and maintenance
of sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems that are in line with the strategic objective of the Group.
The Group established risk management and internal control
systems to protect the interests of the Group and shareholders,
ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, effectively identify and manage significant risks in
achieving its strategic objectives, protect the safety of the Group’s
assets, and ensure the maintenance of proper compliance
accounting records and financial reports.

The Board is responsible for evaluating the nature and extent
of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems as well as overseeing management of the Group in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports from
the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions
of the Group. All significant risks are reported to the Board. The
Board will also evaluate the corresponding risks and the response
plan. The Group would review, among other things, adequacy of
resources, staff’s qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of our accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.
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With respect to risk management, the Group has chosen and
adopted the risk management framework issued by COSO
in the United States of America (“COSO0”), established a risk
management system covering design, implementation, monitoring,
assessment and continuous improvement based on the ISO
31000:2009 “Risk Management — Principles and Guidelines”. The
Group’s management established the overall targets and policies
of the risk management system which are in line with the strategic
objectives, and identified, analyzed and assessed the overall risk
of the Company, especially the risks in making major decisions,
important events and key business processes. The Group’s
management is also responsible for reviewing and approving
the response plans to major risks, as well as following-up and
periodically reviewing the implementation of such response plans
of risks identified, in order to make sure that sufficient attention,
monitoring and responses will be given to all key risks of the
Company. The risk management reports are submitted to the
Board periodically.

With respect to internal control, the Group has chosen and
adopted the internal control framework issued by COSO,
established an internal control system and mechanism over
financial, operational and compliance controls and has conducted
continuing review and evaluation of the internal control system of
the Group to ensure the timeliness, accuracy and completeness
of all information reported.

° The management has conducted an annual review on the
design and operating effectiveness of its internal control
regarding the financial report as of December 31, 2024, and
did not identify any material weakness as a result of the
evaluation, and were not aware of any areas of concern that
would have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations, and considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally
adequate and effective, including with respect to the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions. On the basis of such
evaluation, the Board considers that as of December 31,
2024, internal control of the Group in relation to financial
reporting was effective.

BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

ERMEEI@D AEEREAE
BEICOSOZEE ([CcOSO]) #l
EWEMEEESR » IKIEISO
31000:2009( E b E 1 — R Al Ed
EBEYEBN —ERER - B -
B MERBEIGENRRERE
Bz  AREETEERESRKEE
HERMEEBANABAEEZEREK
KRoBwA > PMEFTERQTEE
BB REEEHELRE - EX
EHREEEBRESANRR
AEEEEENESEENAEY
BEAEAKRHNELHTR  EIFRKME
EHEEEERARNERSTRE
HER  UBRAATSEEAR
BRECSEI R AMAEE - ESiREE
HeoRAREERESTHOESS

EX e

ERABEHNLTR  AKEHEM
COSOHIER ABPEBIESR - B
BEMKEE  eBERNGRE
BERRBEERG R  BAK
BHRBEHRGETSEEEHR
il - IERAIBE2RERNR

H%:r N %ﬁ%u%ﬂz e

e EBEECHAQNAEHZE2024
F12 831 B BRERIFE
BT BT RSB RETT
TEEER > BB AW ER
WA ERRMG - TERIBT
AT 38 2 N B 9 BA S AR S SR AR
EEBERBEAFEMESZM
BINSEE  IRARRER
AR RGEEMSBER
EREN  BEABTEENE
R EENETIERRLEL
RIZHIRRE - WESE - AT
Eit R KERBESEE R
METAE o FEULFREER L
EEERBEZE2024F12A
318 AEBEHEGERER
BRI IEEBENY -



° At the same time, the Group has established a mechanism
for remediating internal control deficiency under which
the person in charge of each unit is assigned with clear
responsibilities relating to remediating internal control
deficiency of the unit.

° The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply
with all inside information policies.

° The Group established an open channel to handle and
discuss internal and external whistle-blowing regarding
financial, internal control and fraud, to ensure that every
accusation receives sufficient attention. Significant internal
control deficiencies or accusations will be reported directly
to the Audit Committee.

In addition, the Company has established policies and systems
that promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.
We also carry out regular on the-job compliance training to
our senior management and employees to maintain a healthy
corporate culture and enhance their compliance perception and
responsibility. Our staff can anonymously report any suspected
corrupt incident to the Company.

The Company has also established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For details of the nature and extent of the principal risks faced by
the Group, please refer to the section headed “e. Principal Risks
and Uncertainties” of directors’ report in this annual report.

Corporate Governance Report

EERERRE

o B AEERYT -ER
E RIS - FEMH
BB AYAREL R A FREEIEER
R ARENEREE -

e AFAEEEHETAREEK
FUEHREESKESE
STHERFESEER

o  AKEERVTAMARENE
ERFAWERE - AEPES
K ERFEE T E A A SRR
] UERSRERIFTIE
7 HIBEE o BRI ERIE IR
PEREEEATIEESE
3 o

S0 ARTREHIERERZIFR
B RRERNBERRBER » &M
TashEEEREESRHEENE
BEREI - EEREREL
TREESHABEREE -B8TH
EfQAQAEREMIRESTE
o

RRBATHEERERDTETR
Z2E (NMEBEFRHER) B EFE R
HERKRER  UHESQATEEN
FMEERPAEFENEANTET
5B UREREZNSNREEE

AEBWRKSERNIIES AL
EEEEMEERELERELE
EWRK  BETRFTELEEARL
ERMPBRIERESEMIFEBER

K o
2

AEASEEEEERRAME
ERENFE  FZHAFRTE
seHRE e TEAMRTHEEM ]
—Hie

FERSE
2024 Annual Report

77



78

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company has set up effective communication channels with
investors as the Company considers that effective communication
with the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide
a forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee and, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees will be available to answer questions at the general
meetings. The chairman of a meeting will provide the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
the Shareholders on voting by poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.haidilao.com, where information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

As part of its regular review, the Board has reviewed these
communication channels for the year ended December 31,
2024 and is of the view that this is effective and adequately
implemented.
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AMENDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on June
5, 2024, a special resolution was passed by the Shareholders
approving certain amendments to the Articles of Association to
(i) bring the Articles of Association in line with the amendments
to the Listing Rules which mandate the electronic dissemination
of corporate communications by listed issuers to their securities
holders from 31 December, 2023 onwards; and (i) make other
consequential and house-keeping amendments. Details of the
amendments were set out in the Company’s circular dated
April 26, 2024. The second amended and restated Articles of
Association is available on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business or
resolution specified in such requisition.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Cayman Islands Companies Act for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph. As regards proposing a person for election
as a Director of the Company, please refer to the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of
the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details:

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 40/F Dah Sing Financial Centre,
248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Joint Company Secretaries)

Email: ir@haidilao.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING AND L ZHEBEERREMSHERESE
PLACING
Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering ERBEMEREAR
The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on AATRDN20185E9 A 26 B H
September 26, 2018. The net proceeds from the Global Offering RFFE™ - 2B ERESRIEFR
amounted to approximately HK$7,299.3 million. For the year K7,299.3 BB T - HE20245F
ended December 31, 2024, the net proceeds have been applied 12A831HILFE » FISREFE
in the manner as set out in the section headed “Future Plans BERAATHHA2018F9812H
and Use of Proceeds” of the prospectus of our Company dated WHEBRERI AR ERFAERE
September 12, 2018 and there was no change in the intended use RAgl—gmB&FXNEA > BEA
of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the prospectus. As of REBRERPEZENMERIEFE
December 31, 2024, the Company cumulatively used HK$7,272.2 WiRERARLE|BE - HE2024
million, accounting for approximately 99.6% of the proceeds from F128318 > XA EFEHA
the Global Offering. The Company expects to utilize the balance 7T2722B BB 2B ERM
of net proceeds of approximately HK$27.1 million with the BFIEL99.6% - AN TEFEREZE
intended uses previously disclosed by the end of 2025. 2025 F F R Z AT E) A FT{S TR IE F5E
BEHRN2T 1 BEEBUELEREEN
R FiR o
As of December 31, 2024
#Z2024512A31H
Utilized
amount
during the
Net  Reporting Utilized  Unutilized
Percentage  Proceeds Period amount amount
TECE REHR FEA
B H3E BHLE BHLE £8
% HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
% HE#T BEET BREET BEET
For expansion plan ERarE 60.0 4,379.5 = 4,379.5 =
For development and B I TR AT
implementation of new
technology 20.0 1,459.9 371.4 1,432.8 271
For the repayment of loan facility ~ EEEFHMEREEME
and credit facility 15.0 1,094.9 - 1,094.9 -
For working capital and general EEESR-REXAR
corporate purposes 5.0 365.0 - 365.0 -
Total @ 100.0 7,299.3 3711.4 7,272.2 271
FEHRSE
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Use of Proceeds from the Placing

The placing of existing shares and top-up subscription of new
shares pursuant to the share placing and subscription agreement
dated November 12, 2021 was completed on November 22, 2021
(the “2021 Placing”).

The net proceeds raised from the 2021 Placing were
approximately HK$2,337.0 million. As of December 31, 2024, the
net proceeds had been applied in the manner as set out in the
announcements dated November 12, 2021 and November 22,
2021. As of December 31, 2024, the Company cumulatively used
HK$1,691.5 million, accounting for approximately 72.4% of the
proceeds from the 2021 placing in accordance with the intended

MEMSREARR

RIBEHEE2021F11 B12HHR
PERERRABHELERERHR
AEAFARBHRMAOER2021F 11
BA22A %M ([2021 FEE ) ©

2021 FMEMSRERENA
2,337.0EEBT - HE2024%F12
B31H  FIBRIEFHECIRAA
2021511 128 &2021F11 522
AMASEMELNFER - #£2024
F12831H ' AARCKREER
BRI EHR1,691.5FEBEBT 15

uses, details of which are set forth as follows: 2021 FELEFTBRIENT2.4% » &

BEIWMT :
As of December 31, 2024
8220245127310

Utilized

amount

during the
Net  Reporting Utilized  Unutilized
Percentage  Proceeds Period amount amount
& WEMA *EA
BO H38 BREH PHEH £

% HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
% HEEBT HEBT HEBT HEBT

HEREENERMRE

For supply chain management

and product development 30.0 701.1 107.7 701.1 -
For payment of credit facilities BEGERNE 30.0 701.1 - 701.1 -
For working capital and general EEESR-REXAR

corporate purposes 40.0 934.8 289.3 289.3 645.5
Total @ 100.0 2,337.0 397.0 1,691.5 645.5
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The net proceeds of the 2021 Placing were used and expected
to be used according to the intentions previously disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated November 22, 2021
and there was no change in the use of proceeds. The Company
expects to utilize the balance of net proceeds of approximately
HK$645.5 million in accordance with the intended uses by end of
2026. This expected timeline is based on the best estimation of
future market conditions and business operations made by the
Company and remains subject to change based on current and
future development of market conditions and actual business
needs. For further details of the 2021 Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated November 12, 2021 and
November 22, 2021.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Li Peng and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external service provider, serve as
the joint company secretaries and authorized representatives of
the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, each of Mr. Li Peng
and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit has undertaken over 15 hours of
professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

PRIMARY CORPORATE CONTACT PERSON

Mr. Li Peng, an executive Director and the financial director, is the
primary corporate contact person of the joint company secretary,
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit.

GOING CONCERN

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to the Shareholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s liability to
continue as a going concern.

The Board of the Company presents this Directors’ report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2024.
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P. CORPORATE CULTURE

“Kindness” is not only our corporate culture, but also our
philosophy of treating employees. We call on restaurant managers
to care for employees and settle down to establish emotional
bonds among employees, between employees and restaurants
and between employees and Haidilao, thereby increasing the
cohesiveness. “Changing your future with your own hands” is our
core value. We have set up a fair and clear promotion blueprint
for restaurant employees and adopt the piece wages system to
link their individual remuneration with workloads and working
quality directly, which have effectively mobilized the enthusiasm
of employees. Once promoted to the restaurant managers,
employees have opportunities to enjoy performance commission.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Haidilao is a globally leading Chinese cuisine restaurant brand focusing
on hot pot cuisine. We seek to provide a high quality, diversified, and
dynamic menu, and are constantly developing new menu items, soup
bases and dipping sauces, and customizing our menu to different taste
preferences to enhance guest experience.

The principal activities of the Group were restaurant operation and
related delivery business in the Greater China regions.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 are set
out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.507 (equivalent to RMBO0.468) per share for the year ended
December 31, 2024, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the AGM of this year to be held on Monday, May 19, 2025. The final
dividend will be distributed in HK$ and is calculated based on the
average benchmark exchange rate of RMB against HK$ announced
by the People’s Bank of China in the five working days prior to but
excluding the date of the Board meeting held on Tuesday, March 25,
2025. The recommended dividends will be paid to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on Wednesday, May 28, 2025. Subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the final dividend is expected to be
paid to the Shareholders on or before Thursday, June 19, 2025.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

In 2024, charitable and other donations made by the Group amounted
to RMB5,523,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the issued shares of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 34 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has distributable reserves of
RMB2,779.1 million in total available for distribution.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group’s financial summary for the last five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-Year Performance Review” of this annual
report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as of December 31, 2024
are set out in note 31 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 16
to the Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had complied with
the minimum percentage prescribed in the waiver granted by the Stock
Exchange from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules
as of the Latest Practicable Date.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands and there is no
restriction against such rights which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING AND
PLACING

The net proceeds from the Global Offering and the 2021 Placing
amounted to approximately HK$7,299.3 million and HK$2,337.0 million,
respectively. For details, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report — L. Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering and
Placing” of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW
a. Overview and Performance of the Year

Business review and financial review are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

b. Environmental Policies and Performance

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental-friendly environment. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact and to build our corporation in
a sustainable way.

The Group has undergone a series of effective energy-saving
and pollutant-reducing measures such as (i) adopting electronic
service and office; (ii) installing proper treatment devices to reduce
greasy fume emissions (iii) saving electricity, water resource
and other resources; (iv) reducing the utilization of disposable
products; and (v) properly processing the cooking oil and kitchen
waste.
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Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning,
response and control procedures as countermeasures for
unexpected environmental pollution accidents to minimize
our impact on the environment and the adverse effect on our
business. For detailed information on the environment and
social practices adopted by the Company, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of our Company.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Corporate Governance Code for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
has also complied with other relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.
Please refer to the section headed “Regulatory Overview” in the
Prospectus for details.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Relationship with Our Customers

Haidilao has broad appeal, with a superior dining experience and
affordable prices. We have a large and diverse customer base.
Our revenue derived from the five largest customers accounted
for less than 5% of our total revenue for the year ended December
31, 2024.

Relationship with Our Suppliers

We primarily procure (i) soup base for our hot pot, (ii) food
ingredients, including meat, seafood and vegetables, and (iii)
decoration materials and renovation services, equipment and
consumables used in our restaurants. We generally have more
than two qualified suppliers for each type of major food ingredient
to reduce reliance on a single supplier. Through our years of
operations, we have identified and established stable business
relationships with high quality suppliers for our major food
ingredients. We did not experience any incidents of interruption or
delay in our supply chain or failure to secure sufficient quantities
of food ingredients that had a material and adverse effect on us
during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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Relationship with Our Employees

We believe that happy employees lay the foundation for happy
guests. We endeavor to cultivate talented and loyal employees
by treating our employees with dignity, respect and fairness. We
motivate our employees with career development opportunities
and competitive compensation. Our training and promotion
program allows employees to envision their career paths and
growth potential with us. All of our employees have a chance to
be promoted to management regardless of the position they start
in.

Relationship with Shareholders

We recognize the importance of protecting the interests of the
Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
We believe communication with the Shareholders is a two-way
process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been done through convening of
general meeting and publishment of annual and interim reports
and results announcements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Risk of Maintaining a Broad Restaurant Network

As of December 31, 2024, the Haidilao brand had operated a total
of 1,368 restaurants. Among them, 1,332 self-operated restaurants
were located in mainland China and 23 in the Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan regions, and 13 were franchised restaurants. How to
ensure that such a large number of restaurants provide consistent
and excellent service and quality is a huge challenge for us. In
particular, the challenge entails the following major aspects of our
operations:
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° Food safety and quality consistency. A large-scale chain
restaurant generally has a large number of restaurant
staff. Due to the labor-intensive nature of the restaurant
business, it becomes more difficult to ensure that the dining
experience across all of our restaurants are consistently of
high quality, and that all of the staff comply with laws and
regulations of multiple jurisdictions, especially the detailed
and stringent regulations in relation to food safety.

° Supply chain management. The quality and the taste of
hot pot depend significantly on the freshness and quality
of food ingredients. It may become increasingly difficult to
procure fresh and high quality food ingredients at favorable
prices from reliable suppliers and manage the inventory and
logistics for food ingredients across all of its restaurants..

Our operation may place substantial demands on our
management and our operational, technological, financial and
other resources, as well as significant demands on us to maintain
consistent service and food quality and inherit our corporate
culture to ensure that our brand does not suffer as a result of any
deterioration, whether actual or perceived, in the quality of our
service or food.

To address these issues, we have significantly refined our
management system in recent years to become more effective.
Under the current system, our restaurant managers have
significant autonomy in the day-to-day operations of the
restaurants they manage and are subject to supervision and
assessment by regional managers and our headquarters at the
same time. Besides, our headquarters is responsible for functions
such as products, brand marketing, food safety and project
decoration. However, we cannot assure you that our headquarters
will be able to effectively manage all of our restaurants directly
considering our business scale. In addition, our assessment
system focused primarily on guest satisfaction and employees’
efforts may not always be effective in managing the quality of our
restaurants.

BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

e EBmEEREE-HM X
REEHEBRESAAESR
EBET - HREEEBHE
EEME  ERGEAFAMEE
BHHERRERE-E8E
EBURFEETEBFZERE
BENEERER (BRIRHE
EmZENFABBBNSR
E)REERWNE -

o HEMEERE - NBHNMERK
BRAREE LR T R AR
EREE - muSEHERRE
EERRBHEEERMUR
EERMEEBRRMNEFEERY
T F] RERL B PR o

HMMELTRSHRMNEER
BFMEE - 50 - BB RAME
BBRAFER - IR ATEEH RN
BEARERUEF -BRBERER
B8 RFERDEL - BEKRM
NEETERARMRBIERES
FEHNEFTE (FREERRE
RAELE) M3 -

REHZEHE PO F-EK
ERERMNEEBRUEEEM
BY - BZBITREAT » HMNE
KEEHEEMBERNAREEE
THASEEEE  AIKXIARE
IR R M E B ML o B
MBEEER mEEHE EME
2 IRERSFHE - AWM ER
HPINRBHRE - RABEE B
TRE  RMNEHEEHEES
MEERFNFEERE - 1o &K
MEREIEETREERETLS
HRENTERRRBENIRKE
B EERMEBNEE -



There can be no assurance that our management system, as it
evolves, will always be able to address our needs at different
stages of our growth. Any significant failure or deterioration of our
management system could have a material and adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.

Risk of the Quality of Our Dining Experience

The success of our restaurants revolves primarily around guest
satisfaction, which is dependent on the continued popularity of
our Haidilao brand and lies in our ability to provide a superior
dining experience. The success of our restaurants may be
adversely impacted by a number of factors, including, among
others:

° decline in the quality of service provided by our servers;
o inability to pioneer and introduce new services that gain
popularity amongst guests;

o inability to meet the needs of our guests and changes in
consumer tastes and preferences;

° decline in food quality, or the perception of such decline
amongst guests;

° any significant liability claims or food contamination
complaints from our guests;

° inability to offer quality food at affordable prices;

° declining economic conditions in the markets we operate
that may adversely affect average spending per guest, which
may constrain consumer budgets and affect their choice in
ordering high margin items;

° decline in employee satisfaction and increase in employee
attrition;
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° increased competition in the restaurant industry;
° our inability to manage costs;

° opening of new restaurants owned by us or third-party(ies)
competitors in the same region; and

° decline in our reputation and consumer perception of our
brand in terms of quality, price, value and service.

We cannot guarantee that our dining experience will continue to
be of high quality and favored by guests, nor that our existing and
new restaurants will continue to be successful.

Risk of Reliance on Connected Persons for Supplies and Services

Two of our five largest suppliers in 2024 were our connected
persons. For the year ended December 31, 2024, purchases
from our five largest suppliers amounted to RMB4,678.2 million,
accounting for 25.8% of our total purchases.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, we did not experience
any incidents of interruption or delay in our supply chain or
failure to secure sufficient quantities of food ingredients from
our suppliers, including those from our connected person that
had a material and adverse effect on us. While we maintain good
business relationships with these parties, we cannot assure you
that these suppliers will not breach their contractual obligations to
us, or that our agreements will not be suspended, terminated or
otherwise expired without renewal. The operations of these parties
may be subject to any natural disasters or other unanticipated
catastrophic events, including adverse weather, natural disasters,
fires, technical or mechanical difficulty, storms, explosions,
earthquakes, strikes, acts of terrorism, wars and outbreaks of
epidemics that could cause a delay or suspension of operations
of these parties, which may affect the quality of their products and
services, and cause interruptions in our operations. Moreover, we
cannot guarantee that these parties will have the capacity to meet
our needs as we expand rapidly, or maintain the same level of
quality in their products and services. We may not be able to find
alternative providers if these parties are no longer able to meet
our needs at acceptable costs and in a timely manner. Failure
to take adequate steps to mitigate the likelihood or potential
impact of such events, or to effectively manage such events if
they occur, particularly when a product or service is provided by a
single source, could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

PROSPECTS

A description of the future development in the Company’s business
is provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On February 13, 2025, the Company adopted the Post-IPO Share
Scheme (Existing Shares) (2025 Share Scheme”) which does not
involve issue of new shares of the Company. As of the date of this
annual report, no award has been granted or agreed to be granted,
vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2025 Share Scheme.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any significant
event requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to
December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Gou Yiqun (appointed with effect from July 1, 2024)
Mr. Li Peng
Ms. Song Qing
Ms. Gao Jie
Ms. June Yang Lijuan Nt
(resigned with effect from July 1, 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chua Sin Bin

Mr. Hee Theng Fong

Mr. Qi Daqing

Dr. Ma Weihua

Mr. Wu Xiaoguang

Mr. Zhang Junjie (appointed with effect from August 27, 2024)

Note:

Ms. June Yang Lijuan has resigned as an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from July 1, 2024 in order to
devote more attention to her other business commitment.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting
(provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years) and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Mr. Li Peng, Ms. Song Qing, Mr. Gou Yiqun, Mr. Zhang
Junjie, Ms. Gao Jie and Mr. Qi Daging will retire from the Board by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
the Directors confirm that no information is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The executive Directors have each entered into a service contract with
the Company pursuant to which each of them agrees to act as an
executive Director (as the case may be), subject to re-election as and
when required under the Articles of Association, until terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the service contract or by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with our Company. The initial term for their
appointment letters shall be three years and is subject always to
re-election as and when required under the Articles of Association,
until terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
appointment letter or by either party giving to the other not less than
three months’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

We have received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chua Sin Bin, Mr. Hee Theng Fong, Mr. Qi
Daging, Dr. Ma Weihua, Mr. Wu Xiaoguang and Mr. Zhang Junjie,
the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant to the
factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly
reviewed the confirmation of independence of each of these Directors.
We consider that the independent non-executive Directors have been
independent for the year ended December 31, 2024 and remain so as
of the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As of December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:
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Interest in the Company
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() RAEQXTRNES

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Name of Director/ Number of share capital
Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares (%) Notes
oRITERAS
B 405 AR
%/ B5THABRE Bt/ R E LERKE  FH (%)
Mr. Zhang Yong Nete 1:2and$ Founder of a discretionary trust 3,363,658,743 (L) 60.35 (L)
SR At 2R3 RETRIZA
Interest in a controlled corporation
REEERER
Interest of spouse
EofBED
Beneficiary of a trust
ErEZE@A
Beneficial owner
ERBBA
Mr. Li Peng Beneficial owner 397,500 (L) 0.01 (L)
THESE ERBBA
Ms. Song Qing Beneficial owner 795,000 (L) 0.01 (L)
RELTL EnBEEA
Ms. Gao Jie Beneficial owner 1,987,500 (L) 0.04 (L)
BRZt BERBERA
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng Moe4 Interest of spouse 2,087,500 (L) 0.04 (L)
[BJk 2 e A e [R5
Beneficial owner
BERBRA

(L) denotes a long position

Notes:

(1) Mr. Zhang Yong is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping. Therefore, Mr.
Zhang Yong is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Ms.

Shu Ping is interested under the SFO.
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ZY NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the
BVI. The entire share capital of ZY NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the Apple Trust via UBS
Nominees Limited in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the
Apple Trust. Apple Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang
Yong as the settlor and protector on August 22, 2018 for the benefit
of himself, Ms. Shu Ping and their families. Mr. Zhang Yong (as the
founder of the Apple Trust) and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are
taken to be interested in the Shares held by ZY NP Ltd. under the
SFO.

SP NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the
BVI. The entire share capital of SP NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the Rose Trust via UBS
Nominees Limited in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the
Rose Trust. Rose Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Shu
Ping as the settlor and protector on August 22, 2018 for the benefit
of herself, Mr. Zhang Yong and their families. Ms. Shu Ping (as the
founder of the Rose Trust) and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are
taken to be interested in the Shares held by SP NP Ltd. under the
SFO.

NP United Holding Ltd. is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI and is owned as to approximately 51.778%
by ZY NP Ltd. and approximately 16.074% by each of SP NP Ltd.,
SYH NP Ltd. and LHY NP Ltd., respectively. Therefore, Mr. Zhang
Yong, ZY NP Ltd. and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which NP United Holding Ltd. is
interested under the SFO.

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng is the spouse of Ms. Chen Ying. Therefore,
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which Ms. Chen Ying is interested in under the SFO.

The calculation is based on the total number of 5,574,000,000
Shares in issue as at December 31, 2024.
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(ii)

Interest in associated corporations

Name of Associated
Corporation

Name of Director/
Chief Executive

ER BRITBAERE HAHEIEES
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(i) REBCEERERS

Capacity/Nature of Interest

St EHEME

Percentage of
Shareholding in
the Associated
Corporation
NEL P NE]
BFERE S

Mr. Zhang Yong M2 Fuhai Mete

Founder of a discretionary trust
Interest in a controlled
corporation

Beneficiary of a trust

Interest of spouse

60%

W s

g

ERERRILA

ZErE kR

EREZEA

BB

Notes:

1)

Fuhai is held as to 40% by the Shanghai Xinpai and 60% by Yihai
(Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yihai, and
therefore is an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO.

Yihai is held as of approximately 31.39% by ZYSP YIHAI Ltd. and
SP YIHAI Ltd. The entire share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd. and SP
YIHAI Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the
trustee of the ZYSP Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang
Yong and Ms. Shu Ping as the settlors and protectors on June
1, 2016 for the benefit of themselves and their family, and the SP
Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Shu Ping as the settlor
and protector on December 31, 2020 for the benefit of herself, Mr.
Zhang Yong and their family, respectively. Mr. Zhang Yong (as
the founder of the ZYSP Trust and a beneficiary of the SP Trust)
is deemed to be interested in the shares of Fuhai held by Yihai
(Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. under the SFO.

st -

60%
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates has or is deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or which will be required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant to
the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of December 31, 2024, the followings are the persons, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest

Y G/ BHNE

Br EXXFRIERE SN - EIE 2024512
A31H  RRABESIESTHA
BRREZTANBEAREQTH
HEMABEZE (EERFZRY
BIRBIEXVER) R 1D - AHEEIR 1D
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RIEEZ R ERGIEXVEET7RS
2 EASAAE A D B KRB P E
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B E20245F 128318 BREAQATRESH
BRETHABEN  THALAERROR
HEROTREEREEZSZRBEKRAIE
XVERSE 2R 3D MR BMEAR AT R
BIEWESIABRNAL  REE
EREEEPIEXVEBFEI6 KA DT E
BENWEZECMATCENEZIRE
WAL :

Approximate

Percentage of

Total number Shareholding
of shares (%o) Note?

BOEH  BOBRE S (o)

UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited Nete .24 5and6 Trustee
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited®=1-2+4:5%8 ZiEA
Ms. Shu Ping Nete1.2and6 Founder of a discretionary trust
EF g i 2ne 2REFALA
Interest in a controlled corporation
SEEER
Interest of spouse
[ S
Beneficiary of a trust
ERARHA

100 BREERERBRLA
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

3,824,158,271 (L) 68.61 (L)

3,363,658,743 (L) 60.35 ()



Name of Shareholder
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Capacity/Nature of Interest
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Approximate

Percentage of

Total number Shareholding
of shares (%o) Note

BSEH  BAOBRE S ()

ZY NP LTD Note 1and 6
ZY NP LTD. it

NP United Holding Ltd. Mo
NP United Holding Ltd.#®
Ms. Hailey Leg Note3. 4and5
R4 s RS

Mr. Sean Shi Nete3 4and5
HoK 2 S s ams

SP NP Ltd. Mete2
SP NP Ltd.###2
LHY NP Ltd. Mete®
LHY NP Ltd. "5

Notes:

Beneficial owner

EREBA

Interest in a controlled corporation
SELE#ER

Beneficial owner

BRBERA

Founder of a discretionary trust
2REEFEILA

Interest in a controlled corporation
SELEER

Beneficial owner

BRERA

Interest of spouse

[

Founder of a discretionary trust
2RERALA

Interest in a controlled corporation
STELEES

Beneficial owner

ERERA

Interest of spouse

[T

Beneficial owner

BRBERA

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

(1)  ZY NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI.
The entire share capital of ZY NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS Trustees
(B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the Apple Trust via UBS Nominees
Limited in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the Apple Trust. Apple
Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong as the settlor and
protector on August 22, 2018 for the benefit of himself, Ms. Shu Ping and
their families. Mr. Zhang Yong (as the founder of the Apple Trust) and
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held
by ZY NP Ltd. under the SFO.

FEE

1)

2,950,709,229 (1) 52.94 (1)

1,801,970,108 (L) 32.33 (1)
489,774,528 (L) 8.79 (1)
489,774,528 (L) 8.79 (1)
410,962,014 (L) 737 ()
292,855,014 (L) 5.25 (L)

ZY NP Ltd. B —RREBERELZEEHT

ML WIREZER DT © ZY NP Ltd.
HEIRAEHUBS Trustees (B.V.l.)
Limited A Apple TrustfIZ T A B E
iBUBS Nominees Limited (LLEEA
Apple TrustiEstERBAGM) 2EHE
B o Apple TrustB RELEEUMERTF
ARREANEHBEERS  §¥2t
RERKEHRZFEN20184E8 22 B KL
WEREETE - RIBEBHZREAEGKRM > &
B&4 (fEBApple TrustAINZ A) &
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited#{8 &R
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SP NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI.
The entire share capital of SP NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS Trustees
(B.V.L) Limited as the trustee of the Rose Trust via UBS Nominees Limited
in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the Rose Trust. Rose Trust is
a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Shu Ping as the settlor and protector
on August 22, 2018 for the benefit of herself, Mr. Zhang Yong and their
families. Ms. Shu Ping (as the founder of the Rose Trust) and UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held by
SP NP Ltd. under the SFO.

Ms. Hailey Lee is the spouse of Mr. Sean Shi. Therefore, Ms. Hailey Lee is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Sean Shi is interested
and Mr. Sean Shi is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Ms.
Hailey Lee is interested under the SFO.

SYH NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI.
The entire share capital of SYH NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS Trustees
(B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the Cheerful Trust via UBS Nominees
Limited in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the Cheerful Trust.
Cheerful Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Sean Shi and Ms.
Hailey Lee as the settlors and protectors on August 22, 2018 for their own
benefit and the benefit of their families. Mr. Sean Shi and Ms. Hailey Lee (as
the founders of the Cheerful Trust) and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are
taken to be interested in the Shares held by SYH NP Ltd. under the SFO.

LHY NP Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI.
The entire share capital of LHY NP Ltd. is wholly owned by UBS Trustees
(B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the Cheerful Trust via UBS Nominees
Limited in its capacity as nominee for the trustee of the Cheerful Trust.
Cheerful Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Sean Shi and Ms.
Hailey Lee as the settlors and protectors on August 22, 2018 for their own
benefit and the benefit of their families. Mr. Sean Shi and Ms. Hailey Lee (as
the founders of the Cheerful Trust) and UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are
taken to be interested in the Shares held by LHY NP Ltd. under the SFO.
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(6) NP United Holding Ltd. is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI and is owned as to approximately 51.778% by ZY NP Ltd.
and 16.074% by each of SP NP Ltd., SYH NP Ltd. and LHY NP Ltd.,
respectively. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Yong, ZY NP Ltd. and UBS Trustees
(B.V.l.) Limited are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which NP
United Holding Ltd. is interested under the SFO.

(7)  The calculation is based on the total number of 5,574,000,000 Shares in
issue as at December 31, 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended December
31, 2024 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had
exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the Directors and
the Controlling Shareholders was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2024.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

(6) NP United Holding Ltd. B —RREBE
LHRBEMRIIWREZERAR » HZY
NP Ltd. 3B #51.778% & - R 5l
ISP NP Ltd. * SYH NP Ltd. % LHY NP
Ltd. B#E16.074% = o EIL - RI5
HERHEHRE  REB%LE - ZY NP
Ltd. &2 UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited#%
REMNP United Holding Ltd. FEE#E
BB GFEERES -

(7) EZEtEEREZE2024F12831B0 %
1TIR 1048 85,574,000,000 % °

PR EXXERIEE SN - A2024%5F12 A 31
B ARAESERBESTHRAELRA
ERAEMALT (RATESRESTH
AEBRIN) RARQ B RD L ABRE R D B
BREFSFRBEROIEXVHE2RID
G BHNEARN T RERFFHER
ARA - RIRIEE S K S %555 3361%
AARBEENECMATCENERSS

WA o
AR 1 S RO HE R

BRENTEERESITHRAERRS -
BN REEEPWERRRE | —8H
WEEIN  NEBE2024F12A31ALLE
EREZXREHRAH  RKATREEM
M B EM R E R — 5 ULE
EEABUREARQIRTMEAMEAR
BYRONEEZNSNWEFE - T
BEEEH T AHESENEBR18EUT
B ¥ ZERTAERURBE AR THE
MEMEAEBHRARERESSRD
TEEMAZERER -

EERERBRENGRERBOES

MRIERERMEESEN > BE2024F12
AS1BLEE BEERERRRUER
AMEAEEERELERBRTEESLE
R CERTEEER

FERSE
2024 Annual Report

103



104

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

We have received annual written confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, consisting of Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping, ZY NP
Ltd., NP United Holding Ltd. and SP NP Ltd. of the compliance with
the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition by such Controlling
Shareholders and their close associates.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
December 31, 2024 based on the information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that our Controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As of the date of this annual report, the Company has not issued any
convertible bonds.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As of the date of this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any loan agreement which contain covenants requiring specific
performance of the Controlling Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Among the related party transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
Financial Statements, the following transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that save as disclosed below, the remaining related party
transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company had complied
with the disclosure requirements about the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
details of which are set forth as follows.
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One-off Connected Transaction

On December 9, 2024, Sichuan Xinpai and Xi’an Yanqing entered into
the Third Loan Agreement, pursuant to which, Sichuan Xinpai, as the
lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanqing, as the borrower, a loan facility
in a principal amount of up to RMB500.0 million during the term of this
agreement, at an interest rate equivalent to the one-year LPR plus 20
bps. The initial one year LPR refers to the one-year LPR at the time of
the first withdrawal and if there is a change in the one-year LPR, the
interest rate will be correspondingly adjusted from the first day of the
next month following the effective date of the adjustment.

Prior to the Third Loan Agreement, on May 29, 2024, Sichuan Xinpai
and Xi’an Yanqing entered into the First Loan Agreement, pursuant to
which, Sichuan Xinpai, as the lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanqing,
as the borrower, a loan facility in a principal amount of up to RMB20.0
million during the term of this agreement, at an interest rate equivalent
to the one-year LPR announced in January yearly. Subsequently, on
November 15, 2024, Sichuan Xinpai and Xi’an Yanging further entered
into the Second Loan Agreement, pursuant to which, Sichuan Xinpai,
as the lender, agreed to grant Xi’an Yanqing, as the borrower, a loan
facility in a principal amount of up to RMB2.0 million during the term
of this agreement, at an interest rate equivalent to the one-year LPR
announced in January yearly.

As one of the key projects under the “Pomegranate Plan”, the Company
will fully support the development of “YEAH QING BBQ (/8@ /2R F)”
a catering brand under Xi’an Yanging in terms of capital, technology
and personnel. The financial assistance will significantly enhance
Xi’an Yanging’s financial position and satisfy its working capital
requirements, enabling it to effectively address its development plan for
future expansion. Therefore, it is believed that the financial assistance
lays a solid foundation for the continuous exploration of subsequent
development by Xi’an Yanging, which in turn will further support the
steady expansion of our Group in the entire catering industry and is
beneficial to the Group in the long run.
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Sichuan Xinpai is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company.
Xi’an Yanging is a connected subsidiary of our Company. Therefore,
the First Loan Agreement, the Second Loan Agreement and the
Third Loan Agreement and the transactions thereunder constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of
the First Loan Agreement, the Second Loan Agreement and the Third
Loan Agreement, on an aggregated basis, is more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the transactions thereunder are subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempted from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated December 9,
2024 for details.

Continuing Connected Transactions
1. Renewed Yihai Master Purchase Agreements

The Company and Yihai, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into a new Yihai master purchase agreement
(the “Renewed Yihai Master Purchase Agreement”) on October
17, 2023 for a term of three years commencing from January
1, 2024 to December 31, 2026 (both days inclusive). During the
term of the Renewed Yihai Master Purchase Agreement, the
Group agreed to purchase Haidilao Customized Products and
Yihai Retail Products from Yihai Group and purchase instant
self-serving products from Fuhai.

Yihai is controlled by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping and
thus is our connected person. The transactions under the
Renewed Yihai Master Purchase Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Renewed Yihai Master Purchase
Agreements for the years ending December 31, 2024, 2025
and 2026 are RMB2,880,000,000, RMB3,420,000,000 and
RMB3,990,000,000, respectively. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred by our Group in accordance with the Renewed
Yihai Master Purchase Agreement for the year ended December
31, 2024 was RMB1,840,879,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated October
17, 2023 and the circular of the Company dated November 23,
2023 for details.
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Renewed Jarud Qi Purchase Agreement

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Jarud Qi Haidilao, entered into a new Jarud Qi purchase
agreement (the “Renewed Jarud Qi Purchase Agreement”) on
October 17, 2023 for a term of three years commencing from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026 (both days inclusive),
pursuant to which, Jarud Qi Haidilao agreed to provide fresh lamb
and beef, lamb and beef byproducts and relevant meat products
to our Group.

Jarud Qi Haidilao is wholly-owned by Sichuan Haidilao, a
company indirectly controlled by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu
Ping, and thus a connected person of our Company. Therefore,
the transactions under the Renewed Jarud Qi Purchase
Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Renewed Jarud Qi Purchase
Agreement for the years ending December 31, 2024, 2025
and 2026 are RMB296,895,000, RMB318,694,000 and
RMB318,694,000, respectively. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Renewed Jarud Qi
Purchase Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2024 was
RMB44,338,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated October
17, 2023 for details.
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Renewed Shuhai Agreements

The Company and Shuhai, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into a new warehouse storage and logistics
service agreement (the “Renewed Warehouse Storage and
Logistics Service Agreement”) and a new Shuhai master
purchase agreement (the “Renewed Shuhai Master Purchase
Agreement”, collectively, the “Renewed Shuhai Agreements”)
on October 17, 2023 for a term of three years commencing from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026 (both days inclusive),
pursuant to which Shuhai Group agreed to provide (i) warehousing
facilities and storage services and logistics services in connection
with the Commodity Ingredients and (ii) Processed Ingredients to
our Group.

Shuhai is held as to 42.72% by Leda Haisheng and 26.17% by
Jinghai Investment, both of which are indirectly controlled by Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, and thus a connected person of
our Company. Accordingly, the transactions under the Renewed
Shuhai Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Renewed Warehouse Storage and
Logistics Service Agreement for the years ending December 31,
2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB696,000,000, RMB835,200,000
and RMB1,002,240,000, respectively. The annual caps under the
Renewed Shuhai Master Purchase Agreement for the years ending
December 31, 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB3,251,656,000,
RMB4,534,172,000 and RMB6,167,629,000, respectively. The
aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with the
Renewed Warehouse Storage and Logistics Service Agreement
and the Renewed Shuhai Master Purchase Agreement for the
year ended December 31, 2024 was RMB590,391,000 and
RMB1,402,585,000, respectively.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated October
17, 2023 and the circular of the Company dated November 23,
2023 for details.
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Renewed Shuyun Dongfang Agreements

The Company and Shuyun Dongfang, each for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries, entered into a new master decoration project
management service agreement (“Renewed Master Decoration
Project Management Service Agreement”) and a new master
decoration project general contract service agreement (“Renewed
Master Decoration Project General Contract Service
Agreement”) (collectively, the “Renewed Shuyun Dongfang
Agreements”) on October 17, 2023 for a term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026 (both
days inclusive). Pursuant to the Renewed Master Decoration
Project General Contract Service Agreement, Shuyun Dongfang
agreed to provide general project contract services, including but
not limited to, selecting and engaging subcontractors to carry
out the decoration work and purchasing plants and equipment
for the projects, to our Group in connection with the interior
decoration and renovation of our restaurants located in mainland
China. Pursuant to the Renewed Master Decoration Project
Management Service Agreement, Shuyun Dongfang agreed to
provide decoration project management and related services,
including but not limited to, selecting and supervising the design
and construction subcontractors, to our Group in connection with
the interior decoration and renovation of our restaurants located
in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Regions.

Shuyun Dongfang is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Shuoyi (Mr.
Zhang Yong’s brother) and his spouse, Ms. Wang Dongyu, and
thus a connected person of our Company. Accordingly, the
transactions under the Renewed Shuyun Dongfang Agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Renewed Master Decoration Project
General Contract Service Agreement for the years ending
December 31, 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB2,699,640,000,
RMB2,809,120,000 and RMB2,945,340,000, respectively. The
annual caps under the Renewed Master Decoration Project
Management Service Agreement for the years ending December
31, 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB5,000,000, RMB6,000,000 and
RMB5,000,000, respectively.
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The aggregate transaction amount in accordance with the
Renewed Master Decoration Project General Contract Service
Agreement and the Renewed Master Decoration Project
Management Service Agreement for the year ended December
31, 2024 was RMB264,063,000 and RMB61,000, respectively.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated October
17, 2023 and the circular of the Company dated November 23,
2023 for details.

Renewed Master Human Resource Management Service
Agreement

The Company and Weihai Holding (each for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries), entered into a new Master Human Resource
Service Agreement (the “Renewed Master Human Resource
Service Agreement”) on October 17, 2023 for a term of three
years commencing from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026
(both days inclusive), pursuant to which, Weihai Group agreed to
provide human resource management and consulting services,
including but not limited to, employee recruitment services,
training and restaurant performance assessment services, labour
outsourcing services, SaaS system services and other customized
human resource management consulting services, to our Group.

Weihai Holding is held as to approximately 36.95% by ZY WH
LTD. and approximately 13.00% by SP WH LTD., which are
indirectly controlled by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping,
and thus a connected person of our Company. Therefore, the
transactions under the Renewed Master Human Resource Service
Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the Renewed Master Human Resource
Management Service Agreement for the years ending December
31, 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB464,500,000, RMB569,750,000
and RMB673,590,000, respectively. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Renewed Master Human
Resource Management Service Agreement for the year ended
December 31, 2024 was RMB123,297,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated October
17, 2023 for details.
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The Company has followed the policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the above continuing
connected transactions conducted for the year ended December
31, 2024.

The auditor of the Group has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that
nothing had come to their attention that caused them to believe
the continuing connected transactions: (i) had not been approved
by the Board; (ii) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (jii) had exceeded the caps.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the above continuing connected transactions were entered into
by the Group: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (jii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement (including the pricing principle and
guidelines set out therein) governing them and on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has designated a team of senior management from
business operation, legal, risk control and finance departments
and Board office to monitor the continuing connected transactions
and ensure that the continuing connected transactions with the
abovementioned connected persons are on arm’s length basis
and that the annual caps are not exceeded. Such team of senior
management continuously traces and regularly monitors the
progress of the continuing connected transactions and reports
to management of the Company. They review the continuing
connected transactions with the finance department to ensure
that annual caps are not exceeded. They will also communicate
with the Audit Committee, management and the Board, monthly
or as needed, to report the progress of the continuing connected
transactions, and request for approval of new changes of
existing transaction terms. The heads of different departments
of the Company will be informed on a periodic basis in relation
to the terms and pricing policies of the continuing connected
transactions as well. The Audit Committee has also assigned
the independent internal audit team the task to ensure that the
Company’s internal control measures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions remain effective and complete. With
these measures, the independent non-executive Directors could
therefore assess and give the confirmations in the preceding
paragraph.

Save for disclosed above, we have not entered into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2024.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Shanghai Kiwa has entered into the various agreements which
together constitute the Contractual Arrangements on November 1,
2019, which are designed to provide the Company with the right and
power to control over and the right to enjoy the economic benefits
in the Prohibited Businesses (as defined below) and the Restricted
Businesses (as defined below) and other ancillary businesses operated
by Kiwa Group.
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The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic
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A brief description of each of the specific agreements that comprise
the Contractual Arrangements entered into by the WFOE and Shanghai
Kiwa is set out as follows:

(a)

Exclusive Management Consulting Service Agreement

Under the exclusive management consulting service agreement
(the “Exclusive Management Consulting Service Agreement”)
entered into between Shanghai Kiwa and the WFOE, in exchange
for an annually service fee, Shanghai Kiwa has agreed to engage
the WFOE as its exclusive provider of management consulting
services, including the following services: (i) assisting in
developing management model and business plan; (ii) assisting in
the standardization and establishment of information management
system;(iii) assisting in developing market development plan;
(iv) providing services in relation to market research, market
survey, consulting and business judgment, and providing market
information; (v) assisting in establishing operation process
management system; (vi) providing management and consulting
services in relation to, amongst others, daily operations, finance,
investments, debts, human resource and internal informatization;
(vii) management, development, upgrading, updating and
maintenance of office application system and network system;
(viii) assisting in developing maintenance plans for advertisers
and media clients and assisting Shanghai Kiwa in maintaining
the relationships with such clients; (ix) providing advice and
suggestions on the assets and business operations of Shanghai
Kiwa; (x) providing advice and suggestions on the negotiation,
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(b)

signing and performance of the material contracts of Shanghai
Kiwa; (xi) providing advice and suggestions on mergers and
acquisitions or other company expansion plans; (xii) providing
information technology supports; (xiii) providing staff training
services to relevant employers of Shanghai Kiwa; and (xiv) other
relevant services as negotiated between the parties from time to
time.

Under the Exclusive Management Consulting Service Agreement,
the service fee consists of 100% of the total consolidated profit of
Shanghai Kiwa, after the deduction of any accumulated deficit of
any members of Kiwa Group in respect of the preceding financial
year(s), tax and other statutory contributions (if applicable).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the WFOE may adjust the scope
and amount of services fee and Shanghai Kiwa shall accept such
adjustments. The WFOE shall calculate the service fee (if any) on
an annually basis and issue a corresponding invoice to Shanghai
Kiwa.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Under the exclusive option agreement (the “Exclusive Option
Agreement”) entered into among Shanghai Kiwa, the WFOE
and Mr. Liang Yangbing (%), the registered shareholder of
Shanghai Kiwa (the “Registered Shareholder”), the WFOE shall
have the rights to require the Registered Shareholder to transfer
any or all his equity interests in Shanghai Kiwa to the WFOE and/
or a third party designated by it, in whole or in part at any time
and from time to time, for considerations equivalent to the lowest
price as permitted by PRC laws. The Exclusive Option Agreement
shall remain effective unless terminated by all parties in writing or
in the event that the entire equity interests held by the Registered
Shareholder in Shanghai Kiwa have been legally transferred to the
WFOE or its appointee(s).
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(c)

(d)

Equity Pledge Agreement

Under the equity pledge agreement (the “Equity Pledge
Agreement”) entered into among the WFOE, the Registered
Shareholder and Shanghai Kiwa, the Registered Shareholder
has agreed to pledge all his equity interests in Shanghai Kiwa to
the WFOE as a security interest to guarantee the service fee and
interest to be paid to WFOE under the Contractual Arrangements,
the performance of contractual obligations and the payment
of outstanding debts. The pledge in respect of Shanghai Kiwa
shall take effect upon the completion of registration with the
relevant administration for market regulation and shall remain
valid until after (i) all the contractual obligations of the Registered
Shareholder and Shanghai Kiwa under the relevant Contractual
Arrangements have been fully performed and all the outstanding
debts of the Registered Shareholder and Shanghai Kiwa under
the relevant Contractual Arrangements have been fully paid; or (ii)
the entire equity interests held by the Registered Shareholder in
Shanghai Kiwa have been legally transferred to the WFOE or its
appointee(s).

Power of Attorney

The Registered Shareholder has executed a power of attorney
(the “Power of Attorney”). Under the Power of Attorney, the
Registered Shareholder shall irrevocably appoint the WFOE and
its designated persons (including but not limited to the directors
of the WFOE and the Company and their respective successors
and liquidators, excluding the Registered Shareholder himself)
as his attorneys-in-fact to exercise on his behalf, and agreed and
undertook not to exercise without such attorneys-in-fact’s prior
written consent, any and all right that they have in respect of his
equity interests in Shanghai Kiwa. The Power of Attorney shall
remain effective until being terminated in writing by the parties to
it or the entire equity interests held by the Registered Shareholder
in Shanghai Kiwa have been legally transferred to the WFOE or its
appointee(s).

Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into and/or reproduced between our Group
and Shanghai Kiwa during the year ended December 31, 2024. There
was no material change in the Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

(c)

(d)
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For the year ended December 31, 2024, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of the
restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual Arrangements
had been removed. As of December 31, 2024, we had not encountered
interference or encumbrance from any PRC governing bodies in
operating our businesses through Shanghai Kiwa under the Contractual
Arrangements.

The revenue of Shanghai Kiwa was nil for the year ended December 31,
2024.

Reasons for Adopting the Contractual Arrangements

Shanghai Kiwa is principally engaged in the operation of Haidilao
app, which is a social media platform for the Haidilao’s members
and Haidilao related Wechat Mini Program. Functions of the Haidilao
app and Wechat Mini Program mainly consist of: (1) ordering-related
functions such as online ordering and queuing or delivery services;
(2) electronic mall for members to shop online or exchange their
membership points for products; (3) organizing and managing member
activities; (4) other functions such as advertising.

Pursuant to the Administrative Measures of Foreign Investment
Admission (Negative List) 2021 Revision (JMNEREE AR EEHE
HE (BT /AEE) (2024 F fR)) and other relevant regulations, (i) foreign
investments in the businesses of online games operation are
prohibited (the “Prohibited Businesses”); (ii) for foreign investments
in value-added telecommunication business, such as the operation
of electronic mall for members to exchange their membership points
for products, online community function that allows users to post
text, pictures, videos, etc. and comment on information posted by
other users, there is a limit on the proportion of shares held by foreign
investors (the “Restricted Businesses”); (iii) as for other businesses
operated through Haidilao app, such as the operation of electronic
mall for members to shop online, ordering-related functions such
as online ordering and queuing or delivery services, organizing and
managing member activities and advertising, foreign investments are
not prohibited or restricted, that being said, according to the Company,
such businesses are interconnected with each other and are altogether
an integral part of Haidilao app, which share the same database and
cannot be separated.
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Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are certain risks that are associated with the Contractual
Arrangements, including:

The Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing control over and entitlement to the economic interests
in Shanghai Kiwa as direct ownership.

Potential conflicts of interest among WFOE and Shanghai Kiwa
may exist.

The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed.

The WFOE’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests in
Shanghai Kiwa may be subject to various limitations and
substantial costs.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation and
implementation of the Foreign Investment Law.

For details of these risks, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated November 1, 2019.

Our Group has adopted measures to ensure the effective operation
of our Group’s businesses with the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements and our compliance with the Contractual Arrangements,
including:

(@

major issues arising from the implementation and compliance
with the Contractual Arrangements or any regulatory enquiries
from government authorities will be submitted to our Board, if
necessary, for review and discussion on an occurrence basis;

our Board will review the overall performance of and compliance
with the Contractual Arrangements at least once a year; and

our Company will engage external legal advisors or other
professional advisors, if necessary, to assist the Board to review
the implementation of the Contractual Arrangements, review the
legal compliance of WFOE and Kiwa Group to deal with specific
issues or matters arising from the Contractual Arrangements.
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Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the Stock Exchange

Mr. Liang Yangbing, the Registered Shareholder of Shanghai Kiwa,
when entered into the Contractual Arrangements was a director or
chief executive of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Shanghai
Kiwa, being an associate of the Registered Shareholder, was also a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Therefore,
the transactions under the Contractual Arrangements between the
Registered Shareholder or Shanghai Kiwa and the Group constituted
connected transactions of the Company at the subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted,
a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the requirement of limiting
the term of the Contractual Arrangements to three years or less or
appointing an independent financial adviser to explain the reason under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) the requirement of setting an
annual cap for the transactions under the Contractual Arrangements
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules, for so long as the shares of the
Company are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The waiver is subject to the following conditions:

(@ no change without independent non-executive Directors’
approval;

(b) no change without independent Shareholders’ approval;

(c) the Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable our Group
to receive the economic benefits derived by Kiwa Group;

(d) on the basis that the Contractual Arrangements provide
an acceptable framework for the relationship between our
Company and its subsidiaries in which our Company has direct
shareholding, on the one hand, and Kiwa Group, on the other
hand, that framework may be renewed and/or reproduced upon
the expiry of the existing arrangements or in relation to any
existing or new wholly foreign owned enterprise or operating
company (including branch company) engaging in the same
business as that of our Group which our Group might wish to
establish when justified by business expediency, without obtaining
the approval of the Shareholders, on substantially the same terms
and conditions as the existing Contractual Arrangements; and

(e) we will disclose details relating to the Contractual Arrangements
on an on-going basis.

For further details of the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange, please
refer to and the announcement of the Company dated November 1,
2019.
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Annual Review by the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
the Auditor

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Contractual Arrangements and confirmed that:

(@) the transactions carried out during the year ended December
31, 2024 had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements;

(b) no dividends or other distributions had been made by Shanghai
Kiwa to the holders of its equity interests which were not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group;

() no new contracts had been entered into, renewed and/or
reproduced between our Group and Shanghai Kiwa during the
year ended December 31, 2024; and

(d) the Contractual Arrangements had been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of our Group, are on normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of our Group and our Shareholders as a whole.

Our auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe the transactions
carried out pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements during the year
ended December 31, 2024: (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii)
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing such transactions; and (iii) any dividends
or other distributions have been made by Shanghai Kiwa to the holder
of its equity interest which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or its connected entity (within the meaning
of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, and subsisting during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above, no contract of significance was entered into between the
Company, or one of its subsidiary companies, and any of its Controlling
Shareholders or subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed in 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 164 of the Articles of Association and subject to
Cayman Islands Companies Act, each Director shall be indemnified, out
of the assets of the Company, against all losses or liabilities incurred
or sustained by him/her as a Director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/her favor, or
in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2024.
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REMUNERATION POLICY, DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
PENSION SCHEME

As of December 31, 2024, we had 137,178 employees. The
remuneration of our employees includes salaries and allowances. We
provide training to our staff to envision their career paths and growth
potential with us. We reward hard work by offering a highly mobile
promotion system and a piece-rate compensation system, with wages
clearly defined based on the units of specific work performed.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to the Directors.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year ended
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 12 to the Financial Statements.

In accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group
has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined contribution plans
organized by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The Group also provides social insurance, including, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, medical insurance for the
employees of the Group.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) has been
adopted by the Company on October 8, 2019 and amended on May
20, 2021. Pursuant to the scheme rule of the Share Award Scheme,
the award shares will be satisfied by (i) existing Shares to be acquired
by the trustee on the market, and/or (ii) new Shares to be allotted and
issued to the trustee.

Principal Terms of the Share Award Scheme
(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognize the
contributions by any individual, being an employee, a director, a
consultant or an adviser or any member of the Group in order to
incentivize them to remain with the Group or to provide consulting
services to the Group, and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group.
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Eligible Person

Eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme include any
individual, being an employee, a director, a consultant or an
adviser of any member of the Group who the Board of its
delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.

Remaining Life

Unless terminated earlier by the Board in accordance with the
scheme rules, the Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from
October 8, 2019 to the business day immediately prior to the 10th
anniversary of the date of October 8, 2019, after which period
no further Awards shall be granted, and thereafter for so long as
there are any non-vested award shares granted hereunder prior
to the expiration of the Share Award Scheme, in order to give
effect to the vesting of such award shares or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the scheme rules of
the Share Award Scheme. The remaining life of the Share Award
Scheme was approximately four years and seven months.

Maximum number of Shares to be Granted

The total number of the Award Shares underlying all grants made
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed in total five
percent (5%) (i.e. 265,000,000 Shares representing approximately
4.75% of the total issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of
the Company as of date of this annual report) of the Company’s
issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) as at the October
8, 2019. As at the date of this report, a total of 159,000,000
Shares has been issued pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
representing approximately 2.85% of the total issued shares
(excluding treasury shares) of the Company. As of the date of
this annual report, 106,000,000 Shares are available for issuing
underlying awards under the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 1.90% of the total number of Shares in issue
(excluding treasury shares) as of the same date.
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Maximum number of Shares to be Granted to Each Individual

The Company shall not make any further grant of awards to
grantees which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
and any other share schemes (excluding award Shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme)
granted to such person to exceed 1% of the Company’s issued
share capital (excluding treasury shares), unless Shareholders
approve a further refreshment of the limit or Shareholder approval
is obtained in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Purchase Price

The purchase price (if any) shall be such price determined by the
Board or its delegate(s) in their absolute discretion, based on
considerations such as the prevailing closing price of the Shares,
the purpose of the Share Award Scheme and the characteristics
and profile of the grantee, and notified to the grantee in the award
letter. Such room for discretion provides the administrator with
flexibility to stipulate, if necessary, a purchase price for awards,
while balancing the purpose of the Share Award Scheme and the
interests of Shareholders.

Vesting Period

The Board or the committee of the Board or person(s) to which
the Board delegated its authority may from time to time while
the Share Award Scheme is in force and subject to all applicable
laws, determine such vesting criteria and conditions or periods for
the Award to be vested thereunder.
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Details of the awards granted under the Share Award Scheme as
of December 31, 2024 are as follows ™:

B E2024%F128318 » RERSD
REERERB2FBNTO

Number Number
of Shares of Shares
underlying underlying
the unvested the unvested
awards Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed awards
grantedas duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe granted as of
of January 1, Reporting Reporting Reporting  reporting December 31,
Name Position 2024 Period Period Period Period 2024 Date of grant
BE2024% B 2024
1B1HE #12A31H
RUEREB ERHEXREE
12 BRI 1B R REE REE REE REE SRR HEER
®E R BHEE  HRRYE  HREE O BNEE BRER Ri#B RHAH
Directors
£z
Zhang Yong Executive Director 1,987,500 - - - - 1,987,500 May 20, 2021
&E HTES 2021F5H20R
Zhou Zhaocheng Executive Director 1,987,500 - - - - 1,987,500  May 20, 2021
A%k2 HTES 2021F5A208
Li Peng Executive Director 397,500 - - - - 397,500  May 20, 2021
3 HTES 202154208
Song Qing Executive Director 795,000 - - - - 795,000 May 20, 2021
RE HTESE 2021F5H20H
Gao Jie Executive Director 1,987,500 = = = = 1,987,500  May 20, 2021
54 HITES 202155208
Subtotal 7,155,000 - - - - 7,155,000
et
Service Providers 7,950,000 - - - - 7,950,000 May 20, 2021
BB RMEE 2021558208
Employees 143,895,000@ - - - - 143,895,0009  May 20, 2021
3] 2021F5R20H
Total 159,000,000 - - - - 159,000,000
4y

ey A

BEGEGRERAERLS

Gl
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Notes:

(1)  The maximum vesting period of above unvested awards is ten
years from the date of agreement of the vesting conditions by the
Company and the relevant Grantees. The Board has established an
incentive evaluation committee and performance targets guidelines
(mainly including future performance indicators and contributions
to the Group). Whether the awards are vested will be determined
based on when the performance targets will be set by the Board
or the incentive evaluation committee from time to time and
whether the performance targets will be met by the relevant grantee
according to performance targets guidelines. Upon satisfaction of
the relevant vesting conditions, Shares will be transferred to the
Grantees at no consideration. The closing price of the Shares of the
Company immediately before the date of grant was HK$44.43.

(2)  The number of awards also contain awards granted to the former
employees which are not lapsed and outstanding.

Save as disclosed above, no award has been granted or agreed
to be granted, vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award
Scheme throughout the year ended December 31, 2024. The number
of awards available for grant under the scheme mandate as at January
1, 2024 and December 31, 2024 are 106,000,000 and 106,000,000,
respectively. The number of Shares that may be issued in respect
of awards granted under the scheme of the Company during the
Reporting Period (i.e. nil) divided by weighted average number of
Shares in issue (excluding treasury shares) for the Reporting Period is
nil.

POST-IPO SHARE SCHEME (EXISTING SHARES)

The Post-IPO Share Scheme (Existing Shares) (the “2025 Share
Scheme”) was adopted by our Company on February 13, 2025. A
summary of the principal terms of the 2025 Share Scheme is set forth
below:

Purpose
The purpose of the 2025 Share Scheme is:

(@) to provide the Company with a flexible means of remunerating,
incentivizing, retaining, rewarding, compensating and/or providing
benefits to Eligible Participants;

(b) to align the interests of Eligible Participants with those of
the Company and Shareholders by providing such Eligible
Participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company; and
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(c) to encourage Eligible Participants to contribute to the long-term
growth and profits of the Company and to enhance the value of
the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and
Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible Participants

Eligible Participants as determined by the Board or a committee of the
Board or any person(s) deemed appropriate at the sole discretion of the
Board (the “Scheme Administrator”) from time to time shall be eligible
to participate in the 2025 Share Scheme, including:

(@ any person who is an employee (whether full-time or part-time),
director or officer of any member of the Group, including persons
who are granted Awards under the 2025 Share Scheme as an
inducement to enter into employment contracts with any member
of the Group, provided that such person shall not cease to be
an employee in the case of (i) any leave of absence approved by
the relevant member of the Group, provided that no such leave
may exceed 90 calendar days; or (i) any transfer of employment
amongst members of the Group or any successor, and provided
further that such person shall, for the avoidance of doubt, cease
to be an employee with effect from (and including) the date of
termination of his/her employment;

(b) any person who is an employee (whether full-time or part-time),
director or officer of (i) a holding company of the Company; (ii) any
subsidiary of the holding company of the Company (other than
members of the Group); or (iii) any company which is an associate
of the Company; or

(c) any consultant, advisor, distributor, contractor, customer, supplier,
agent, business partner, franchiser, joint venture business partner
or service provider of the Group or any Related Entity, who as
determined by the Scheme Administrator in its sole discretion has
contributed or will contribute to the growth of the Group.

No person who is resident in a place where the grant, acceptance
or exercise of an Award pursuant to the 2025 Share Scheme is not
permitted under the laws and regulations of such place or where, in
the view of the Scheme Administrator, compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary or expedient to
exclude such person, shall be entitled to participate in the 2025 Share
Scheme and such person shall therefore not be an Eligible Participant
for the purposes of the 2025 Share Scheme.
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Maximum Number of Shares and Shares Available for Issue

The total number of Shares which may be granted under the 2025
Share Scheme is 278,700,000 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”),
which shall consist of existing Shares only. For the avoidance of
doubt, no new Shares (including treasury shares) shall be issued by
the Company pursuant to the 2025 Share Scheme. Accordingly, as of
the date of this annual report, the number of Shares available for issue
under the 2025 Share Scheme and the percentage of the issued Shares
(excluding treasury shares) of our Company that it represents were
both nil. The total number of Shares which are available for grant under
the 2025 Share Scheme is 278,700,000 Shares which shall consist of
existing Shares only as referred to under Rule 17.01(1)(b) of the Listing
Rules.

Shares underlying the Awards which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme Rules shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time,
with the prior approval of the Board or the Scheme Administrator and
subject to compliance with any additional requirements set out in the
Listing Rules.

Maximum Entitlement of Eligible Participants

Where any grant to an Eligible Participant would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued in respect of all share options and awards
granted to such person, pursuant to the 2025 Share Scheme and
any other schemes adopted by the Company (excluding share
options or awards lapsed in accordance with relevant scheme rules),
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the total issued and outstanding
Shares of the Company in issue (excluding treasury shares) at the
relevant time, such grant must be separately approved by Shareholders
in general meeting with such Eligible Participant and their close
associates (or associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected
person) abstain from voting.
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Exercise Period of Share Options

For Awards which take the form of share options, the Scheme
Administrator shall in their absolute discretion determine and notify the
Grantee in the award letter the Exercise Period for such share options,
provided that the Exercise Period shall in any event be not longer than
ten years from the Grant Date. A share option shall lapse automatically
and shall not be exercisable (to the extent not been exercised) on the
expiry of the tenth anniversary from the Grant Date.

Vesting of Awards

The Scheme Administrator may in respect of each Award and subject
to all applicable laws, rules and regulations determine such vesting
criteria and conditions or periods for vesting of Awards in its sole and
absolute discretion. The relevant Vesting Date of any Award shall be
set out in the award letter.

Unless the Board or the Scheme Administrator determines otherwise
at its absolute discretion, the Vesting Date in respect of any Award
shall be not less than 12 months from the Grant Date, provided that for
Employee Participants the Vesting Date may be less than 12 months
from the Grant Date (including on the Grant Date) in the following
circumstances:

(@ grants of “make whole” share awards to new Employee
Participants to replace share awards such Employee Participants
forfeited when leaving their previous employers;
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(e)

grants to an Employee Participant whose employment is
terminated due to death or disability or event of force majeure;

grants of Awards which are subject to the fulfilment of
performance targets (if any) as set out in the award letter;

grants of Awards the timing of which is determined by
administrative or compliance requirements not connected with the
performance of the relevant Employee Participant, in which case
the Vesting Date may be adjusted to take account of the time
from which the Award would have been granted if not for such
administrative or compliance requirements;

grants of Awards with a mixed vesting schedule such that the

Awards vest evenly over a period of 12 months; or

grants of share options and share awards with a total vesting and
holding period of more than 12 months.

If a Vesting Date is not a Business Day, such Vesting Date shall, subject
to any trading halt or suspension of dealings in the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, be deemed to be the next Business Day immediately
thereafter.

Amount Payable on Application or Acceptance of Awards

The Scheme Administrator may determine at their absolute discretion
the amount (if any) payable on application or acceptance of an Award
and the period within which any such payments must be made, which
amounts (if any) and periods shall be set out in the award letter.
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Basis of Determining the Exercise Price of Share Options and
Purchase Price of Share Awards

For Awards which take the form of share options, the Scheme
Administrator shall in their absolute discretion determine and notify the
Grantee in the award letter: the exercise price for such share options,
provided that the exercise price shall in any event be no less than the
higher of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the Grant Date; and

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the Grant Date.

unless the Board or the Scheme Administrator determines otherwise in
its absolute discretion.

For Awards which take the form of share awards, the purchase price
for such share awards shall be such price determined by the Scheme
Administrator in their absolute discretion and notified to the Grantee in
the award letter. For the avoidance of doubt, the Scheme Administrator
may determine the purchase price to be at nil consideration.

Remaining Life of the Scheme

The 2025 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date, being February 13, 2025,
and ending on the 10th anniversary of the Adoption Date (the “Scheme
Period”), after which no further Awards will be granted under the
Scheme, and thereafter for so long as there are any unvested Awards
granted prior to the expiration of the Scheme Period, in order to give
effect to the vesting of such Awards or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme Rules. The remaining life
of the 2025 Share Scheme is nine years and ten months.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the respective percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers in aggregate was 11.0% and 25.8%. Our largest supplier was
Shuhai Group, second largest supplier was Yihai Group.

As a restaurant chain, we have a large and diverse customer base. Our
revenue derived from our five largest customers accounted for less
than 5% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had a material interest in our five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

With respect to the US$600 million 2.150% 2026 Senior Notes, the
Company made an on-market repurchase of the 2026 Senior Notes
in the principal amount of US$11,500,000 for a consideration of
US$10,795,120 in April 2024.

As of December 31, 2024, such repurchased 2026 Senior Notes has
been cancelled and a total of US$285,480,000 principal amount of the
2026 Senior Notes remained outstanding.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company’s issued share capital included
159,000,000 ordinary shares held by the trust established under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme. The trust was established to hold
shares for the benefit of participants under the Share Award Scheme.
As the trust acts solely as a custodian of the shares, these shares are
presented as treasury shares in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, the
Company did not hold any other treasury shares.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities (including sale of treasury shares) during the Reporting
Period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have been
made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report.

Our employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of our Group, have also been subject to the Model Code for the
securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by our employees was noted by the Group during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had applied the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting
Period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2024 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
certified public accountants.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND RECORD DATE
For AGM:

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, May 14, 2025 to Monday, May 19, 2025, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to
attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Monday, May 19, 2025.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 13, 2025.

For the entitlement of receiving dividend:

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Friday, May 23, 2025 to Wednesday, May 28, 2025, both days inclusive,
in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to the final
dividend. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, May
28, 2025, will be entitled to the final dividend. In order to be eligible
to be entitled to the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, May 22, 2025.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yong

Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, March 25, 2025

Directors’ Report

EEERE

TEHEBFREXTFERLEAY
BRRRBFAEMS :

RATGHR2025F5 8148 (B8=) &
2025519 (EH—) (BHEEEM
H)EEHERMDBEERETE  UEE
EEMBEBN2025E5819R (EH
—)ETWRREFABINE LREMN
BRR - BREGEREERRBFEAEL
RELRE FERPFXHEREBER
ERBFERE - BN2025F58138 (2
BHZ) TH4RS0DAIAR AN B 2 BB
BEELIERBPRESFZTERLD
7 it AEBEFERFKERI18HES
FFRLT7HE1712-1716554 -

BRAWERSER

ARRATIFENR2025F5 8230 (EHH)
EF2025F58280 (EH=) (BEER
ME) EERERDBEERFE Uk
ERERWECR AR E MR - 20255
5H28H (EH=) 8 £BEEERIFZ
AATBRREBMPIRER - S EEWECK
HRE - AFEERRERIRKE E’Jé
B FERFXHEREERERBF
=& AR2025F 58220 (£ ,HHP_TI)T
FABR30DBIAR NN B 2B BHEHFE
EEBPREEZTERLQT tﬂziﬂ%
EBEFERKERI8IFSMANT
B1712-1716 954 ©

EEESm

RE

EFeTE

&8 2025 3H25H

R
2024 Annual Report

133



134

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR R

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HAIDILAO INTERNATIONAL
HOLDING LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haidilao
International Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to 268,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

REER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, BAREGTETESTERBEEEAE R
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B¥AHBHEAEMBRERRNEXZEH

K

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in EWNEE BEEEEREBRSRSUE
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a HERKFHEEEZEREETREEZSSE
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 1 - ZZFASHNHSEHIEHEBNE

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

EEER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets in restaurants

BERBHYFE - BERREUR CEHESERE

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, the management
of the Group has conducted impairment assessment
by estimating the recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for restaurants (each restaurant of the Group is
identified as a cash generating unit (“CGU”)) with
indications of impairment and indications that the
impairment loss recognized in prior years may no
longer exist or may have decreased as at December
31, 2024. As at December 31, 2024, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets were RMB3,319,749,000 and
RMB3,018,798,000, respectively.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENELZMMEEREEASER

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in restaurants
included the following:

EEREBYE  BERRBUREAEEEREETHE
SIRFEETHEE

° Obtaining the list of restaurants identified by the
management with indications of impairment and
indications that the impairment loss recognized
in prior years may no longer exist or may have
decreased (the “Relevant CGUs”), and testing the
completeness of the list based on the management’s
basis of identification;

s ESEEEMABNNFERETFRERETFRERANBE
FERINAEBEIETIBFENTRERINER
(THEREELEN]) 8 - wlEREEEREE
MEBEERETE

° Comparing on a sample basis, the carrying amounts
with the recoverable amounts of the restaurants not
identified by the management with indications of
impairment to identify any further restaurants with
indications of impairment other than those identified
by the management;

s EMEEESEEEARRNNFERETRNERNR
EEE AU E S FEAALLE - LU — SRR BT E Pt
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Key audit matter

EEER

The recoverable amount of each restaurant is mainly
determined by the management based on the value-
in-use calculation of each restaurant with indications
of impairment or indications that the impairment loss
recognized in prior years may no longer exist or may
have decreased. The value-in-use model involves
significant management estimation and judgement,
in particular in determining certain key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecasts.

FEEBNTUDSRTEHEEERBEFEREIR
FERERANBEFERINBRESETENBR
EHAEERINZTERNEABEAETUEE -
FREERESREASEBMGLGTRAL BT
BERERETMIRMANE T EEZMERE -

We identified the impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets in restaurants as
a key audit matter because of the significance of the
balances on the consolidated statement of financial
position at December 31, 2024 and the significant
degree of estimates made by the management in
determining the recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

HRERE N2024F 12 B31 A2 &G 8 B KRB
EEMNREEEBEMGITREENE  BMERRELU
REAEREETMHCDSEEETERE  EZSBEBEY
¥ BERREUREAREERBER ABEST
EI1F o

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENELZNMMEEREEAER

Understanding controls relevant to our audit in relation
to verification and authorization of inputs to the value-
in-use calculation of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the Relevant CGUs;

THRETENETEENESEE  SEYEEREE
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Comparing on a sample basis, the key assumptions
used in the value-in-use calculation to historical
performance, the performance of the Group’s
other restaurants in the same region and relevant
improvement plans, if applicable;

BMEEESTECRAEEMANEIRERREBER
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Selecting samples to compare the discount rates
applied in value-in-use calculation for the Relevant
CGUs with the acceptable ranges calculated by our
internal valuation professionals; and

BREMEUSHERERESESCEUEREERAER
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Checking on a sample basis, the arithmetic accuracy
of value-in-use calculation of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of the Relevant
CGUs.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LUNG, Kwok Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 25, 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeBERHEM2ERER
For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12A31ALLFE

For the year ended December 31,

BE12A3HLEE
Notes 2024 2023
Fitet 20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TTT
Revenue O 5 42,754,687 41,453,348
Other income Ht A 6 635,651 940,781
Raw materials and consumables used EMER SRR AR (16,211,077) (16,946,214)
Staff costs ETHA (14,113,263) (13,039,844
Rentals and related expenses HeREREAX: (425,543) (361,903)
Utilities expenses KEMX (1,465,696) (1,374,307
Depreciation and amortization EREH (2,558,496) (2,945,399)
Travelling and communication expenses EfRRBARS (257,408) (204,302)
Other expenses Hihpx 7 (1,864,070) (1,611,015)
Share of results of associates PR D REE 56,897 53,372
Share of result of a joint venture EEEEEXE (5,122) (7,509)
Other gains and losses HithEm K EiE 8 352,173 227,494
Finance costs g 5% 9 (274,678) (351,430)
Profit before tax P T i A 6,624,055 5,833,072
Income tax expense PrigHipx 10 (1,923,777) (1,337,673)
Profit for the year ERiEH 11 4,700,278 4,495,399
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hitn2mlk s (F¥x)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BAEEHYEZEEMER :
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments 122 A EFTAE M2 E KR
at fair value through other comprehensive income BRI ARENARERSE 174,076 102,609
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HETRETTEZBEN
profit or loss: R :
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBNEBELEERZER
foreign operations 20,792 (38,930)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates,  FE{LEFE A R E b2 EKE -
net of related income tax HREBEREH (22) 75
20,770 (38,855)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMpEERE 194,846 63,754
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENBEE 4,895,124 4,559,153
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEeBEERHEME2ERER
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

For the year ended December 31,

BE12A3HLEE
Notes 2024 2023
i3 2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: UT ATEEERRF (58)
Owners of the Company ARRHEEA 4,708,084 4,499,080
Non-controlling interests iR (7,806) (3,681)
4,700,278 4,495,399
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to: ST A+ BE{E 2 TE UkE (Fixc) 48 :
Owners of the Company ARRHEEA 4,902,930 4,562,834
Non-controlling interests iR (7,806) (3,681)
4,895,124 4,559,153
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
Basic (RMB) R (AR 15 0.87 0.83
Diluted (RMB) B8 (\RER) 15 0.87 0.83

BRGEERERBRAL A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at December 31, 2024

R2024%12A31H

As at December 31,

N12A31H
Notes 2024 2023
Firat 20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TR
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 16 3,319,749 3,921,154
Right-of-use assets FRREEE 17 3,018,798 3,461,284
Goodwill BE 84,845 84,845
Other intangible assets HinB &= 18 52,198 73,690
Interests in associates g N\ A s 19 179,959 295,184
Interest in a joint venture AR EER - 8,336
Deferred tax assets ERFIBEE 20 602,527 617,029
Other financial assets HitemEE 21 1,981,265 947,489
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAABSABRNERERE 25 17,227 13,433
Financial assets at fair value through BAAEF A2 ERGEN
other comprehensive income SRIEE 22 323,929 149,853
Rental deposits HE%ke 174,430 195,539
Pledged/restricted bank deposits B/ ZRERTER 26 2,172 2,123
9,757,099 9,769,959
Current Assets REEE
Inventories RE 23 1,060,641 1,074,627
Trade and other receivables and prepayments ESREMERFEREMHE 24 1,517,431 2,028,657
Amounts due from related parties FEUBERE 5 0B 42 274,395 397,632
Other financial assets HiemEE 21 964,975 1,255,082
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAABSABRNERERE 25 1,139,998 778,745
Rental deposits AERS 70,244 25,848
Security deposits for other borrowing HitfENRES - 5,060
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BHEE / ZRERTER 26 371,676 11,373
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRES 26 7,474,820 9,330,015
12,874,180 14,907,039
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHENEE 35 149,978 =
13,024,158 14,907,039
FERE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBAARR T
As at December 31, 2024
M2024F12A31H

As at December 31,

N12A31H
Notes 2024 2023
Biret 2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT
Current Liabilities RBaR
Trade payables ESEMRE 27 1,796,362 1,859,438
Other payables HitETFIE 28 2,246,186 2,134,231
Amounts due to related parties FE(SERM 5 FR0R 42 373,495 360,721
Long term bonds REES 29 45,308 44,266
Dividend payable EARE 3,805 3,805
Tax payable FEIHE 620,244 379,016
Lease liabilities HEEE 30 888,821 933,093
Bank borrowings BITER 31 97,549 618,898
Other borrowing HAipfEH - 17,014
Contract liabilities BNaE 32 938,400 859,066
Provisions B 10,867 32,264
7,021,037 7,241,812
Liabilities associated with assets classified as HYBEABELENEERBN
held for sale 8E 35 82,784 -
7,103,821 7,241,812
Net Current Assets RBEEFE 5,920,337 7,665,227
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEGBATHER 15,677,436 17,435,186
Non-current Liabilities ERBERE
Long term bonds REES 29 2,027,867 2,076,067
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 20 106,144 210,282
Lease liabilities HESR 30 3,108,701 3,614,744
Provisions B 17,228 17,153
5,259,940 5,918,246
Net Assets BEFE 10,417,496 11,516,940

144 BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRREK
As at December 31, 2024
M2024F12A31H

As at December 31,

N12A31H
Notes 2024 2023
Biret 2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT

Capital and Reserves BARRGE
Share capital R 34 183 183
Reserves ] 10,433,611 11,526,447
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRNRHEE AELES 10,433,794 11,526,630
Non-controlling interests FERER (16,298) (9,690)
Total Equity 1 35105 10,417,496 11,516,940

The consolidated financial statements on pages 141 to 268 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March
25, 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Gou Yiqun
RIBKEE
DIRECTOR
EE

EEECN2025F325 B ER B
TIZHNE141 2268 H 2 58 B R
R UIATIHALRAEEE

Li Peng
Z=H
DIRECTOR
EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERESER

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG TN
Shares held
under Fair value
share through other Non-
Share award Share ~ Merger comprehensive Translation  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  scheme  premium  reserve income reserve reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal interests Total
RfER BAREHA
HEET LT
B dRRe  BBEE  AHEE MeE  ASRE  dRRE  REE g EERER )
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETT ARETT AREFT AREFT  ARETR ARMIR ARMIR ARMIR ARMIR AREIR ARETR
Notei
(W)
As at January 1, 2023 RN23E1A1R 183 (5) 5613428 (6,645) - (15726 552043 1499900 7443187 12905 7,456,002
Proft o) forthe e iR (58) - - - - - - L0000 49080 (6B 4495309
Other comprehensive income Eft2ENg
(evpense) (BER) - - - - 12600 (38855) - - B - B
Total comprehensive income ERZENE
fexpense) for e year (7% 48 - - - - ) L0048 (6N 455918
Capitalinjection from non-contoling R BRE&
shareholders - - - (4,000) - - - U6 1% (19821) 315
Acquistion of asubsidiary under BRI
common control (Note f} HBAE (ki) - - - b6 - - - - 69 - 696
Appropriaion of statutory reserve B EEE - - - - - - 9% (589,092) - - -
Dividends recognized as ERRARNRS
distrbuton (Note 14) (izt14) = - 5379 - - - - - 37 - 379
Others Efp = - 47244 - - - - 51 47,29 907 48,202
As at December 31, 2023 R023%12531F 183 (5) 5,106,874 (3,669) 102609  (254581) 1,142,035 5433184 11,526,630 (9,690) 11,516,940
Prft o) forthe yer g (58) - - - - - - - ATR0GH 4TOB0M (185 4700278
Qther comprehensive income B2 kG - - - - 17400 20,770 - - 104846 - 104846
Total comprehensive income ER2ElE (FR)
(expense) for the year a8 - - - - 174076 2,110 - 4708084 4902,930 (7.806) 4,895,124
Appropriation of statutory BliTaE
resenve - - - - - - 53622 (536,222) - - -
Dividends recognized as distroution - B2 AZRAKS
(Note 14) (Hizk14) - - (4061454) - - - - (1,934,312  (5,995,766) - (5,995,766)
Immediately vesting of WEARRTFHIH
restricted shares granted IRRHIE R
by a subsiclary - - - - - - - - - 1,198 1,198
As at December 31, 204 2R 183 B 0G0 BRY 665 [MBN) IS8T TH0TM 10404 (1629 104749
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

According to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, these
companies are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax
profits, calculated in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to entities established in the PRC, to
the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilized, upon
approval of the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of these companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

On October 31, 2023, Newpai Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a share transfer agreement with Haidilao Japan Co., Ltd. (“Haidilao
Japan”), an entity ultimately controlled by the Controlling Shareholders
(as defined in Note 1). Pursuant to the share transfer agreement, Newpai
Ltd. agreed to purchase all the equity interests in Japan Hai Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of Haidilao Japan, at a consideration of JPY2,600,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB124,769,000). Japan Hai Co., Ltd. was
incorporated on September 15, 2023.

The merger reserve with the amount of RMB6,976,000 represents the
difference between the consideration paid by Newpai Ltd. and the share
capital and share premium of Japan Hai Co., Ltd. at acquisition date.

Mt 5E -

= A B <
MEERRER
For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

REPEARAME ([HE ] DEE
RASEGBEKBLANASEEHA
Bl ZERRAAKESEAREBERARS
Bk B RE MR B S AT R A R B AR
AENBRBRENN10%BREEZER
B EERBESREIEMERN
50% ° AEIEBAMERNL R - SEE B
BH AR R EERIRNZE LT
M EAR25% HKF o

#2023F10A318 » XAANKBEA
A Newpai Ltd. ELIZR IR R (E & R MiEE
1) B $EHIHE B Haidilao Japan Co.,
Ltd. ([Haidilao Japan|) 5] 3 fR {7 &%
& © IRIEMR D EEFE - Newpai Ltd.
[E =88 B M Haidilao JapanHIHE 2 &
Japan Hai Co., Ltd. By 2 2BRRAE - (KB
#2,600,000,000 H T (HERY AR
124,769,0007T) ° Japan Hai Co., Ltd.
sRAA2023F9H15H

SOHEBARY6,976,000 T AN EE B
HiNewpai Ltd.ZfFH{X{EELJapan Hai
Co., Ltd. (B A K B A7 B 2 BV ZE 58 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—PAN D ~ =1
FERERER
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

For the year
ended December 31,
HE12A31EHLEE

2024 2023
2024 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Operating activities REEE)
Profit before tax BRI A& R 6,624,055 5,833,072
Adjustments for: BUTSEELRAE
Finance costs BRSNS 274,678 351,430
Interest income FIEUA (382,926) (326,889)
Share of results of associates i N TE (56,897) (53,372)
Share of result of a joint venture e kXA 5,122 7,509
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERRETE 1,808,050 2,178,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEFRE 726,607 730,634
Amortization of other intangible assets Hih L e 23,839 36,554
Net impairment loss recognized (reversed) in R (BE) WREEE
respect of RER
- property, plant and equipment - - BERRE 3,595 4,174)
- right-of-use assets - ERAEEE 9,279 (7,942)
— Interests in associates — REE QAT ER 4,100 =
Expected credit loss on rental deposits HERENEREEEE 2,670 4,978
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - MERSME « Hitt
plant and equipment, other intangible BEEEURKZLASRSG
assets and termination of leases, net HEE (93,853) (43,620)
Gain on disposal of certain restaurant RN T EEERAMBERN
business to franchisees Uz (99,158) -
Net gain arising on financial assets RAREFABRNERERE
at fair value through profit or loss EENWERFEE (194,297) (52,365)
Gain arising from redemption of long term bonds ~ EEEIR B HELRWE (4,405) (788)
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) PE S E1E (lss) F58 62,537 (30,890)
Share-based payment expense Ko ZAHER 1,368 958
Operating cash flows before movements EEELRHAKE
in working capital BHeRE 8,714,364 8,623,306
Decrease in inventories FERD 13,986 67,186
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 R HMEWFIE R AR
receivables and prepayments ER A (38) 511,226 (27,978)
(Increase) decrease in rental deposits HERE (3m) mHd (6,675) 8,786
Decrease (increase) in amounts due PE KBRS 5 FRIE RS ($E0)
from related parties 123,237 (56,237)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B S EARIE OB 1B (63,076) 538,438
Increase in other payables H{th FE{FFRIEIE 10 38,817 653,919
Increase in contract liabilities BHREEEM 79,334 65,525
Decrease in provisions BER D (17,337) (22,029)
Increase in amounts due to related parties FEATRAEE 5 7T E N 12,774 129,781
Cash generated from operations KEFBIRE 9,406,650 9,980,697
Income taxes paid 2SR (1,772,185) (980,347)
Net cash from operating activities RETHAEREFEHE 7,634,465 9,000,350

BRGEERERBRAL A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
T _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

For the year
ended December 31,
HE12A31EHLEE

Investing activities

Interest received from bank deposits

Interest received from other financial assets

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds from redemption of other financial assets
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity

over three months

Placement of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposals of restaurant business

Payments for right-of-use assets

Dividends received from an associate

Funds recovered from the liquidation of a joint

2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T
BREED
BRITERUWERFIE 237,598 205,605
BEMSHEEWEHNFIE 74,594 11,681
BERAALETABRZHN
SRIEE (1,020,900) (622,660)
BEIZENAEFTABEN
EREENFIERIE 858,174 305,742
BEHMEREE (4,171,596) (2,069,613)
FEE H bR E = S fIE 3,464,333 69,630
RERZHA=EANUL
ZIRITERK 3,004,717 8,094,078
ERREIHB=EALL
ZIRITER (1,150,977)  (10,542,504)
BEYE  BERRKRE (1,299,048) (452,410)
HEME - BMERSEE
Fri8sE 175 12,859
EREBEKSNRIE 122,893 —
FRAREEMNR - (170,154)
B —EEE ATRE 168,000 -

BELEERRENES

venture 3,214 -
Payments for rental deposits HEZRESMAR (16,358) (9,980)
Collection of rental deposits WEEERS 1,650 1,352
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMBEREE (10,131) (8,168)
Withdrawal of pledged/restricted bank deposits ~ #HEIC&E# ZREIEITER 10,805 =
Placement of pledged/restricted bank deposits EHEER ZREIBITEMR (368,631) (11,373)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B A RMN
RERMEFEE - (124,769)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTRAESFE (91,488) (5,310,684)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéé‘%

For the year ended December 31, 2024

HE2024F 12831 BILFE

For the year
ended December 31,
HE12A31EHLEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Financing activities MEED
Dividends paid oARE (6,071,486) (553,798)
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (619,668) (3,005,288)
New bank borrowings raised MERRITER 97,080 1,054,490
Collection of security deposits for other borrowing Y [E Efth {& X HI R E & 5,060 -
Repayments of other borrowing EEHMER (16,952) (22,602)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEEE (891,815) (880,634)
Redemption of long term bonds BRI REAES (76,948) (6,422)
Interest paid 2HFE (55,331) (87,793)
Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders JEIZIRIRFKEE - 315
Net cash used in financing activities RS EB TR SR (7,630,060) (3,501,732)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash ReRBALSZEY ORL)
equivalents b )ipe2oi] (87,083) 187,934
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F£#1IR& R EZEEY 6,475,515 6,300,826
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEHNWTE 18,448 (13,245)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRAGRBESZEEY 6,406,880 6,475,515
Represented by: B
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBERRE 7,474,820 9,330,015
Less: bank deposits with original maturity B REEA=@EA UL
over three months ZIRITER 1,067,940 2,854,500
6,406,880 6,475,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on July 14, 2015 under
the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 in Cayman Islands, and the address
of the principal place of business is 7™ Floor, No. 1 Building, No.
398 Yard, Zhongdong Road, Dongxiaokou Town, Changping
District in Beijing, the PRC. The ultimate controlling parties are Mr.
Zhang Yong and his spouse namely Ms. Shu Ping (collectively the
“Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from September 26,
2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are engaged in restaurant operation, delivery business, sales of
condiment products and food ingredients, franchise business and
others mainly located in mainland China and Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan regions.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are recorded using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries in mainland China.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

—RER

RATA2015F 714 B EHEH
EREMERHE1961 FEIZLEH
(RERERIER]) F22E N ANEEM
RALBERRERDT - RATM
F S ETMINEE U A Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
REEE XM AP REH
ETFER/OEAP RIS 1
TETE - RREHSTARELRE
REBRBEHEEzL (GBI ERRK
R e

RATRMDES B2018FE9 826 B
REBBAEXZAERAR L ©

RRABBREEZERLF - HNEBEL
AEERPEAREREBRSBER
EEELE  NEXER  ARAR
BAEE - NBBRMB IR H R -

SARKEZERMEHRKRNIAE
DREEERSEMENABEE
RENEY ((ThEE%R ) S8R - &
B BHRRUARDE R EFEAKRE
MEBARNEEBARE (AR
1253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO IFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on January 1, 2024 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16

BIPR B F R 5 ZE A 52 165R VIR

Amendments to IAS 1

Bl e ERI 1 SRS

Amendments to IAS 1

B g RIS 1 SRS ET

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

BIFRETHERE 79 R BRI SRS 2RI E 75 NERT

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

aEr8E

3k RASFT RO B B B s 3R
Al g st RER

RAEFERFERNE R BEHRE
EREFHEAMBET

RAEAEE  AEBCEHXAERHE
et EAEES MM A S HR2024
F1A1HRARZAEEFEERER
FIEMA T I ERR R EERS
FTERIMEET » LURESR S M IEHR
*:

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERERTHNHEESE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
MENRIETR

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
MBERNRENERBEE

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEEREZ

REERABBRYEREERNST
ZANETHEAEERSNFERB
FFEEZHBRRARRAR Rz
EEEMBRRFE 2 HBELES

=471
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 2.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’ad)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

I 5% B 75 e o R B 55 O 5% I B R B S 3R 5 2 R 5B 7 SR AV RT

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

B PSR B 75 3R 5 2R RSB 9 55 % B PR B A SR S 2R RSB 7 SRRV RT

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BIRR B M5 3R 5 HE RSB 105 R EIPR & 5t E A58 28 3R V185
Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards

B PR B A 3 15 E R = 5T 2E A VS ET
Amendments to IAS 21
EIRR R ET RSB 21 3 IS RT

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

M RAEFTRI B B B B 3
AlE=tERMER (&)

€ 98 B ol R 25 4 A9 5T 8 M R AERT
MBI I RS E RIS R

AEEWRRPEEATIIEEMGE

fed o A B8 09 37 8% 45 IR AS 5T 9 B BR B

B EERS AR

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments?®

TRIT A ERFTENEET

Contracts Referencing Nature — dependent
Electricity®

REEARERNEHERE?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture!

REZHEHBE N RS EECXBNEEHERERA"

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting
Standards - Volume 113

BB RS E ST ERFEENE -E115°

Lack of Exchangeability?

fR= Al R a2

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements*

B PR B A R 5 2E R 55 1855 SRR EY R E

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be L REEEEHIZEHENEE

determined AR &K

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025 2 M2025F1 1 B2 BRRKRHE
EHREEK

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 g 72026F1 A1 B2 BBHEBNE
EHERAEK

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027 @ 1R2027F1 A1 B2 BFEBNE
4K

Except for IFRS 18 mentioned below, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards will have no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements

in the foreseeable future.

BR T~ 32 P 2t B9 B AR B 5 3R 5 R B 58
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO IFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’ad)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. This new IFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in IAS 1, introduces
new requirements to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and
IFRS 7. Minor amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and
IAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard
is expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3.1

3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities (including structured

entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control

is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under IFRS 16 Leases at inception of the
contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component and
are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of certain office premises, quarters and equipment that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Cont’a) 3.2
Leases (Cont’d)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d) 3.2
Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

o a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease (see below for the
accounting policy for “lease modifications”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Cont’a) 3.2
Leases (Cont’d)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
assets.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in
subsidiaries.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities and ultimate costs incurred
for provisions for decommissioning and restoration, the Group
applies IAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities, the provisions
for decommissioning and restoration and the related assets
separately. The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities and provisions for decommissioning and
restoration to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilized and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment other than
freehold lands and renovation in progress as described below
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Renovation in progress are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets
other than freehold lands and renovation in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Impairment on property, plant and equijpment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Impairment on property, plant and equijpment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill (Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Impairment on property, plant and equijpment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand, excluding bank
balances that are subject to regulatory restrictions that result
in such balances no longer meeting the definition of cash;
and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories, representing food ingredients, condiment products
beverages and other materials, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost of inventories are determined on
a weighted average method. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortized cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Cont’a) 3.2
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

()  Amortized cost and interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortized cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d) 3.2
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

(il)y  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortized cost or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including rental
deposits, security deposits for other borrowing, trade and other
receivables, other financial assets, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed on a collective basis for
portfolios of financial instruments that share similar economic risk
characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognized is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(il

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis for certain
rental deposits, amounts due from related parties and
credit-impaired financial assets, or on a collective basis
for portfolios of financial instruments that share similar
economic risk characteristics. Lifetime ECL for certain
trade receivables are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information. For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration past-due status when formulating the

grouping.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss in the “Other
gains and losses” line item as part of the net foreign
exchange gain/(loss);

o For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognized in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value
of financial assets;

o For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income
in the FVTOCI reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit
or loss.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, other borrowing,
long term bonds, amounts due to related parties, trade payables,
dividend payable and other payables are subsequently measured
at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Material accounting policy information (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortized cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in the “Other gains and
losses” line item in profit or loss as part of net foreign exchange
gain/(loss) for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at
the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Contract liability related to the customer loyalty scheme

The contract liability related to the customer loyalty scheme
substantially reflects the amount of revenue attributable to the
award credits earned by the members of the Group under the
customer loyalty scheme. The transaction price is allocated
between the restaurant operation service provided and the
award credits on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
contract liability of the customer loyalty scheme is calculated
based on the stand-alone selling price of unredeemed award
credits and expected redemption rate which are estimated with
reference to the historical experience and data. Any changes
in estimate of expected redemption rate would affect profit or
loss in future years. As at December 31, 2024, contract liabilities
related to the customer loyalty scheme of RMB809,381,000 (2023:
RMB725,844,000) was recognized.
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the
impairment losses recognized in prior years may no longer exist
or may have decreased, the Group has to exercise judgment and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred, circumstances have changed or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assets belong, including allocation of corporate assets when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group
of cash generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets
have been allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rates in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at December 31, 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were RMB3,319,749,000
(2023: RMB3,921,154,000) and RMB3,018,798,000 (2023:
RMB3,461,284,000), respectively, after taking into account the
accumulated impairment losses of RMB438,753,000 (2023:
RMB610,110,000) and RMB218,009,000 (2023: RMB303,443,000)
in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, respectively. Details of the impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed in Note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Determination on discount rates of lease contracts

The Group applies incremental borrowing rates as the discount
rates of lease liabilities, which require financing spread
adjustments and lease specific adjustments based on the relevant
market rates. The assessments of the adjustments in determining
the discount rates involved management judgment, which may
significantly affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets. As at December 31, 2024, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets (excluding prepayments for leasehold lands)
and lease liabilities are RMB2,869,365,000 and RMB3,997,522,000
(2023: RMB3,307,986,000 and RMB4,547,837,000), respectively.

Deferred tax asset

As at December 31, 2024, deferred tax assets of RMB62,360,000
(2023: RMB63,548,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognized on the tax losses
of RMB1,095,406,000 (2023: RMB1,106,919,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realizability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on sufficient taxable profits
will be available in the future or taxable temporary differences are
expected to reverse in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary differences, which is a key source of
estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognized in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives of its property,
plant and equipment in determine the related depreciation charge.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions.

The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are shorter than previously estimated lives, or will write-off
or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.
As at December 31, 2024, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is RMB3,319,749,000 (2023: RMB3,921,154,000).
Details of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in Note 16.
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(i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

During the year, the Group’s revenue which represents the
amount received and receivable, net of discounts and sales
related taxes, from the restaurant operation, delivery business,
sales of condiment products and food ingredients, franchise
business and others, are as follows:

@i)
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For the year
ended December 31,
BE12A31HLLEE

2024 2023
20244 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARET T
Types of services or goods: R e i miEsE ¢
Restaurant operation BREKs 40,880,951 39,612,779
Delivery business INE T 1,253,869 1,041,475
Sales of condiment products and food FARmREMIHE
ingredients 575,140 788,651
Franchise business JIEZES S 16,706 =
Others Hit 28,021 10,443
42,754,687 41,453,348
Timing of revenue recognition: WINFERREF R -
At a point in time AE—RFEE 42,737,981 41,453,348
Over time R—EBREERA 16,706 =
42,754,687 41,453,348

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the
Company, who is identified as the chief operating decision maker
of the Company, in order to allocate resources and to assess
performance, focuses on the operating results of the Group as a
whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment financial information is reviewed. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.

No revenue from individual customer contributing over 10% of
total revenue of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2024 (2023: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. WARDEHER (&)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers () ZHFFEFEHNRA (&

(Cont’d)
The following table set forth the breakdown of the Group’s TREJIERLE B AEERE
revenue during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 2024F K 2023F 12831 HIEEE
and the breakdown of the Group’s non-current assets as at R A BE AR K2 7182024 F K 2023 F
December 31, 2024 and 2023 based on location of operation: 12 A31 A ARKEFREEEHMAE
A
Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
(VPN EREBEE (MIEE)
For the year
ended December 31, As at December 31,
HEZ12A31HLEE W12A31H
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 2023%F 2024 % 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T AR®ETT ARETT
Mainland China PR R R fE 41,254,963 39,980,748 5,973,857 7,113,534
Outside mainland China A Bl ABE LA S 1,499,724 1,472,600 681,692 730,959
42,754,687 41,453,348 6,655,549 7,844,493
Note: it
Non-current assets presented above excluded other financial assets, NEZ2FNFERBEETEEEMER
financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTOCI, rental deposits, BE BRAMMEFTABZNSREE -
pledged/restricted bank deposits and deferred tax assets. REAOABEFAEMEZEKENERE

E SRS SRR SRERGE
FREEHEEE -
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(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers and
revenue recognition policies

The Group principally generates revenue from restaurant
operation, delivery business, sales of condiment products and
food ingredients and franchise business.

Restaurant operation

Revenue from restaurant operation is recognized when a customer
takes possession of the food and pays the bill in the restaurant,
which is when the promised services have been rendered.

The Group operates a customer loyalty scheme through which
award credits are granted to the customers on consuming in the
restaurants or ordering the delivery services, that entitle them
to consume by offsetting the award credits on future purchases
and consumptions in the restaurants. The promise to provide
the right to the customer is therefore a separate performance
obligation. The transaction price is allocated between the
restaurant operation service or delivery service provided and the
award credits on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
stand-alone selling price of each award credit is estimated based
on the right to be given when the award credits are redeemed by
the customer and the likelihood of redemption, as evidenced by
the Group’s historical experience.

Award credits under the customer loyalty scheme are recognized
as contract liabilities when the transaction price for the initial
restaurant services received from the customers. Revenue from
the loyalty scheme is recognized when the award credits are
redeemed by the customer. Revenue for award credits that are
not expected to be redeemed is recognized in proportion to the
pattern of rights exercised by customers.

Proceeds received from the prepaid cards and vouchers issued
by the Group, which can be utilized in the future consumption in
restaurants by the customers are recognized as contract liabilities
and recognized as revenue when utilized by the customers.

(i)

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

WK ST EBE R ()

BEFEHNBHNEERBRARARE

AEFNRATERBERLY -
HNEEHR - ARBREMEELUR
JNIEZES 3

EREEPARETRERYILR
EEXNIRER (2B RAEE
HOARESES ) FERD o

AEBRIUEERDFE - FEUM
REBEERTENERBITEN
BEXRTERIRRE mMETRER
EEBENEER B ARBED
EITIRSE o H It - HRRE AV AR
AERBELBENER - REERE
HEBUNEEEERMIRHER
KRERBIRNMERBERZBRD 2
BEHDE - REERBMBES B
EENREEE L RRBED B
RTHEMNRASEBEERET
HVTE D R T REE AT (A5 o

SEREAFEETNRBESRE
BEWRNREERENI S ERK
KEZADENEE - BOTEME
WAREE R REED T U
e MR SETHBNRBED
ZWATHRIBREE 1T R A RN
L HIHERT o

BAKEBTHRNIRESES
s BEITRAREEREE
KEM  DHRRABENEE TR
EFHBREIA/EA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

5.

(ii)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers and
revenue recognition policies (Cont’d)

Delivery business

The Group also offers food delivery service to the customers who
can order the take-away food through applications of the Group,
third-party aggregators’ platforms or from certain of the Group’s
restaurants. The Group recognizes revenue when control of the
take-away food has transferred, being at the point the customers
receive the take-away food.

Sales of condiment products and food ingredients

For sales of condiment products and food ingredients, revenue
is recognized when control of the relevant goods has been
transferred to the customers.

Advance from customers for which the goods have not been
transferred to customers are recognized as contract liabilities and
recognized as revenue when the relevant goods are delivered.

Franchise business

The Group enters into contracts with customers to grant franchise
license that provides the customers (also referred as “franchisees”)
to operate restaurants under the brand name of “Haidilao” and
provide management services. As franchisor, the Group is also
obliged to develop customary business practice to undertake
restaurant operation such as analyzing consumers’ changing
preferences and implementing cuisine improvements, pricing
strategies, marketing campaigns and operational efficiencies to
support the franchise name. The Group concludes that these
activities are not distinct from the promise to grant franchise
license.

The revenue from franchise business is recognized over time as
the franchisees simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s franchise license and management
services. The sales-based royalty fee is recognized as the
franchisee’s subsequent sales occurs. The revenue relating to the
management services is recognized when the service is provided.

BRGEERERBRAL A
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(iii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. WAERDEBER (&)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance (i) "HREFEFSANFGKENETZ
obligation for contracts with customers X 5B
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance A2024F % 2023F 12 531 H A Bt
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at December 31, ZRRBHUNERNRZER RE
2024 and 2023 and the expected timing of recognizing revenue R0 REK) RFEBHERKA
are as follows: RFRINT :
As at December 31, 2024 As at December 31, 2023
120245127318 120235127318
Customer Prepaid cards Advance Customer  Prepaid cards Advance
loyalty ~ and issued from loyalty and issued from
scheme vouchers customers scheme vouchers customers
g8HES B FR ER L) BAFR EF
;e BEiTES EN itE ERTRS BAR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARET:R
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i) (Note i)
gD (Bt &) (iED) (BissEii)
Within one year —ER 616,987 41,409 3,917 565,256 42,201 5,655
More than one year but within ~ BB —FERFER
two years 192,394 6,994 - 160,588 7,394 -
More than two years BRmE - 76,699 - - 77,972 -
809,381 125,102 3,917 725,844 127,567 5,655
Notes: Ftz

i The customer loyalty points have a valid period between 24 months
to 25 months since the award credits were granted to customers
and can be redeemed anytime within the valid period at customers’
discretion. The amounts disclosed above represented the Group’s
expectation on the timing of redemption made by customers.

ii. The Group issued prepaid cards and vouchers which have
no expiration and can be utilized in the future consumption in
restaurants at customers’ direction. The amounts disclosed above
represented the Group’s expectation on the timing of utilization
made by customers.

SEESE24BAR22EREE
W REREICRTFEFA
ARERBNBEEFRERERR
#o P ENSREIEAER
HESEHRBRNEBHER -

REEBTEERARNENSF
REE  IREFERARERE
RIGHE - LHFTRENSEEE
AEEHEFEHBANEBR

H e

FERE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HibygN
For the year
ended December 31,
HZEZ12A31HLEE
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETFT ARET T
Interest income on: FEWA -
- bank deposits — RITER 275,632 264,794
— other financial assets - HihemEE 98,275 52,411
— rental deposits - HE®RE 9,019 9,245
— financial assets at FVTOCI - RAREFAREMEE
WENEMEE - 439
382,926 326,889
Government grants (Note i) BURHEED (BEEED) 68,713 56,360
Compensation claim income ZEU A 29,570 26,182
Additional tax deduction (Note ii) BIEINETHIRR (BTl - 427,470
Others Hith 154,442 103,880
635,651 940,781
Notes: FMIETE -

i The amounts represent the subsidies received from the local
governments for the Group’s business development. There were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these government
grants in the years that the relevant income was recognized.

ii. The amounts represent the additional input value added tax
deduction, pursuant to the announcement of the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, which became effective
from April 1, 2019 onwards and was terminated as at December 31,
2023.
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7. OTHER EXPENSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

7. HifX

For the year
ended December 31,
BEZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Business support and development EBETFRERMAX

expenses 460,025 240,446
Storage expenses BREEX 382,368 373,100
Daily maintenance expenses HEHEERX 333,570 294,713

Human resource and other consulting ANERRHEMZARL
service expenses 321,935 352,644
Bank charges RITIRIEE 123,761 102,929
Other administrative expenses (Note) HITHRE X (FIEE) 242,411 247,183
1,864,070 1,611,015

Note:

Other administrative expenses mainly include expenses incurred on
employee activities, commercial insurance, conference and other
miscellaneous expenses, which individually are not material to the Group.

BfaE -

HtTBHX T EEFAME TED -
BERE  SRUAREMMIBEREEN
X EREMSHAKELTERX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HitHmKEE

For the year
ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILLEE
2024 2023
2024 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYTT AR¥T T
Net impairment loss (recognized) reversed (R BRI EE R T4
in respect of
— property, plant and equipment (Note 16) — W% - BEREE (EE16) (3,595) 4,174
- right-of-use assets (Note 16) - EAREE (f=E16) (9,279) 7,942
- Interests in associates - REE AR MR (4,100) -
(16,974) 12,116
Expected credit loss on rental deposits HERSNEREEESE (2,670) (4,978)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  MERRZE
equipment, other intangible assets and HttEp &R ARAL
termination of leases, net HEWZFE 93,853 43,620
Gain on disposal of certain restaurant EEE TEEEBHRMERY
business to franchisees s 99,158 -
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain E % (B518) WaF 5 (63,708) 84,633
Net gain arising on financial assets BRANESABENEREE
at FVTPL EE SRR 194,297 52,365
Gain arising from redemption of long term B RAGHFEENRES
bonds (Note 29) (Pf=E29) 4,405 788
Others Hth 43,812 38,950
352,173 227,494
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9. FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

9. MBHE

For the year
ended December 31,
BEZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023

2024 £ 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#ETFT ARET T

Interests on lease liabilities HEEENE 213,345 244,697
Interests on bank borrowings RITERFE 11,987 56,147
Interests on long term bonds RHIBESFIE 48,379 48,623
Interests on other borrowing HiBHFE 260 1,275
Interests charge on provisions BENFISEX: 707 688
274,678 351,430
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FREHR

For the year
ended December 31,
BEZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Current tax: BOEATS IE -
— current year - REE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) — R DEFER
(Te2EFrEH D) 1,672,027 1,070,036
- withholding tax — FEMH 283,510 179,965
— other jurisdictions — Hihm AR 54,143 59,358
2,009,680 1,309,359
— under (over) provision in prior years - BEFERETE (BE)
_PRCEIT — R EFER 926 (8,349)
— other jurisdictions - Hth R AR 2,807 -
3,733 (8,349)
2,013,413 1,301,010
Deferred tax (Note 20) IERERLIE (FfEE20) (89,636) 36,663
1,923,777 1,337,673

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the statutory tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

BRGEERERBRAL A
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is also imposed on dividends
declared and paid to non-PRC resident in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onwards.
As at December 31, 2024, deferred tax liability RMB102,650,000
(2023: RMB190,000,000) was recognized in respect of the
undistributed earnings expected to be distributed in the
foreseeable future with the tax rate of 5%. Deferred tax liabilities
have not been provided for the remaining undistributed earnings
amounting to RMB998,171,000 as at December 31, 2024 (2023:
RMB854,663,000), as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions at 8.25% to 28% (2023:
8.25% to 25%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as no
taxable profit derived from Hong Kong in 2024 and 2023.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

10. FRiSHF (&)

RIELEFESH L B2008F1
B 1 B8R 5 4 E KB A 5 TR
BN EARFEFEERAERK
TRAT B9 IR BB FE OB - 142024
F12831H8 A AFEERIE
BREDROAKADREFIZS%
W ERIAELEHEBEBARYE
102,650,0007C (20234 : AR
190,000,0007T) ° 74202412 A
318 WEMBTARDRKBEFAR
#£998,171,0007T (2023%F : AR
#5854,663,0007T) HRIELEFIEE
& DHRAEBREMIEHREE
EMEEMNGE BEERMEER
A RARRRAERSERE o

EHMEEEEEE 2BREIRE
HE R AR EARFE M ERBR
FFZEB8.25% F28% (2023 :
8.25% F25%) ZIRITIH R HE o

HHR2024F R 2023 FRE B I &
EEERBERN BRI ERES
TR IERT IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024

BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 10. FBHEX (&)

BZE2024F K2023F 1283181k
FENAEHAXATEGSBRR
H fth 2 [E U 25 2% 9 B BR A B s
BRIOT :

The income tax expense for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

For the year
ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Profit before tax BRB BT A 6,624,055 5,833,072
Tax at 25% 1R25% =T E MR IE 1,656,014 1,458,268
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FAHBAZNB R E
for tax purposes 165,908 88,114
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBANR BT E
for tax purposes (14,224) (18,475)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized ARERBIEEENHREEE 103,768 34,941
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAHHEREEREN
differences not recognized Mg E 11,028 7,809
Utilization of tax losses previously B AR BERNBIEEE
not recognized (96,997) (316,066)
Tax effect of deductible temporary Se AU AR G HERR B9 BT H0R Bt
differences previously not recognized EENFEEE (67,060) (130,529)
Withholding tax B 196,160 273,965
Under (over) provision of current tax in BEFERNHARERETRE
respect of prior years (B%8) 3,733 (8,349)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A EAL B EEELZ R E
operating in other jurisdictions NAIBETENEE (34,553) (57,005)
Income tax expense for the year REEREHREAX 1,923,777 1,337,673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FREF
The Group’s profit for the year has been arrived at after charging REBEFRBERLHBR (FTA) AT
(crediting): R
For the year
ended December 31,
BHZEZ12A31HILLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BRERRIEITE
equipment 1,808,050 2,178,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 726,607 730,634
Amortization of other intangible assets Hib A & = 23,839 36,554
Total depreciation and amortization ERBHEARE 2,558,496 2,945,399
Cost of inventories recognized as an ERARINFEE KA
expense 16,211,077 16,946,214
Property and equipment rentals MERZEES
- office premises, quarters and equipment — WAEYE - BERRE
(short-term leases) (F2HAHEE) 11,152 4,370
- restaurants (variable lease payments) — BB (U2AENF 114,927 100,209
126,079 104,579
Other rental related expenses HibfA S ERERX 299,464 257,324
Total rentals and related expenses HeBBEREREX 425,543 361,903
Directors’ emoluments EEHN 161,575 98,291
Other staff cost: HMB TR :
Salaries and other allowances FreRHAEARE 11,568,116 10,822,859
Employee welfare ETIREA 1,085,560 982,806
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B {RERIFTEIH X 1,296,644 1,134,930
Share-based payment expense &R 1,368 958
Total staff costs BT HRAREE 14,113,263 13,039,844
Auditor’s remuneration L GIE 7,380 7,380
FEHE

199

2024 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

12. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 12. EERHESITBA BN
Mr. Gou Yiqun is the chief executive of the Company and his AHRBEEBRBERQRATARSITHA
emolument disclosed below included those for services rendered E > TXFREETGTMEEREE
by him as the chief executive of the Company and other group FERABREMEEERRESITH
entities. A ERMEIRS T T RN -
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief RIEBEALHRARC(ESR QTR
executive of the Company (including, if applicable, emoluments Y REBE2AREETERBRER
for services as employee/directors of the group entities prior to ENHEAFERAREERESITH
becoming the Directors) by entities comprising the Group for the ABZHM (B (WER) KAE
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the EREAKEERET EEREMH
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BRASHIEREN) 20T :
For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE204F12ANALER
Retirement
Performance- benefit
Salaries and based scheme
Directors’fee  allowances bonuses contributions Total
B RNER
BEEHE  HERmiER 4 Bl @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBETRT ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR

(Note vi)
(Mtzkvi)

Executive directors (Note i): HITES (M&)

Mr. Zhang Yong (RE) RELE - 11,260 76,617 29 87,906
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (B 2) (Note ii) k2 %4 (Hizkii) 10 2,367 5,230 29 7,636
Mr. Gou Yiqun (Rj#&) (Note iii RIBRE LA (P ET) - 5,086 25,323 29 30,438
Ms. June Yang Lijuan (5#I18) (Note iii) %188z L (Kistii) - 684 6,534 12 7,230
Mr. Li Peng (Zf) ZHREE - 3,044 1,694 44 4,782
Ms. Song Qing (R &) RELL - 7,295 8,935 50 16,280
Ms. Gao Jie (52) 5Eut - 1,029 860 66 1,955
Subtotal PNt 10 30,765 125,193 259 156,227
Independent non-executive BUEHITES

directors (Note iv): (M &Fiv) -

Mr. Chua Sin Bin (Z# ) BHREE 1,006 - - - 1,006
Mr. Hee Theng Fong (§F&%) FEFEE 1,006 - - - 1,006
Mr. Qi Daging (B A &) EXAELE 1,006 - - - 1,006
Mr. Ma Weihua (55%) BRELE 1,006 - - - 1,006
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang (R B ) REXEE 1,006 - - - 1,006
Mr. Zhang Junjie (& &%) (Note v) REBELE (M) 318 - - - 318
Subtotal Nat 5,348 - - - 5,348
Total H) 5,358 30,765 125,193 259 161,575
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e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

12. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Cont’d)

12. EERESTHAEHM (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2023

HZ2023F 1231 HILEE
Retirement
Performance- benefit
Salaries and based scheme
Directors’ fee allowances bonuses  contributions Total
ENRE RRER
EZHE HeRER i HE CHy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETR ARB®TR  AR®TR  AR%T:
(Note vi)
(aEvi)
Executive directors (Note i): WITES (M&H)
Mr. Zhang Yong (&%) REEE - 10,957 43,950 29 54,936
Ms. June Yang Lijuan (i2F118) BRlgzt - 4133 10,828 17 14,978
Mr. Li Peng (ZH) THEE - 1,610 2,722 40 4,372
Ms. Song Qing (R &) RELZT - 3,184 13,937 44 17,165
Ms. Gao Jie (512) BAgt - 1,576 - 63 1,639
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (%K 2) (Note ii) Bk 2 %4 (FifEEii) - - = = =
Subtotal Nt - 21,460 71,437 193 93,090
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng (B 2) (Note ii) B2 %4 (Hiztii) 276 - - - 276
Independent non-executive BAEHTES
directors (Note iv): (Miztiv) -
Mr. Chua Sin Bin (Z# E) BHREE 985 - - - 985
Mr. Hee Theng Fong (FFEE) AT R 985 - - - 985
Mr. Qi Daging (B AE) BEAELE 985 - - = 985
Mr. Ma Weihua (57 Z) BRELE 985 - - - 985
Mr. Wu Xiaoguang (&% ¥) REXEE 985 - - - 985
Subtotal et 4,925 - - - 4,925
Total M@t 5,201 21,460 71,437 193 98,291
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

12.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Cont’d)

Notes:

Vi.

Vii.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

Mr. Zhou Zhaocheng changed from a non-executive director to an
executive director on December 13, 2023.

Ms. June Yang Lijuan resigned as executive director of the
Company and Mr. Gou Yiqun was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on July 1, 2024.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were paid for their services as independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Junjie was appointed as independent non-executive
director on August 27, 2024.

Performance-based bonuses were determined based on the
individual’s performance.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

Save for the disclosure in the “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” section of this annual report, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year ended December 31, 2024.
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2024 included 3 (2023: 3) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in Note 12 above. Details of
the remuneration for the remaining individuals who are neither a
director nor chief executive for the years ended December 31,

2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

13. AEEREHET

MNEZE2024F 12831 B LEEE >
rEBLEAEAHFEIBIEISR
(2023%F : 3R)EE  BEEFMF
EHREXKHE12 - A TBEHEE
ENFRBITHRAEZATREZ
2024F K 2023%F 1231 HIEFE
HEFBNEBIT -

For the year
ended December 31,
BE=12A31HILLEE

2024 2023

2024 4 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#ETT ARET T

Salaries and allowances e K2Ry 5,476 10,374
Performance-based bonuses EMABRITEAL 13,030 9,033
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  E{REHIFTEIERR 66 103
18,572 19,510

The emoluments of the remaining individuals are within the

following bands:

BT ATHEMN FUUATEHE :

For the year
ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEE
2024 2023
20245 20235
No. of No. of
employees employees
ETAH ETAE

Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) 9,000,001 to 9,000,001 8t £9,500,00078 7T

HKD9,500,000 - 1
HKD9,500,001 to HKD10,000,000 9,500,001 7t Z10,000,00058 7T 1 -
HKD10,500,001 to HKD11,000,000 10,500,001 % 7t £ 11,000,000 7T 1 -
HKD12,000,001 to HKD12,500,000 12,000,001 % 7t £ 12,500,00078 7T - 1
Total st 2 2

For the year ended December 31, 2024, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil).

MEZE2024F 12831 B LLEEE >
AEEBREOQEEREBRRSHA
T EAMESERRSIEMAS
MAREBFWRE N BHBEE
(2023%F : &) o
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. B2

For the year
ended December 31,
BZE12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 4 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the FRERADIRKWAQ T ZER

Company recognized as distribution RERRE
during the year
— Interim dividend (Note i) — hHARR B (HisEi) 1,934,312 =
- Final dividend (Note ii) — REARR 2 (BF&Eii) 4,061,454 553,798
Total st 5,995,766 553,798
Notes: MfsE
i On August 27, 2024, an interim dividend of HKD0.391 (equivalent i MR2024F8H27H » &AAF
to RMB0.358) per share with a total amount of HKD2,117,265,000 ENEEFEREDRRIREE
(equivalent to RMB1,934,312,000) was declared to the shareholders Z£2024F6B30BILEAERH
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 by the Company out of FHIR S S AR0.391 % T (18
retained earnings. The dividend was paid in October, 2024 ERARY0.3587T) » #AKEE
2,117,265,0008 T (HERAR
#£1,934,312,0007t) ° &Z IR EE

ii. On June 5, 2024, as approved by the shareholders at the annual ii.
general meeting, a final dividend of HKDO0.824 (equivalent to
RMBO0.750) per share with a total amount of HKD4,461,960,000
(equivalent to RMB4,061,454,000) was declared to be distributed
to shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2023 by the
Company out of share premium. The dividend was paid in July,

2024.

On June 7, 2023, as approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting, a final dividend of HKD0.116 (equivalent to
RMBO0.102) per share with a total amount of HKD628,488,926
(equivalent to RMB553,798,000) was declared to shareholders for
the year ended December 31, 2022 by the Company out of share
premium. The dividend was paid in July 2023.

2024 F10 BIRAT ©

M2024F6 A5H » ERERKRE
BEREL#E ARFEME
B EERRRIKEEZ20234F
12831 A EEENARERESR
0.824%E T (HER ARM®0.750
JT) - #EEEA,461,960,000
7t (HERARKY4,061,454,000
17ijL) o ZIRE T MN2024%7 Ak

M2023FE6 A7H » ERERARE
BERSL#E  ARAFEEME
B EEBRRIKEEE20225F
12A31BEFENKRERESR
0.1168 T (HERAR®0.102
JU) - #8%H3%£628,488,9268 T
(FHER AR%553,798,0007T) ©
IR EEN2023F7 BiRk{T ©

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend REEHRE  ESREZE2024
in respect of the year ended December 31, 2024 of HKD0.507 F12A31 AL FEEREIRARE
(equivalent to RMBO0.468) per share, amounting to approximately KRESRKR0.507#8 T HERARE
HKD2,745,405,000 (equivalent to RMB2,534,220,000) has been 0.4687t) @ £XAE#2,745,405,000
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the BT (FHERARME2,534,220,000
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, which 7t) o HEFRRERRER2025F5 A
will be held on May 19, 2025. 19 ETHEERRBAFTASHE
BRHAMEE °

BRGEERERBRAL A
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BSRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share BRRBEEABRGEEBRERREE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRTIBBUTEIBE

following data:

For the year
ended December 31,
HE12A31HLEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®ETT

Earnings for the purpose of basic ARTESRERBFINER
earnings per share 4,708,084 4,499,080
For the year
ended December 31,
HZ12A31HLEE
2024 2023
2024 20234
’000 ’000
FB TR
Weighted average number of ordinary ARFTESRERBINE BR
shares for the purpose of calculating InfEFIIE
basic earnings per share 5,415,000 5,415,000
No diluted earnings per share for the years ended December HARNE£2024F K% 2023512 B 31
31, 2024 and 2023 were calculated as there were no potential HEFEWEEBRTETERR
ordinary shares in issue for the years ended December 31, 2024 WA ET EEH E2024F K 2023 F
and 2023. 12A31 BEFENSREERT -

EERE
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

16. MK - BB RRE

Leasehold
land and Freehold  Leasehold Transportation Fumiture  Renovation
building land improvement  Machinery  equipment  andfixture inprogress Total
BEIHRET KAEELH RENESE B2 B8R GEREE fxIRBIR B3
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMB'00
AE#FT  ARETR  ARETn  ARMFR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR
(Note)
(gt
COST ik
At January 1, 2023 H2023E1818 12,101 - 1287878 868,757 586370 2,031,554 28948 15,035,608
Exchange adustments ~ E#% 316 1714 6,085 23 7,365 73 425 16,876
Addtions & - - 60,76 92,882 2001 134,399 150,164 449,542
Acquired on acquisition of a I~ EHBAR
sy B 13576 73070 102 6 2561 o1 18155 108477
Transfer from renovation ~ BRFZTEETR
in progress - - 267,345 - - - (267,345) -
Disposals BE - - WB04) 217,939 (14400 (30113) - (697.499)
AtDecember 31,2023 50003128318 25,993 4T84 11,187,239 744,005 54137 1937505 159347 14713010
Exchange adustments 8% (1,939) (7,009) (5,201) (£03) 6,302 (1,362) (1,89) (t1,501)
Addtions HE 62673 8317 1577 72,880 7323 12736 1076870 1372185
Transfer from renovation ~ BRFZTEETR
in progress - - 12,319 - - - (772,379 -
Disposals RE (308) - (676,76) (92,189) (24.117) (181,764) - (975,159)
Reclassified as held for sale ~ EFAEAS(ELE (I
(Note 39 %) - - peIgy  (14150) o0 e - B3y
AtDecember 31,2024 Roo4% 12831 R 86,620 91008 11,017,409 710,144 573305 1844528 461951 14,785,055
DEPRECIATION &
At January 1, 2023 202318 1R 4307 - 6430174 367,621 120308 1547723 - 8499153
Exchange adiustments 3% 8 - 4,382 9 1,350 37 - 6,290
Cherge for the year ERi 859 - 1835163 141,526 2713 173,531 - 78
Acquired on acquisition of & —-EHEBAT
asubsiday B 4953 - - % 1% 309 ; 6103
Eiminated on disposals ~ EE R - - (306,247) (60627) (7108 (14631) - (508,611)
AtDecember 31,2028 Ro023%12831R 10221 - 7963472 448,665 150719 1,607,309 - 10,181,746
Exchange adustments ~ E#% 482 - (3673) (223 1,481 (986) - (3883)
Charge for the year ERik 2,867 - 1538660 112,215 29,249 125,059 - 1808050
Eiminated on disposals ~ EEF#i (157) - (495,769) (69,606) (16.25)  (148369) - (730,152
Reclassified as held for sale  EFABABELE (I
(Note 39 %) - - (1) 0152 00 5879 )
AtDecember 31,2024 Roo4% 12831 A 12449 - 8808833 481,899 106208 1557134 - 11026553

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

16. #3% ~ BB Rtk ()

Leasehold land Leasehold Transportation Fumiture  Renovation
andbuilding  Freehold land ~ improvement ~ Machinery ~ equipment  andfixture  inprogress Total
iR KARE LS #x1
it £ b 4 #e Bens  GERRE REIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETz  ARETz  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  AREfR
(Note)
(Wi3k)
IMPAIRMENT HE
At January 1, 2023 2023E1 A1A - - 606,438 102,330 31 182,574 - 891,683
Net reversal BEFE - - (3473) - - (701) = (4174
Eiminated on disposals ~ EEEH# - - (113973 (72.820) (341) (90,265 - (277,399)
AtDecember 31,2023 12023%12531H - - 488,992 29510 - 91,608 - 610,110
Net recognized (reversal) %32 () ¥8 - - 7428 (1675 - 2,159 - 3,59
Eiminated on disposdls ~ REFHHS - - (136090 (16.81) - (21.881) - (17498)
AtDecember 31,2024 JA2024%12531H - - 360,330 10854 - 67,569 - 438,753
CARRYINGAMOUNT  KAfE
MDecember 31,2024 A2024%128318 4111 91,008 1,848,246 217,391 407,067 219,825 461,951 3319749
ADecember 31,203 A2028% 128318 15,772 74,784 2134775 265,830 432,058 238,588 159,347 3,921,154
FERE
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REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’a)

Note:

In the opinion of the Directors, allocations of the carrying amounts
between the leasehold land and buildings elements cannot be made
reliably and therefore the entire carrying amounts of the leasehold land
and buildings is presented as property, plant and equipment.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for renovation
in progress and freehold land, after taking into account the residual value,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 4.75%

Leasehold improvement 10.00% - 20.00% or lease term,
whichever is shorter

Machinery 18.56% — 33.00%

Transportation equipment 4.95% - 24.75%

Furniture and fixtures 19.00% - 31.67%

Impairment assessment

The management of the Group noticed that some restaurants have
achieved significant improvement in their operations as a result
of the optimization of the internal management on products and
services and the steady improvement of consumer and catering
business, while the performance of certain restaurants was
worse than expected or affected by certain unfavorable external
factors. Accordingly, the management of the Group concluded
that there were indications for impairment/reversal of impairment
on certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
The Group estimated the recoverable amounts of the restaurants
(cash generating units (“CGUs”)) to which the asset belongs when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
including allocation of corporate assets when reasonable and
consistent basis can be established.

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

16. #1% ~ s Rafh ()

BfaE -

EERA HELHREFHIHRE
BEEEASER SR > AEE L RE
FHRERBREENDE  BERREZ
5l

L% - BERREEE (REITE
ETRRKAERE LRI Kt RF
BREERREREZUTIFERITE -

HETHRETFT 4.75%
HEWEHEE  10.00%-20.00%5
FH (UBEEAE)

HEEE 18.56%-33.00%
EwRE 4.95%-24.75%
FEREE 19.00%-31.67%

BTG

REEEEREIRD  BRAE
mERBEERICURBEERER
EBNRINE B2 EBNEE
DSRENE  BHEESETTH
SNEREZE - EER D BRI RR(NE
REMHEZZE - At - X&H
EEERAETYE BERRE
UK ERREEFERERIER
Bl o fis E A E B fh 5T W= &
B ARBMGGREEEMBER
(REELEM) WARESE &
FBRENEISE —HERKHA
RAIEEETOR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation used discounted
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the following 1 to 5 years with
pre-tax discount rates ranging from 13% to 33% as at December
31, 2024 (2023: 13% to 33%), which varies among restaurants
operated in different regions. For those CGUs with remaining
lease terms more than 5 years, cash flows beyond the 5-year
period (2023: 5-year) are extrapolated using a steady 0% to 3%
growth rate (2023: 0%). Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
included revenue growth rate and average percentage of costs
and operating expenses of revenue for the forecast periods, which
are based on the CGUs’ past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.

Based on the results of the assessments, the management of the
Group determined that: (1) the recoverable amounts of certain
CGUs are lower than the carrying amounts. The impairment
loss has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero; and
(2) the recoverable amounts of certain CGUs are higher than
their carrying amounts. The reversal of impairment loss for the
CGUs has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not increased above its recoverable
amount (if determinable) and the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of RMB21,344,000 (2023:
RMB36,906,000) and RMB24,036,000 (2023: RMB18,706,000)
and the reversal of impairment losses of RMB17,749,000 (2023:
RMB41,080,000) and RMB14,757,000 (2023: RMB26,648,000),
respectively, have been recognized against the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets during
the year.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

16. M - BB Rz (F)

ARG (&

ReEELBENNTWRESEETIRE
FREEFEEE - ZETEFER
BREIRERETER > DERLKEER
EEERENREREAZ5FEME
KIEE > FAIRFIREN20245F12
B31 BN F13% E33% (2023 F :
13% £33%) » MR EETEHE
KREBEFHMTE - BiRIGHERE
BSFNZERSEESENUMS -
FBHSFH (20235 56 ) RE
RENEKABEEREO%EI®
(2023%F : 0% ) HEE - HituFAHE
B ENEERRERESARAN R
HHMEETER > ERERRRER
ZERRFERE AR AR YA L& 5
SHWFEHBEDL  BREMGTIER
REELBENNBEREREERE
HHiSRRENTER -

REBFENER  ~EEEEER
A (N)ETRESELEENNATRE
SHEEAEEREERE - BEEECSS
REZEVE BERZBEUARE
AEEE  UBREEENKREE
FTEREEREARBEREEEX
. FREERENGESE S K@)
ETHESELENNITREESES
RERAE BEELESENNRE
BRERBROCIBRESEVE  BE
RBEURGERAEEE  UBEE
EENRAEFTSEZSHETR
El£E (HAEE) RBRBTFE
WEBRZBEEERIARBBEBEER
EEERNIREE - RIBEFEREEST
ERDE  FRAEHRYE  BER
REURFERAEEENREES
AR EE B AR 21,344,000 T
(2023% : AR*36,906,0007T)
R AR#24,036,0007T (20234 :
AER#18,706,0007T) LA K R E &5
BiEE A R®17,749,000 T (2023
£ : AR#41,080,0007T) RAER
#514,757,0007T (20234 : AR
26,648,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FEREEE
Leased Leasehold
properties lands Total
HEWE HELi et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AE®TT AR®TT
At December 31, 2024 M2024F12A31H
Carrying amount BRMEE 2,815,215 203,583 3,018,798
At December 31, 2023 M2023F12A31H
Carrying amount BREE 3,252,420 208,864 3,461,284
For the year ended # =2024%12H31H
December 31, 2024 IEEE
Depreciation charge EER 721,327 5,280 726,607
Net impairment loss recognized REREEE TR
(Note 16) (KIzE16) 9,279 - 9,279
For the year ended B =2023%F12H31H
December 31, 2023 IEEE
Depreciation charge EER 729,046 1,588 730,634
Net impairment loss reversed BRENRERE TR
(Note 16) (FIzE16) 7,942 - 7,942

For the year
ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023

2024 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Expense relating to short-term leases BRI ERRENAX 11,152 4,370

Variable lease payments not included in Rt AHERETEN

the measurement of lease liabilities AIREENR 114,927 100,209

Total cash outflow for leases (Note) HERSRHAZE (M) 1,017,894 1,155,367
Additions to right-of-use assets of leased FEHEVEFEHAREE

properties 457,287 347,833
Additions to right-of-use assets of RERELFERESE

leasehold lands - 210,452
Increase (decrease) due to HEB RS ZEM O2)

lease modification 30,836 (96,035)

Decrease due to lease termination #IEFAE S| BURD 129,023 143,952

Reclassified as held for sale (Note 35) By BAFELE (H5E35) 65,700 =

210 BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.
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e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d) 17. EREEE (18)
Note: M5E -
The amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease ZEHEEHEaENEAE RIS S
liabilities, variable lease payments and short-term leases, which could be R IEHENRRENAEE A5
presented in financing or operating cash flows, respectively. BIRRERLERSREFZT -
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group leases B ZE2024F %2023F12A31HILF
various buildings or lands for its operations. For the year ended December B FAEEHEREEFILHARE
31, 2024, lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 12 months to EIE o BIE2024F12A31HLEFE -
40 years (2023: 12 months to 40 years), but may have termination options HESHNNEEHRRA12EAZ405F
as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis (2023%F : 128 B £40%F) - EA]RER
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining BTt E B IZRE - FERFRTD
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the REENEERE  SEFEREHK
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for MRARME o PAE E T HA R A4k 1 AT 48
which the contract is enforceable. HENRER  AEERASONER
WHEEE L T RFIBITHHIRA
Variable lease payments AEEENR
Leases of restaurants, office premises and lands are either with HZE2024F12A31HILEEE » &
only fixed lease payments or contain variable lease payment that B -MAZYERLHNEERE
are based on 0.5% to 15% of sales with or without minimum BEEEEHENRREEENHEE
annual lease payments that are fixed over the lease term for the 280.5% F£15% (2023F (1% &
year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: 1% to 12%). The payment 12%) WA BEENR > MREFE
terms are common in restaurants in the areas where the Group EHRENMRREEREEESRTE
operates. The amounts of fixed and variable lease payments paid E o ARIERRAEBEE T
to relevant lessors for the years are as follows: EBEEEEA FRENTFEBEELA
ANEERTSEENRAOT ¢
For the year ended December 31, 2024 HZE2024412831 AL EE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
leases payments payments payments
HABE EE RN BE-{REN (RE7¢tl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AREFR AREFR
Office premises, quarters and ~ FEBAEHEE[FTMN
equipment without variable WAZEYE - BER
lease payments B 20 23,842 - 23,842
Restaurants without variable FEEUEHEENRI
lease payments BEE 1,124 524,056 - 524,056
Restaurants with variable lease 2B & HEEMAH
payments BE 529 351,408 114,927 466,335
Lands without variable lease FTEEASHEENTN
payments Tt 2 3,661 - 3,661
Total @st 1,675 902,967 114,927 1,017,894
s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants with higher sales.
Variable rental expenses are expected to continue to represent a
similar proportion of restaurant sales in future years.

Termination options

The Group has termination options in a number of leases for
restaurants. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in
terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessors.

The Group assessed at lease commencement date and concluded
it is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination options. In
addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
not to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of the lessee.

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d) 17. EREEE (&)
Variable lease payments (Cont’d) W EHENR (&
For the year ended December 31, 2023 BE2023F 12831 HIEFE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
leases payments payments payments
HHOHE EE I AR T RAAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR
Office premises, quartersand ~ FNEBAIEHEENHN
equipment without variable MAEYE - BER
lease payments Bl 19 21,059 = 21,059
Restaurants without variable TEETEHEENRW
lease payments = 1,042 514,144 - 514,144
Restaurants with variable lease BB T&#HEENHH
payments ZE 557 347,982 100,209 448,191
Lands without variable lease FEEREHEEMRN
payments T 2 171,973 - 171,973
Total et 1,620 1,055,158 100,209 1,155,367
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that FERASVIRERNERIBEE

REEEERSNMESELEESH
HERAR - RARFE » BHTE
% BA S 15 P I 55 5 58 A L 511 4

ARIEEIRME

FEENZREEEEARRILE
B BEEAEEELTEAN
BEMS  ZSEERTRARE
HMIRESELREN - KENAZH
RIDERERREAAEETE - M
JEEERA A ATTIE ©

REBMRNEERE B HETIME
TEEHRERSTELILRERE -
teoh » EBEAEBRBHHAEAE
FEERNNBERBEEERELE
AEBMEENTEREEVSEEE
TEITEAILRERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Termination options (Cont’d)

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group
decided to discontinue the operations of certain restaurants
before the expiry of original lease terms of those restaurants. As a
result, the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the termination
option stipulated in the lease agreements for the relevant
restaurants, and lease liabilities and right-of-use assets have been
adjusted accordingly.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at December 31, 2024, lease liabilities of RMB3,997,522,000
(2023: RMBA4,547,837,000) are recognized with related right-of-use
assets of RMB2,869,365,000 (2023: RMB3,307,986,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased properties may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases committed

As at December 31, 2024, the Group has entered into new
leases for several restaurants that have yet to commence, with
non-cancellable period ranging from 2 to 10 years, the total
future undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period
amounted to RMB19,091,000 (2023: Nil).

Details of impairment of right-of-use assets are set out in Note 16.

17.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

EREEZE (&)
RIERERE ()

B E£2024F K20235F12A31H 1k
FE  AEBRERZEEERE
BRI EES TERE -
bt AEESEBERTEERERE
HEMBRENKLEERE - BB
HEAREEEBEREAEEE -

HERSIHEH

A2024F 128310 - BIHEA
BEAR#¥3,997,522,0007T (2023
F : AR#4,547,837,00070) K #H
FEfE FAfEE E A R¥2,869,365,000
7T (20234 : AK#£3,307,986,000
7T) e REBABFENREEEEN
KHERI - HEHZETINEM
5 o HEVETSREEIKR -

HERE

HA2024F 128310 XEECH
ETEBELMARMABHHTEE
RE BN F2E105F - A
HHENRRAMRESRELTE
£ AR%19,091,0007T (20234 :
/) o

EAEEEREFITRNMEE16 -
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. HithE\EEE

Trademark Software Total
[k g4 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T AR¥T T
COST A
At January 1, 2023 72023F1 818 64,939 149,496 214,435
Exchange adjustments b A% - 494 494
Additions NE 24 8,144 8,168
Acquired on acquisition Y iE — R B A RIS FREE A
of a subsidiary - 61 61
Disposals EE = (11,564) (11,564)
At December 31, 2023 M2023%F12HA31H 64,963 146,631 211,594
Exchange adjustments BE 5 AR - (49) (49)
Additions wE 3 10,128 10,131
Disposals BEE - (14,577) (14,577)
At December 31, 2024 R2024%F12A31H 64,966 142,133 207,099
AMORTIZATION AND i RRE
IMPAIRMENT
At January 1, 2023 7A2023F1 818 27,737 82,074 109,811
Exchange adjustments b A% - 34 34
Charge for the year FRR 5,636 30,918 36,554
Eliminated on disposals rA=li=2 6] - (8,495) (8,495)
At December 31, 2023 2023F12 831 H 3333 104,531 137,904
Exchange adjustments Rz - (48) (48)
Charge for the year FRR 5,636 18,203 23,839
Eliminated on disposals BB R - (6,794) (6,794)
At December 31, 2024 M2024%F12831H 39,009 115,892 154,901
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At December 31, 2024 R2024F12A31H 25,957 26,241 52,198
At December 31, 2023 2023F 12831 H 31,590 42,100 73,690

BRGEERERBRAL A
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

18. Hitt\EEE (&)

LB EERBRRNAIERSF
B FREFEERESEERT

following periods: DI HA R 8E
Trademark 10 years 5L 106
Software 3 -5years B 3-5%
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEQRRERS
As at December 31,
R12831H
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T ARETT
Cost of investments in associates REE N RINIREK 40,071 63,624
Share of post acquisition profits and EERE®BER R EM
other comprehensive income, ZHKE - HIREWRE
net of dividends received 139,888 231,560
179,959 295,184
FERE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

19.

Details of each of the Group’s associates as at December 31,
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting rights held by the

WBHE BRI HE 55 ()

2024 F % 2023F 12831 H » &
SEERHEATNWHEBOT ¢

Group as at
FEEmBREREES
c°untry of &ﬁ%ﬁ& ttﬁu
incorporation/ December 31, December 31,
Name of entities registration 2024 2023  Principal activities
20244 2023
BRaR ML RER 127318 128318 FE£%
% %
ES( LB RAMRERLR The PRC 40.00 40.00  Manufacturing of instant hot pot products
(“Fuhai”)
([&8)) HE BIRABERNEE
TRBRRERERER AT The PRC 25,00 25.00  Restaurants operation
H EERE
FERLEREEARATNotei)  The PRC N/A 2500  Restaurants operation
(eEi) HE TER BELE
REFMEEREEBR AT (Noteii) The PRC 15.00 1500  Restaurants operation
(ieFii) HE BERE
TRRZHBHREEER AT (Noteii) The PRC 17.65 17.65  Restaurants operation
(&) HE EERE
Notes: MIEE -

i. The business license of L@ & BEMEEFR AT was revoked in

2024.

ii. The Group is able to exercise significant influence over X&)
BESREEFRAR and tRFZHEREEFR AT because it
has the power to appoint one out of the three directors of those

companies under the investment agreements with other investors.

BRGEERERBRAL A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. REENEIRER (E)
Summarized financial information of material associate EEHENRANMBERME
Summarized financial information in respect of the Group’s FRAEREEHEL N TANMKE
material associate is set out below. The summarized financial REERNT X o LT BB E R
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s ZARBERMEREEASHE
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS AR BB E N B B A 3R R P Y A
Accounting Standards. TNEEE ©
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these BENRRZEREMBRERFPE
consolidated financial statements. FAREREAR -

Fuhai 3=
As at December 31,
Mm12831H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Current assets RENEE 418,907 665,156
Non-current assets ERBEE 185,002 158,308
Current liabilities REAR (155,112) (107,619)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (40,547) (37,789)

For the year
ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
2024 4 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT AR®ETT

Revenue WA 1,399,485 1,308,792
Profit and other comprehensive income for & Ra A & H b2 mE U

the year 150,194 134,729
Dividends received from the associate FRAEHE N TWENRE

during the year 168,000 -

FERSE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19.
Fuhai (Cont’d)
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to

the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognized in
the consolidated financial statements:

B (E)

LM ERBEER S MK RE
RERNEE QS ERRE AN
BE :

For the year
ended December 31,
BZEZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 4 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Net assets of Fuhai BEEEFE 408,250 678,056
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREENEE BT A RIS

interest in Fuhai 40% 40%
The Group’s share of net assets of Fuhai ~ANEBELEESEEFE 163,300 271,222
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRESERNIREE

interest in Fuhai 163,300 271,222

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

B33 ERBE R ERE R

material
For the year
ended December 31,
BHZE12A31HLEE
2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
The Group’s share of results and total AEBSEEERZERZERE
comprehensive expense (3,203) (444)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRZEHE N AERNE
interests in these associates BREE 16,659 23,962

BRGEERERBRAL A
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for the financial reporting purpose:

20 EEBELZE &fE

REJNGEUBHRREK - BHTE
ERBEERGMEC TR - B

BIRAERDTUT - HEHHRHR2

A

As at December 31,

#12H831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETFT ARET T
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 1,339,699 1,412,337
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE (843,316) (1,005,590)
496,383 406,747

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized and movements thereon during the years ended

THRAENEBE2024F % 2023F 12
B3 AL EERANEIEIELERE

December 31, 2024 and 2023: EEREEBERAEZE :
Customer  Distributable Right-of-
loyalty profits of Tax use Lease Impairment
scheme  subsidiaries losses assels  liabilities  Provisions losses Others Total
EERD  WEAAM
A UAREN  BERR EREEE  ARER i HERR 4 it
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR AREfR
At January 1, 2023 H2003E1A1R 163,08 (9,000) T8 (40218 1,188,880 1350 62,542 52 44346
Crediticharge) toproftorloss ~ WER3TA /(%) 17503 (94,000} (789 16127 (13123 A1 (3819 3414 (36,689
Exchange adjustments Efqg - - - - - 5 . (16 (1§
At December 31, 2023 2023512318 181,461 (190,000) 63,548  (03,151) 1,057,655 1,591 58,723 36920 406,747
Creciticharge) toprofitorloss  WER3HA /(1088) 20,750 87,350 (1188 9095 (71500 595 (33819 (B5%) 8963
At December 31, 2024 R204E12R31B 202,211 (102,650) 62360  (M2175) 986,148 2,186 2911 B3 496,388
FERSE
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Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the

following items:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

20.

BEHEAEE AR (&)

=

WEMTIEEEIELEREE

As at December 31,

n12A31H
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ET T ARET T
Tax losses BEEss 1,095,406 1,106,919
Deductible temporary differences AR E R E R 138,666 430,485
1,234,072 1,537,404

The unrecognized tax losses will expire in the following years:

REAREABEERAUT F0F

2

As at December 31,

#®12831H
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T
2024 20245 - 16,539
2025 20254 17,344 21,860
2026 2026 F 105,164 303,016
2027 2027 116,258 234,138
2028 20284 315,717 324,062
2029 20294 394,735 —
2030 20304 - 4,053
2031 20314 4,053 3,148
2032 20324 3,007 472
2033 20334 388 222
2034 20344 791 —
2037 20374 - 26,123
2038 20384 - 50,892
Indefinite #R 137,949 122,394
1,095,406 1,106,919

Tax losses arising in jurisdictions other than mainland China have
various expiration time from 10 years to indefinite (2023: 3 years

to indefinite).

BRGEERERBRAL A
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

No deferred tax asset has been recognized in relation to the
above tax losses and deductible temporary difference due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams of those loss-making
subsidiaries and it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilized.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

21.

BEHEEE AR (&)

HREZANZSEENE AR
RAIGENRE T KA RER BRBUE
TR SE AT B AR IRIE 18 - B0
WA IR 18 & AT HUR B B =
ERDIELRIEEE -

Hit&mEE

As at December 31,

R12831H
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
Certificates of deposit issued by banks HERITRITHERE (MiEE)
(Note i) 1,619,948 920,504
Fixed rate notes issued by banks HIBTERTHEENREE
(Note i) (Ffg=Eii) 943,207 1,162,426
Structured deposits (Note iii) AR (B EEiii) 369,891 -
Other debt instruments at amortized cost LA ERR AT 2K HALER
(Note iv) T A (MFaEiv) 13,194 119,641
Total mr 2,046,240 2,202,571
Analyzed as: palii= I
Non-current JEENER 1,981,265 947,489
Current BN R 964,975 1,255,082
2,946,240 2,202,571
FEHE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

21.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Notes:

As at December 31, 2024, certificates of deposit issued by banks,
which were measured at amortized cost, carried fixed interest rates
at 2.40% to 4.90% (2023: 2.80% to 3.25%) per annum and were
with original maturity of 3 to 36 months (2023: 36 months).

As at December 31, 2024, fixed rate notes issued by banks, which
were measured at amortized cost, carried fixed interest rates at
5.00% to 6.30% (2023: 5.50% to 6.00%) per annum and were with
original maturity of 12 to 84 months (2023: 6 to 12 months). Certain
fixed rate notes can be redeemed, in whole but not in part, by the
bank at an amount equal to the principal of the notes plus any
accrued interest on the predetermined redemption dates.

As at December 31, 2024, the structured deposits issued by a bank,
which were measured at amortized cost, carried fixed interest rates
at 5.85% to 6.20% per annum and were with original maturity of 60
to 84 months.

As at December 31, 2024, other debt instruments at amortized cost
represented corporate bonds, with original maturity of 25 to 60
months (2023: 12 to 60 months) and carrying fixed coupon interest
rate at 1.63% to 3.80% (2023: 1.63% to 5.63%) per annum.

BRGEERERBRAL A
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21.

Hith

st

EMEBEE (&)

M2024%F12 8318 » RITEHT
HERERBBRRATE - 12E
EEFE2.40% F4.90% (2023
F:280%E3.25%) 5 BE
HIH B3Z361E A (20234 : 36
@A) -

M2024% 128318 » R17%
THWEEMNEZEZHRBGHK
KEtE - REEFEFE5.00%
£6.30% (2023%F : 5.50% %
6.00%) s E - REIHAEA12E
8418 R (2023%F : 6 E12fA )
B2 E EF R EE 1] IR 1TIRAE
EREEALINTAERER A K
FEAEFENESEETEIM

FEEB D IRATED o

MN2024%F12 8318 » RITET
HEBETFRIRERRAGTE
HBEEFERNZE5.85%F6.20% =T
B REHBEA0E84EA

20245128318 » LU#ERAL
At ENHMEKLIAEERZ
A A252601@ 8 (2023 F :
122608 A) BEREETE|F
FIZE1.63% F3.80% (20234 :
1.63% £5.63%) sTEMNAAIE
g_;;.o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 22, BorERANEMEERENE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & E

As at December 31,

#»12B831H
2024 2023
2024 4 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Listed equity securities (Note) Iz RAES (M) 323,929 149,853
Note: Ftz
The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of an Ll EFRRARERERES LTEEN
entity listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not held for trading, EER  ZEREUFFIEESR H
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors R HEBERARERARZ - KATE
of the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity EREERRAIANZERERER
instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognizing short-term RARBEFAHMEZAEKS - 2HAE
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not ERAENBEERRZEREN A AERE
be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for HEBrAREerEERZERERER
long-term purposes and realizing their performance potential in the long HRRIERREBITEENREE o
run.

23. INVENTORIES 23. F&

As at December 31,

#®12H831H
2024 2023
2024 4 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Food ingredients B 622,022 649,044
Condiment products FELNR 157,015 157,341
Beverage BB 90,911 45,809
Other materials Hapdrel 190,693 222,433

1,060,641 1,074,627

FERSE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 24, B REMBEBUREREMNKE

As at December 31,

#12H831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Trade receivables (Note) B 5 EWFRIE (FIEE) 346,347 411,995
Other receivables and prepayments: HAbEW R IE R FEFRIE ¢
Prepayment to suppliers O FEE TR RIE 406,737 507,097
Prepaid operating expenses FEHEERE X 330,415 334,670
Input value-added tax recoverable Tl I TE IR 328,643 567,114
Loans to employees HTEIMNER 22,130 39,469
Others Hith 83,159 168,312
Subtotal Nt 1,171,084 1,616,662
Total trade and other receivables and B RHMERIER

prepayments TR FIRARE 1,517,431 2,028,657
Note: MIEE -
Majority of trade receivables were due from payment platforms which ARZBEZREWFHBREZSTE B
are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables are aged within 30 BARIORRLEN  RIFRHREVE
days based on the date of rendering of services. There were no past due H - B RUGRIENIRE RB0KRA © I
trade receivables. F|EBHE S EWFE -

224 BRGEERERBRAL A
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 25.
OR LOSS

BARERANBRGNEMEE

As at December 31,

®12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Private fund investment (Note i) REEESRKRE (M) 1,134,330 764,591
Unquoted equity shares (Note ii) EIRERERID (FEki) 13,633 13,433
Debt instruments BEITE 7,322 14,154
Foreign currency forward contracts (Note iii) JNEZEEIE L (KizEiii) 1,940 -
Total Bet 1,157,225 792,178
Analyzed as: palii= I
Non-current FEBNER 17,227 13,433
Current BH 1,139,998 778,745
1,157,225 792,178
Notes: MIEE

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the private fund investment
represented investment in private equity investment funds initiated
by certain asset management corporations in the PRC and
overseas, which mainly invested in the shares of listed companies
and other financial assets.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the investments in unquoted
equity shares represented the unquoted equity interests in a
company incorporated in Australia, in which the equity interest held
by the Group is less than 1%.

The Group entered into several foreign currency forward contracts
with certain banks as an economic hedge of the currency risk
arising from HKD. The Group agreed to sell RMB with the
aggregation amount of RMB3,600,000,000 and purchase HKD at
the agreed forward exchange rates on settlement dates, which were
within one year from the contract dates. The fair value changes of
the foreign currency forward contracts were recognized in other
gains and losses.

2024 F K 2023%F12H31H »
AEESRENRENTERE
SIETEEEE AR BN
EREREES  TERENLE
TARRORHEMEREE

2024 2023128318 -
REREEZRDHREN R
BRI S5 o PR 9 4 B B 4R
WERE  ARERZDAFHE
HIBRRET 2% ©

AEBEEE TRTI LA TINE
RHEHN  UEHBTEKEAKE
TREHY AEEREREE
B(EHBHET—FER) UYL
EHNEPEREHARARYE
3,600,000,000 7T B A BT © 5%
EHERBENNIAEEHE
REMKZEREEBPER

FERSE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

26. PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26. KT ZIRFIRITHE RIT
BALANCES AND CASH G rRE
As at December 31,
n12H31H
2024 2023
2024 ¢ 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRRES
— Cash on hand — FHERSE 2,569 3,678
- Bank balances (Note i) — $R1T456R (BTN 7,472,251 9,326,337
7,474,820 9,330,015
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BIEE ZRFBITER
(Note ii) (B i) 373,848 13,496
7,848,668 9,343,511
Notes:

i Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from nil to 5.54
% (2023: nil to 6.01%) per annum as at December 31, 2024.

As at December 31, 2024, bank balances of RMB4,326,614,000
(2023: RMB5,895,555,000) represented time deposits, with original
maturity of two days to nine months (2023: two months to nine
months) and carried fixed interest rate at 0.66 % to 5.54% (2023:
0.53% to 6.01%) per annum, while the remaining bank balances
carry variable interest rates.

As at December 31, 2024, bank balances denominated in RMB
held by mainland China subsidiaries were placed with licensed
banks in the PRC and the conversion of such balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

SRITAERIRN 2024512831 H
NFEE554% (2023F : BEF
6.01%) WHEFFRETE ©

A2024F 128318  RIT4ER
AR%4,326,614,0007T (2023
F: AR#5,895,555,0007T) ¥5
EHER RIBHBEARMKEN
88 (2023F : MBEBZENM@EA)
W320.66% £5.54% (2023 F :
0.53% £6.01%) KIE & F R =5t
B M TRITEKARZEF
RitE o

R2024F 1283180 » PRI KE
MEBARBFEENUAREE
KR ITEMRTERN P E ISR
17 MSHEERTEIBBINER
ZE 38 <F B BT 58 6 Y 1B
HAPIERRE o



26.

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

ii. As at December 31, 2024, bank deposits of RMB8,848,000 (2023: ii.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

26. BRI ZREIRVITERRIT

mBRRRE (B)

MiaE : (&)

RMB11,373,000) that are carrying interest at a rate of 0.10% (2023:
0.25%) per annum are restricted for litigation purpose.

As at December 31, 2024, time deposits of United States Dollar
(“USD”) 45,900,000 (equivalent to RMB329,948,000) that are
carrying interest at a rate of 4.53% per annum are pledged as
securities to a bank to secure foreign currency forward contracts.

As at December 31, 2024, bank deposits of RMB35,052,000 (2023:
RMB2,123,000) that are carrying interest at a rate of nil to 1.40%
(2023: nil to 0.34%) per annum are pledged to banks to secure the
payments for rental expenses and renovation fee.

A2024F 128318 » HER=R
0.10% (20234 : 0.25%) 5T &
HERITERARYS,848,000T
(2023%F : AK#11,373,0007T)
ZIRMAFAEH ©

MA2024F12H310 & F
FZEA4 53%FENEHER
45,900,000t ([ ]) (HE
RARE329,948,0007t) B 1K
FiR1T > EREBHIERPEN
HIIEMR o

A2024F 128310 » REA
REFE1.40% (2023F : 2F
0.34%) st EMBITERARE
35,052,0007T (20234 : AR
2,123,0007t) E3KIFFRIT » 1
AEESRAIREBEFTIVER

As at December 31,

M12831H

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT ARET T

Pledged/restricted bank deposits, bank SRR FRFIRITER ~ RIT

balance and cash denominated in various  #&taRIREUT | ZEEHEE

currencies are as follows: fIFHE :
- RMB - AR# 4,130,378 3,773,666
-UsD — %5 2,886,455 5,051,017
- New Taiwan Dollar (“TWD”) — e (HaK)) 455,591 307,924
- HKD BT 267,213 87,462
— Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) — $ronsg T (3T 1) 76,281 64,717
- Macau Pataca (“MOP”) —BM T (MEMxT)) 16,479 24,683
- Japanese Yen (“JPY”) —Hx (BT 9,354 19,819
— New Zealand Dollar (“NZD”) — FrEEsT ([ FEET]) 6,775 —
- Malaysian Ringgit (‘MYR”) - BRAZSE
((ERARLHD 142 9,152
- South Korean Won — BT - 5,071
7,848,668 9,343,511
FEHRSE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BEEMKIE
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the majority are with BSRARERTE  KRZENE
a credit term of 30-60 days. An aged analysis of the Group’s trade EHIE30Z60HA © MIREHIK -
payables, as at the end of the reporting period, based on the EREZAHNEAREE S EIR
invoice date, is as follows: THRERER DML T -

As at December 31,

#12H831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BFT AR®ETT

Within 60 days 60H A 1,685,304 1,784,199
61 to 180 days 61£180H 79,748 49,292
More than 181 days 181 B Lt 31,310 25,947
1,796,362 1,859,438

28. OTHER PAYABLES 28. HitFESTFIE

As at December 31,

#®12H831H
2024 2023
2024 4 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Staff costs payable BT RAENRE 1,691,335 1,749,831
Other taxes payables HAth B8 185,341 205,765
Renovation fee payables R85 157,043 83,905
Deposits from suppliers HERERE 67,266 25,761
Others Hith 145,201 68,969

2,246,186 2,134,231
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29. LONG TERM BONDS

The carrying amounts of long term bonds are repayable:

29.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

REES

RHEBHFENRUTHREZMNIRE
1 :

As at December 31,

n12A31H
2024 2023
2024 ¢ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETT ARET T
Within one year —FRw 45,308 44,266
Within a period of more than one year but ~ BHIiBE—FETBBME
not exceeding two years 2,027,867 44,464
Within a period of more than two years but BHIBBAMEETBBRE
not exceeding five years - 2,031,603
2,073,175 2,120,333
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : JHERBIEER —F R
under current liabilities FIHAN SR8 45,308 44,266
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FI{EIEFRBIEENEZE 2,027,867 2,076,067

Note:

On January 14, 2021, the Company issued long term bonds (“Bonds”)
in an aggregate principal amount of USD600 million which will mature
on January 14, 2026 with an interest rate of 2.15% per annum (effective
interest rate: 2.29% per annum). The issue price of the Bonds was
99.854% of the principal amount and the gross proceeds, before
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering
expenses, amounted to approximately USD599.1 million. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds for general corporate operating
purposes of the Group.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, part of the Bonds in
an aggregate carrying amount of USD11,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB81,353,000) (2023: USD1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,210,000)) have been repurchased by the Company
from market with a gain of RMB4,405,000 (2023: RMB788,000)
recognized in the profit and loss.

As at December 31, 2024, the principal amount of the Bonds remained
outstanding was USD285,480,000 (2023: USD296,980,000).

MEE

M2021F1 B148 » NARBITAESHE
FEAGOEBETINREIES (B&%))
(#2026 1 B14 B EIH) - IRER=
2.15% (BREFRIZE : 2.29%) 5t E o &
HF2BTEAEARNSEEEM9.854% -
MINBREHERN - FeR e
TR S RIEAEEN AL 1HEE
JC o R A REMFEREFEANEE
B —ReELERE -

HZE2024F12831BLLEFEE » AR
AMMIGERREAEAS11,500,000
EnT (HERYAKYS1,353,0007T)
(20234 : 1,000,000 7T (HHERBA
R#7,210,0007t)) B2 ES - &
AER#4,405,0007T (20235 : AR
788,000 ) RIBIHERR ©

A2024F128310  BREENE
5784 #285,480,000 % T (20234 :
296,980,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. fHE&E

As at December 31,

#®12H831H
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Lease liabilities payable: ENEEaE
Within one year —F R 888,821 933,093
Within a period of more than one year but AHBiB—FETBBRE

not exceeding two years 793,413 844,932
Within a period of more than two years but AR BRFEEFBBRE

not exceeding five years 1,620,219 1,914,343
Within a period of more than five years REEBRSF 695,069 855,469

3,997,522 4,547,837

Less: Amounts due for settlement within & : JI{ERBIEEZR—FRE

one year shown under current liabilities HEEWNERE 888,821 933,093
Amounts due for settlement after one year FI{EFEREBEB 2R —FEZIH

shown under non-current liabilities EENEE 3,108,701 3,614,744
As at December 31, 2024, the incremental borrowing rates applied M2024%12831H  HEEEHN
to lease liabilities range from 2.44% to 6.25% (2023: 2.63% to BERRAENF2.44%%6.25%
5.88%). (2023%F : 2.63%Z5.88%) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

BANK BORROWINGS 31. SRITE
As at December 31,
R12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBT T
Unsecured and unguaranteed (Note) ORI R EIER (MR 97,549 618,898
Note: MgaE
As at December 31, 2024, the above fixed-rate bank borrowings are FA2024F 128310 » Ll EBRITHE
repayable within one year and carry interest at 1.80% (2023: 2.30% to RAR—FAEE » H1%1.80% (2023
3.01%) per annum. F 1 2.30%%E3.01%) WERRFTE °
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. §4I&E

As at December 31,

®12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Customer loyalty scheme (Note) SEEHETE (MEE) 809,381 725,844
Prepaid cards and issued vouchers EFFREBRTRES 125,102 127,567
Advance from customers EEHEMNR 3,917 5,655

938,400 859,066
Note: Bt

The estimated award credits which can be used in future purchases
and consumptions in the restaurants arising from the customer loyalty
scheme at the end of the reporting period represents the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligation.

RBEHRREER DA EEENMETR
BiED (ARTAREBBYNEE) 5
PTEERFEBENEENRZE -

FERSE
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 32. AXIEE (E)
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognized in TRITEAEFEERNRENEBFTE
the current year are related to brought forward contract liabilities. EHRZNBAEE -
For the year
ended December 31,
B Z12A31HLEE
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTF T ARET T
Customer loyalty scheme gEBSFE 533,858 534,576
Prepaid cards and issued vouchers ENFREETRES 43,039 44,253
Advance from customers EEHEMNR 5,655 2,581
582,552 581,410
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33. B zf+

Pursuant to the board announcements dated on October 8, 2019
and May 20, 2021, the board of directors the Company had
approved, subject to acceptance by the grantees, the grant of
an aggregate of 159,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company to
over 1,500 grantees, including employees, several consultants
of the Company and several directors and chief executives of
the Company and its subsidiaries, mainly to recognize their
contributions in order to incentivize them to remain with the
Group, and to motivate them to strive for the future development
of the Group (the “Share Award Scheme”).

As at December 31, 2024, the vesting conditions (including both
service conditions and performance conditions) of the Share
Award Scheme have not yet been determined by the Company,
and accordingly, no share-based payment transaction has been
accounted for under the Share Award Scheme mentioned above
during the year.

BRGEERERBRAL A
Haidilao International Holding Ltd.

RIEBHIA2019%10 58 H Kk 2021
F520BENESELAE  ALQ
AEEECHEDEB1,500 B &
BRA(BEAQATET - ZHREM
URAQNBRENBLATNZ A
EERESTHAB)REGH
159,000,000 R A A A1 @A (A
BEAEAER)  TEBR MM
BRIUVSBREEEEAER UK
HEREBOINAEE ZRRERE
(TR SEEETE ) -

M2024%F12A318 » KAFE K
BERDRBANEBIRS (2
ERBRE R RBRM) - Bt - F
W I AR IS £ AR 40 SR BT B E
ORI RS -
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Shown in the
consolidated
Number of financial
Par value shares statements
REGEMBERR
BE B HE EZrB
usD RMB’000
e AREFR
Authorized: BE -
At beginning and end of 20235 [ 2024 F
2023 and 2024 ENRER 0.000005 10,000,000,000
Issued: BE#IT:
At beginning and end of 20235 [ 2024 F
2023 and 2024 (Note) EYRER (HizE) 0.000005 5,574,000,000 183
Note:

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the share capital issued included
159,000,000 ordinary shares issued to the Share Award Scheme
trust which was established to hold the shares for the benefit of the
participants of the Share Award Scheme. As the trust acts solely a
custodian for the Company’s shares, the shares held by the trust were
presented as treasury shares in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.

M2024F % 2023F 1231 H » B E1T
BABERTFROERBEGETH
159,000,000 8 ZiBAR » ZIEENAR
MEBFTETSEENANRBFERDM
HREFREEBER QTR
EA - ERFERORAERGZS TS
BERPUETFROZS ©
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

35. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 35. FEHERHEH

As at December 31, 2024, the Group entered into sale agreements
or reached a preliminary agreements with counterparties to
dispose of certain restaurants. The disposals did not meet
the definition of a discontinued operation, and the assets and
liabilities attributable to these restaurants, which are expected
to be sold within twelve months, have been classified as a
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The net proceeds of
disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss
has been recognized.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the restaurants to be

A2024F 128310 » AEBEHEY
FRALHEMBEREX DT HE
DHEETERE HESBEIHFE
DARIEREERNTEE  ZEEE
(FEH#ERT AR RLE) BLE
EREBECIEABELENLE
AR WHREGEUNERRERTPES
2% - HEREBHIEFHEERKE
BREEEEREENEEFE K
It - WEERREEE o

TERFFHENRHEEREE

disposed classified as held for sale are as follows: REEFEZHERNOT :
As at
December 31,
2024
H2024 5
12H31H
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERZE 84,278
Right-of-use assets ERAEERE 65,700
Total assets classified as held for sale PEARBEHENEELEE 149,978
Lease liabilities HeEas 82,784

Total liabilities associated with assets HAYBARELHEEERENAGEERE

classified as held for sale 82,784
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
organized by the relevant local government authorities in the
PRC and other jurisdictions where the Group operates. Certain
employees of the Group eligible for participating in the retirement
schemes are entitled to retirement benefits from the schemes.
The Group is required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes up to the time of retirement of the eligible employees,
excluding those employees who resign before their retirement, at
a percentage that is specified by the local government authorities.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. For
members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee.

The total expense recognized in profit or loss of approximately
RMB1,296,903,000 for the year ended December 31, 2024 (2023:
RMB1,135,123,000), represents contributions paid/payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Group had no forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) in the defined social security contribution schemes
which may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions available
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 to be utilized for such use.

36.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

BINEFIFHE

AEEZRAREEEEXRBNDE
N E B AR B AY AR BE 1 5 BU &P
FIAE A R E TR IRETE] - NE
BREERSMENRGENETE
THEZEZSHENRKER -
REBEAREMBUFHBMRENT
D EZERATEMELER B
ERERETRABILE  TEER
RAABHENEBEET -

FEETAEZRAERTBESES
HE-EREM Bt (B
58 ]) - BEEFTENEEERAR
SEEEDFIER  LHRZFEAE
FNEEEE - BRESF RN
BmME @ AEEZREEHERAL
5% @ &=t EMER - AT FEE
1B & PR FRIR AT o

BE2024F12A31HLEEE » B
BRABERPBAIAEINBARY
1,296,903,000 7T (2023%F : AR
#£1,135,123,0007t) * BAAEEE
STERAREMLERE [ ERZ
LT EMEHIVEER - BE2024F K
2023F 1231 BLLFE  XEH
REFHSRERKGTETEED
WR W HR (BMEEEEBEX
BEREBRREZTE > BE
FREEREBENHR) AIHEEHH
LUBE IR A M RKE - 2024 5F
% 2023512831 B ET AEZ
RAENBHSUETR o
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For the year ended December 31, 2024

HE2024F 12831 BILFE

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

37.

MERPELNERYHR

TREJIFEEREETHELENE
BEBHHE  BRASNIFRESE
B METHELENEERBNA
EEGRERERERPIB/ME
EHRENEBENRENEIARE

activities: ERE
Non-cash movements
¥Re%e
Lease
liabilities
Other derecognized  Dividends
At Gainon  changes on  recognized At
January1,  Financing Interest ~ redemption oflease  termination as  Exchange December 31
2024 cashfiows  accruals  ofbonds liabilities  ofleases  distribution difference 2024
B RER
UPTES #E BERS AERRN  KURD  CRIA Ro02s
1B1R RERE  EHAE mkE  AbEY  AEER  ARMEE  EREE 12R%A
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT  AR¥FR AREFR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR
(Note ) (Note ii) (Note 14)
(M) (ki) (HzH4)
Bank borrowings (Note 31) /7&K (Ki3ks1) 618808  (522,589) 1,239 - - - - - 97549
Longtermbonds (Note 29) B (Hft09) 2120338 (76949) 4,118 (4,405 - - - 0017 2,073,475
Lease liabilties (Note 30) HEAE (WE30) 4547837 (891815 213,345 - 404419 (216,324) - - 3907522
Interest payable EAFAE - [B53) 553 - - - - - -
Dividend payable RS 3805 (6,071,486) - - - - 5995766 75,720 3,805
Other borrowing HftEE 17014 (1695 62) - - - - - -
107867 (16351200 273974 (4405 404479  (216324) 5005766 105707 6,172,051
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Cont’q)

37.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

MERSELNEEYRE)

Non-cash movements

FReE9
Lease
liabilities
Other  derecognized  Dividends
At Gainon changes on recognized At
January 1, Financing Interest ~ redemption oflease  termination as  Exchange December 31
2023 cashflows accruals  of bonds liabiliies ~ ofleases distribution ~ difference 2023
RIEER
H203E & BOEs HESEN  ALER  CRIA 0%
1A RERE AR MhE  AMRE  BERE  HRMRE  EXEE 12A31H
RMBOOO ~ RMB'0O0  RMBO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

AE®TR ARBTR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARMTRL  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note) (Note i (Note 14)
i) (Wi (HH14)
Bank borrowings (Note 31)  S4r1E3K (Hf331) 2,556,242 (1,950,798 14429 - - - - O75) 618,898
Long term bonds (Note 20) &% (H3t20) 2,088,307 6422 3917 (789) - - - 3319 2120333
Lease liabities (Note 30) &S (Kfzk30) 5103601 (880,634 244697 - 6218 (296,045 - - 45478y
Interest payable EAAE - (67,799 87,793 - - - - - -
Dividend payable EfiRe 3805 (553798) - - - - 553798 - 3,805
Other borrowing Hipfez 30,710 (22,602) 94 - - = - = 17014
0881665 (3502047 350742 (83 286218 (296045 553798 34344 7307887
Notes: MIEE -

i The cash flows represent dividends paid, new bank borrowings
raised, repayments of bank borrowings, repayments of lease
liabilities, repayments of other borrowing, redemption of long term
bonds and interest paid.

ii. Other changes of lease liabilities were mainly due to the lease
contracts newly entered into and lease modification made.

. HERBECHRE - HEBEN
RATER - BREBTHER - EHE
HERE EEAGER  BEE
REESRENFIE -

i. HERBENHAGEHIFERARN
A LWEHESHREERERR
:zt& o
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Group had the following

capital commitments:

38. EAKRH

2024 F % 2023F 12831 H » &
SEBUTEAREE

As at December 31,

n12A31H
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥TF T
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition FAUEEYI ¥ - M= KRRE
of property, plant and equipment BRI NER RSB TEIRE
contracted for but not provided in the BENEARRX
consolidated financial statements 660,331 459,565
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 39. e TEREMEKEIE
MANAGEMENT
Categories of the financial instruments S@mIEER
As at December 31,
H12H31H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AR®ET T
Financial assets: ERIEE -
Financial assets at amortized cost REBSBRATTENSREE 11,492,611 12,392,692
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREFABRNERERE 1,157,225 792,178
Financial assets at FVTOCI BARBEFARMEEKRZENE
BEE 323,929 149,853
Financial liabilities: ERLEE
Financial liabilities at amortized cost RESRRATTENERES 4,713,896 5,158,844
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental deposits,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTOCI, security
deposits for other borrowing, other financial assets, pledged/
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
amounts due to related parties, other payables, bank borrowings,
other borrowing, long term bonds and dividend payable. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions in foreign currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The
management manages its currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates and may enter into
foreign currency forward contracts, when necessary, to manage
its foreign exchange exposure.

The loans to foreign operations within the Group that form part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operations are
denominated in USD, other than the functional currency of the
lender.

39.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

EMIARGREREIE (&)

TEHEREERRRBE

FEBNTESHTAGREAER
% BEERHMEBWFE - BRE
BAORIE BARESABENE
MEE RAAEFAHMEZENR
ENEHEE HMERNRE
& HtEemEE CSHER X
RERITER  MRITEHRRE -
B ENFE - BNBBLD R -
H AR - |RITER - EfbfE
;o RPBESREMNKRE - 25€
BMITENFRREEMERE - &
ZETHTAMENRREETS
BB (B E b - R 2R @b & 2 A
BRERE) FERRRREMER
B o AMAIFRE 2S5 AR BUER BN
T -AEEEEEEERERZ
ZRk - AR SEREVE MiEE o

55
SN LR

REBMUIMNET N ETRS » A%
B H L E RSN E R - EEEER
Y EZEINEERBERERER
[E\R - AT REFE S ERFRT ML AMNEE R
HEew  UBSEHIIERR

7 82 B P B R SR B RS 91 S 3
FRE — 2 IS SRR L
XTHE - THARRA BT B
#HHE -
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities, including
intra-group balances with several subsidiaries denominated in

39. TRIAERGREE

wEE (&)

TREREERBRREEK (&)

TS EEE ()

SRR (A

REBMRBEPROINEHELE
BEERERAE (BEUNEHE
MEETHEBARNEERNRF[E

foreign currencies, as at the end of the reporting period are as R WEREEMT ¢
follows:
Assets
BE
As at December 31,
R12831H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARET T
uUsD ES 5,351,266 9,212,153
RMB AR 1,616,174 6,938
HKD BT 498,193 188,337
SGD N 7o 75,245 74,665
JPY HJit 7,247 -
TWD o=y 3,678 -
Great Britain Pound (“GBP”) g (8 ) - 10,486
European Union Registry (‘EUR”) & (M@ l) - 2,424
Liabilities
afs
As at December 31,
MR12H31H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARET T
HKD BT - 595,915
uUsD EN 3,005,424 3,613,086
RMB AR 312,330 415,319
SGD Frhnsg 7o - 30,892
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2023: 5%) decrease in the functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used in the management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2023: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive/negative number below indicates an
increase/decrease in post-tax profit where the functional currency
of relevant group entities weakening 5% (2023: 5%) against
the relevant currency. For a 5% (2023: 5%) strengthen of the
functional currency of relevant group entities against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and other comprehensive income.

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

EMIARGREREIE (&)

TREREERBRREEK (&)
TS EEE ()

SRR (A

BRBEDM

TRFMEEEEERIIEERR
BB SN EEEZ B 5% (20234 : 5%)
B NEBWNSEBE - 5% 5 EE
[ 5T SNES BE SR & 32 O] RE 5 B) T A
HBBELLR - IBES T EERE
EAREZRNIIMETHEERIER - I
Fh5% (20234 : 5% ) MY INKEE R
SHAEREHRNRE - TRIE
g, BEXRTIHHEESEIIEE
AR E M ERES5% (2023 F
5%) BRI BRBEREFIEM R o
EHEEEREENEER LR
EMFAES% (2023F 1 5%) » &
HEMREMEEBEBRRESE
EWERTE -

For the year
ended December 31,
BZE12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
2024 £ 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T
uUsD Ep 116,931 278,446
RMB ARHE 54,013 (20,387)
HKD BT 23,621 (20,431)
SGD ¥ 003 T 3,123 1,721
JPY Bt 301 —
TWD Ak 153 =
GBP %73 - 524
EUR Bt - 121
s
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REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 39. TRTAERGMEREIE (&)

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

For loans to foreign operations that form part of a net investment,
a 5% (2023: 5%) weakening in the functional currency of relevant
group entities against USD, there would be a decrease in other
comprehensive income with the amount of RMB169,452,000
(2023: RMB147,553,000). For a 5% strengthen of the functional
currency of relevant group entities, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the other comprehensive income.

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to pledged/restricted bank deposits (Note 26), fixed-rate bank
balances (Note 26), other financial assets (Note 21), fixed-rate
bank borrowings (Note 31), long term bonds (Note 29) and lease
liabilities (Note 30). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances (Note 26)
and other borrowing which carry prevailing market interests.
The management of the Group manages the interest rate risk
by maintaining a balanced portfolio of fixed rate and floating
rate bank borrowings, other borrowing, long term bonds and
bank balances. The Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)
Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented as
the management consider the sensitivity on interest rate risk
on variable-rate bank balances, bank borrowings and other
borrowing is insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position (including rental
deposits, security deposits for other borrowing, trade receivables,
other receivables, other financial assets, amounts due from related
parties, pledged/restricted bank deposits and bank balances).

The management of the Group considers majority of pledged/
restricted bank deposits and bank balances that are deposited
with state-owned banks or financial institutions with high credit
rating to be low credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade
receivables in connection with bills settled through payment
platforms such as UnionPay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also with
high credit rating. The management of the Group considers the
majority of pledged/restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
trade receivables are short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers as
at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and accordingly, no ECL was
recognized as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

In determining the ECL for other financial assets, the management
of the Group considers the issuers of other financial assets are
with high credit rating and no past due history, therefore the
loss rates of other financial assets are estimated to be low, and
accordingly, no ECL was recognized in respect of other financial
assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

39.
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REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont’d)

In determining the ECL for amounts due from related parties, the
management of the Group has made periodic assessments as
well as individual assessment on recoverability based on historical
settlement records and adjusts for forward-looking information. In
view of the strong financial capability of these related parties and
considered the future prospects of the industry in which these
related parties operate, the management of the Group does not
consider there is a risk of default and does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these related parties, therefore the loss
rates of amounts due from related parties are estimated to be
low, and accordingly, no expected credit loss was recognized in
respect of the amounts due from related parties as at December
31, 2024 and 2023.

In determining the ECL for other receivables and security deposits
for other borrowing, the management of the Group has taken into
account the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example the Group has considered
the consistently low historical default rate and the strong financial
capability of the debtor of other receivables and security deposits
for other borrowing, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding other receivables and security deposits for
other borrowing is insignificant. The management of the Group
has assessed that other receivables and security deposits for
other borrowing have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no expected credit loss has been recognized in respect
of the other receivables and security deposits for other borrowing
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont’d)

As the management of the Group decided to close certain
restaurants permanently during the year ended December
31, 2024 and 2023, the Directors assessed the relevant rental
deposits of these restaurant to be irrecoverable after considering
relevant factors such as the corresponding contractual terms or
mutually agreed arrangements. Expected credit risk loss on rental
deposits has been recognized as disclosed in Note 8.

Except as described above, there has been no material change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
throughout the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the management of the
Group monitors and maintains a reasonable level of cash and
cash equivalents which is deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on the cash generated
from operating activities as the main source of liquidity. For
the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of RMB7,634,465,000 (2023:
RMB9,000,350,000). As at December 31, 2024, the Group
also had unused banking facilities of RMB2,623 million (2023:
RMB2,240 million).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group could be required to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 39.
MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

EMIARGREREIE (&)

TREREERBRREEK (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) TEETEE (1
TREFFERBREREALE ° fid

FERZHAE  REBLEIR
& RIOFIESE o

The table includes both interests and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest rates are floating, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Over2 Over 1

Weighted  Ondemand  months but year but Total
average  or within 2 within within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months 1 year 2years 2years  cash flows amount
RER
g REX @RBWER @B-%E RENE
THRE  GWERN  BOR-F YRmE  BERE ke REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR  ARETR AR®EFr  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
As at December 31, 2024 R2024%12R31H
Financial liabilities EMER
Trade payables BSEfE - 1,796,362 - - - 1,796,362 1,796,362
Other payables EAEEE - 67,266 302,244 - - 369,510 369,510
Bank borrowings BTES 1.80% - 98,000 - - 98,000 97,549
Long term bonds REES 2.29% 22,061 22,061 2,074,205 - 18321 2013175
Amounts due to related parties EfEsATE - 373,495 - - - 373,495 373,495
Dividend payable EfRE - 3,805 - - - 3,805 3,805
Subtotal gt - 2,262,909 422305 2,074,205 - 4759499 4713896
Lease liabilities HEER 4.65% 156,893 780,756 910617 2590145 4,438,411 3,997,522
Total @3 2419882 1,208,061 2984822 259,145 9197910 8,711,418
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK

40.

MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidlity risk (Cont’d)

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

39. GMTARGREREIE (&)

TREREERBRREEK (&)

MEEL/EE (B

QOver2 QOver 1
Weighted ~ Ondemand  months but year but Total
average  orwithin2 within within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months 1 year 2 years 2years  cashflows amount
RER
g REX HEWER EE-FE Rehe
THE  AWEAR  BAR-F ORRE  BERF #E RAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTn ARMTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
As at December 31, 2023 R2023%12A310
Financal liabilties fHaR
Trade payables ESE[TE - 1,859,438 - - - 1859438 1859438
Other payables HAhERZE - 25,761 152,874 - - 178,635 17863
Bank borrowings RITEN 2.64% 2,726 623,353 - - 626,079 618,898
Other borrowing Eftfaz 462% 5,851 11,454 = = 17,305 17,014
Long term bonds RHES 2.29% 22,612 22,612 45204 2126032 2216480 2,120,333
Amounts due to related parties EfEmA7E = 360,721 = = = 360,721 360,721
Dividend payable EfRE - 3,805 - - - 3,805 3,805
Subtotal Nt 2,280,914 810,293 45204 2126032 5262463 5158844
Lease liabilities HEsE 4.72% 163,501 814,749 938599 3323599 5240448 4547837
Total ) 2444415 1,625,042 983823 5449631 10502911 9,706,681

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorized (levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair value hierarchy as at December 31, 2024

40. EMTEMARERE (&)

BERDIAEFEDEREE
FEENTEE (AMER)H
Bz (ARERER) 8RN
WABISFTET 2 E S
—RFBENRERN &

B=RMRIAETETIERNIE
ERTEEHSBBENEER
SERARE (TABREA
BB MEESEFETRE

g

R2024F12831 A A REER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—4 -t Ek @at
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Financial assets at FVTPL &/ Bt \E =M
EREE
Private fund investment MEESKRE - 37,445 1,096,885 1,134,330
Unquoted equity shares mRERRRD - - 13,633 13,633
Debt instruments EHIA 7,322 - - 7,322
Foreign currency forward IMERHE K
contracts - 1,940 - 1,940
Total st 7,322 39,385 1,110,518 1,157,225
Financial assets at FVTOCl AR EFANEMEE
WHENEMEE 323,929 - - 323,929
Fair value hierarchy as at December 31, 2023 R2023F12 831 A A RESH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B =R Fah
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL &/ Bt \B M
EREE
Unquoted equity shares mREERRD - - 13,433 13,433
Private fund investment NEESRKRE - 35,149 729,442 764,591
Debt instruments BEXIA 14,154 = = 14,154
Total st 14,154 35,149 742,875 792,178
Financial assets at FVTOCI AL EFAEMEE
KHENEMEE 149,853 - - 149,853
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INSTRUMENTS (Cont’a)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

40. EMTEMARERE (&)

RESEUEERAABTENE

fair value on a recurring basis EEERMEENAR
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial assets December 31, hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s)
cHEE R12AMNBMARE AREER EEHERARBASIR EXTABZBASR
2024 2023
20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR
Financial assets at FVTOCI 323,929 149,853 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
an active market
BOfET AR2ERES N £-% WEBH SRRz EAE TEH
LRERE
Financial assets at FVTPL:
BRARBSABRNER
BE:
Private fund investment 1,096,885 729,442  Level 3 Asset-based approach Net value of the underlying
investments, adjusted by related
fees (Note i)
WEESRE =R BREREZ HRREFE  SHEERRZE (1
i)
Private fund investment 37,445 35,149  Level 2 Redemption value quoted by N/A
financial institutions
HEESRE £ SRRBRBEERE TEH
Unquoted equity Shares 13,633 13,433 Level 3 Market approach Comparable companies and
liquidity risk discount
ERERERND F= iz AELBARRABESARAER
Debt instruments 7,322 14,154  Level1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
an active market
BHIA - RERTSRERZEANE TER
Foreign currency forward 1,940 - Level2 Markets value quoted by N/A
contracts banks
IMEEBEH a1 RITPRzmEEE TEA
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’a)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd)

Notes:

i The fair value of private fund investments is calculated according
to asset-based approach, the significant unobservable input is the
net assets value of the underlying investments. The higher the net
assets value of the underlying investments, the higher the fair value
of private fund investments will be.

ii.. There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during
the current year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurements

The following table represents the reconciliation of Level 3 fair

40. EMTEMARERE (&)

RESEUHEERAABTENE
SETMEENANE (F

Bt

AEESRENDARERREE

BEEAEFE  EXTAEEHA

BEAHBERENEERE -
BERENEEFEMES  LEER
ERENDAERES °

FE=RETEBHIR

FEERNFE - BoREF=
2 R A o

TRIBEE2024FE K 2023F 12

value measurements throughout the years ended December 31, BA3I1ALEFEE=ZHAABETEN
2024 and 2023: iR :
Financial
Unquoted products
equity issued Private fund
shares by banks investment Total
HRITEITH
RRERZERR SRER NEELKRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At January 1, 2023 R2023F1 A1H 13,209 10,000 365,356 388,565
Purchase BE - = 550,000 550,000
Redemption B - (27,595) (218,227) (245,822)
Net gain Flha - 17,595 32,313 49,908
Exchange adjustments B 7 A% 224 - - 224
At December 31, 2023 M2023F12A31H 13,433 - 729,442 742,875
Purchase BE - - 303,594 303,594
Net gain g - - 63,849 63,849
Exchange adjustments EHRZ 200 - - 200
At December 31, 2024 M2024%12A31H 13,633 - 1,096,885 1,110,518
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurements (Cont’d)

The total gains or losses for the year included RMB63,849,000
unrealized gain relating to financial assets that are at level
3 fair value measurement as at December 31, 2024 (2023:
RMB29,606,000). Such fair value gains are included in “other
gains and losses”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

The fair value of the long term bonds was USD275,179,000
(equivalent to RMB1,978,099,000) (2023: USD272,233,000
(equivalent to RMB1,928,142,000)) which was classified as Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy based on quoted prices in active
markets and its carrying amount amounted to USD288,406,000
(equivalent to RMB2,073,175,000) as at December 31, 2024 (2023:
USD299,368,000 (equivalent to RMB2,120,333,000)).

The management considers that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

40.
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HZE2024F12831BILFE

EMITEMARERE (&)

BE=RETEYIR (F)
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BERZBEWE ARE63,849,000
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JU) e ZEAAREBEEEHN HAilk
wmREE] -
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NEEETHEERTHEEND
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For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

M.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 31, other
borrowing, lease liabilities disclosed in Note 30, long term bonds
disclosed in Note 29, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the management of the Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new shares issues as well as raising,
extension and early repayment of borrowings.
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42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A)

Related party transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

42. FRABEFHHE

(A)

During the year, the Group has entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

Purchase of goods/services from related parties

Ly

REBNFNE RIS ERK

THRS :

BEEBSBmD.R%

For the year ended
December 31,
B Z12A31HILEE

Relationships Nature of transaction 2024 2023
aRER RH5HE 2024 F 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T AR®T T
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of food ingredients
Controlling Shareholders 1,446,923 2,419,994
2R IR R FI VBN = BERM
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of condiment products
Controlling Shareholders and instant hot pot products 1,761,447 1,828,983
2R R SR I R EE B 8 B BERARRRNRABER
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of storage services
Controlling Shareholders 346,708 343,229
%2 IR IR SR 22 I O BB X BERRRE
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of transportation
Controlling Shareholders services 243,683 222,850
R RZEH R EE A R B BB RS
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of human resource
Controlling Shareholders consulting services 123,297 123,550
2 IR IR SR AZ I AV B R O B BE A DB RBEHARE
An associate invested by the Group  Purchase of instant hot pot
products 79,432 69,523
—BAEERENBE QT BEANRABER
An associate invested by the Purchase of property, plant and
Controlling Shareholders equipment 19,137 -
—EZERRRIRENHE DT BEYX  BERRE
Associates invested by the Purchase of software services
Controlling Shareholders 9,657 10,432
ERBRRIRENEE QT BEEH RS
Related companies controlled by the Purchase of management
Controlling Shareholders services 1,796 5,031
R R R R BEEERE
A related company controlled by the Purchase of property
Controlling Shareholders management services 382 373
—EERRERZEGNERE QR BEYEEERE
FERSE
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REMBRMRME
For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 42,

(A) Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Purchase of goods/services from related parties (Cont’d)

BABE AR ()

(A BBEXRZ (&

BEBEB L ED. R (&)

For the year ended
December 31,
HE12A31HLEE

Relationships Nature of transaction 2024 2023
R R5ME 2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
A joint venture invested by the Group Purchase of property, plant and
equipment - 30,779
—BAREERENESELE BEWXE  BEKRRKRE
Associates invested by the Purchase of software
Controlling Shareholders - 6,216
ERBRRIRENBE DT BERMY
A joint venture invested by the Group Purchase of equipment
maintenance services - 1,044
—RAEERENEGEDLE B ERIBUHEEIRT
A joint venture invested by the Group Purchase of patent - 262
—BAEERENESELHE BEEAR
Income from related parties XK E BB A

For the year ended
December 31,
HZ12A31HLEE

Relationships Nature of transaction 2024 2023
FEREA X5HE 2024 % 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Related companies controlled by the Sales of devices
Controlling Shareholders 3,884 3,025
P2 IR R SR I A BB e 8 B HERB
Related companies controlled by the Provision of network and other
Controlling Shareholders management services 2,010 16
ERR RGBS AT REMASRAMERRY
Related companies controlled by the Provision of logistics services
Controlling Shareholders 749 =

2 IR AR SRAZ I B9 BR R 2 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 42. FABEHIE ()
(A) Related party transactions (Cont’d) (A BEAIRZ (&)
Income from related parties (Cont’d) KEBEHE KA (&)
The Group is licensed by Sichuan Haidilao Catering Co., AEEEN) ERBERKRD
Ltd., a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, BRAR (ERBRREZEHHNA
to use the trademark of “Haidilao (#8/&#%)” and the WeChat A REZZETETAES
public account named “JBE# X #8” on a royalty-free basis. HEEFAIBRE IBERMY

EABEBREAE]

The Group owns the proprietary rights to the formulas of rEEREERREEHER
Haidilao Customized Products (the “Condiments Formulae”) BA (THAR@ES ] WA
and licenses the Condiments Formulae to Yihai International o TERREHAEEREAR
Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries (companies controlled EFUEESEBREZERERA
by the Controlling Shareholders) and its contracted B HE AR (ERRRE
manufacturers to use for production on a royalty-free basis. HIHNAE) REEHNEERE
A RE S ETERE
(B) Related party balances (B) PRAEER&EER
Amounts due from related parties: JEW BT T 70 E -

As at December 31,

#12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Trade nature: RHME
Prepayments for purchase of goods to o) 22 AR AR SR I AV BA B A |

related companies controlled by the EHMEBE SR NFIE

Controlling Shareholders 273,001 397,245
Rental deposit from a related 3R B 122 IR B R 4% i 9 A

company controlled by the ARNHEEZRS

Controlling Shareholders 83 30
Trade receivables from related 3R B 4 PR AR R A o ) R

companies controlled by the NEINE 5 BINFIE

Controlling Shareholders 1,311 357
Total et 274,395 397,632

EERE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 42. FABKHHE (&)

(B) Related party balances (Cont’d)

Amounts due to related parties:

(B) FABES ek (A7)
(BB 550

As at December 31,

#»12B831H
2024 2023
2024 4 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Trade nature (Note): RHME (M) :
Related companies controlled by the 2 1% AR SR A2 ) (Y BB B 8 |

Controlling Shareholders 354,597 347,656
An associate invested by the Group —EAREERENWEEZ AR 16,626 7,690
Associates invested by the Controlling TR RIRENEE AR

Shareholders 2,272 5,375
Total st 373,495 360,721
Note: it

Amounts due to related parties arising from the purchase of food
ingredients, condiment products, instant hot pot products, software
maintenance services, storage services, transportation services, human
resource consulting services, etc., were with a credit term of 30-60 days.
As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the amounts were aged within 30-60
days from the invoice date.

BRGEERERBRAL A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 42. FABEFIHE (&)
(C) Remuneration of key management personnel of the (C) AEBXEEEEASHMH
Group

For the year ended
December 31,
B Z12A31HLEE

2024 2023
2024 4 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR®ETT

Directors’ fee EEWS 5,358 276
Short term employee benefits EHETER 30,765 21,460
Performance related bonuses FRIBILAL 125,193 71,437
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKBRIFT SRR 259 193
161,575 93,366
(D) Lease (D) #HE
Recognition of right-of-use assets: R ETIEEE -

For the year ended
December 31,
BZE12A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 4 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Related companies controlled by the % B AR SR 12 AV B B 8 )
Controlling Shareholders 3,453 3,450
The shareholders of the Company RATRE - 1,194

3,453 4,644

FERSE
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FEMKmRMET
For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F 12831 BILEE
42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
(D) Lease (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities:

(D)

42. FBTTIE (&)

HE (&

HEERE -

As at December 31,

®12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
The shareholders of the Company ARATRE - 1,239
Depreciation on right-of-use assets: L EITE -

For the year ended
December 31,
B Z12A31HLEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
Related companies controlled by the %A% AR BRI ) (U BB B N A

Controlling Shareholders 3,655 3,652
The shareholders of the Company RARRE 599 595
Total et 4,254 4,247

Interest expenses of lease liabilities: HEBENFIEM: -

For the year ended
December 31,
BE=12A31HLLEE

2024 2023
20244 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T

Related companies controlled by the 22 B B BR A% I Y BE B X B
Controlling Shareholders 126 129
The shareholders of the Company BATRER 47 45
Total st 173 174

BRGEERERBRAL A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43. A FMIB A RS

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the AATEERBEFENHBELT

Company are set out below: FEESIMT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/  interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
A L 2&TR
FS, 32 3t B BRLERRA i /NGilEEs 2o
WBLRERE REEEXRME AmEx AR TR TEXRH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20244 2023F
12A31H 12A31H
% %

Newpai Ltd. The BVI Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment
(Note i) RBERUME USD1 holding
(=) EERRA REER

1£7

Hai Di Lao Holdings Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment

3K SGD3,000,000 holding
EERRE REZR
3,000,000 i3 7T
(LB BRERBRAT  The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
H RMB86,113,598 operation
AR#86,113,598 7T

mJIIFREREEERAT  The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
(Note ii) H SGD621,205,683 operation
(B atii) EHEMER BELE

621,205,683 5T 13% 7T
BEHABRAERAT Taiwan Ordinary share capital 100 100 Restaurant
=)= TWD115,000,000 operation
115,000,000% &%

FERSE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43. AR EIMIB A RRFHE (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
EE A8 ST B E#ITR
B, ST 3t B HRLERBRA/ KNRRERRRE
) YNGR REIZERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
12A31H 12A318
% %
SINGAPORE HAI DI LAO Singapore Ordinary share capital 100 100 Restaurant
CATERING PTE. LTD. 3K SGD3,000,000 operation
EERRA BELE
3,000,000 3% 7t
HAI DI LAO HONGKONG Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Restaurant
COMPANY LIMITED BE HKD1,000,000 operation
BERBEBERAR EBERRA BELE
1,000,000/ 7T
LEBRESZERAF The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Trading
(Note i) HE SGD2,000,000 g%
(i) EHEMER
2,000,000 403 7T
EMSEBERERERAT  The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
H RMB10,000,000 operation
AEK#10,000,0007T
FEBRERERERAR  The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
H RMB18,000,000 operation
AR#18,000,0007T
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e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

HZE2024F12A31BILEE

43. FRRIMEA RS (E)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
AMA e BBITR
FS 3L B HRLERBRA/ KNRRERRRE
i) UNCIEA REIZERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023
12A31H 12A318
% %
TESEEENER The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
BREEAH HE RMB16,000,000 operation
AK#16,000,0007T
MNERESRER AR The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
FE RMB5,100,000 operation
AR#5,100,0007T
REBRERERERAT  ThePRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
HEl RMB11,200,000 operation
AEK#11,200,0007T
FITEEEEN The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
BRERAH H RMB3,800,000 operation
EHEMER BERE
AK#3,800,0007T
BIRE (LR B The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
EBERAF 3 RMB325,000,000 operation
EHEMER EERE
AR#325,000,0007
EERE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43. AR EIMIB A RRFHE (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
EE A8 ST B 2#TR
FS 3L B HRLERBRA/ KNRRERRRE
i) UNCIEA REIZERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023
12A31H 12A318
% %
il e R EN The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
ERBRAH HE RMB10,000,000 operation
AK#10,000,0007T
XEBEHER The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
EEARAT R RMB100,000,000 operation
AK®100,000,0007T
BEXEEQER The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Delivery
(L8 BRAT HE RMB1,000,000 business
EHEMER NEEH
AK#1,000,0007C
MR EEERZEATRART The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Property investment
(Note ii) H RMB1,100,000,000 management
R &R and consulting
AK#1,100,000,0007 business
NEREER
SEE) Y
mEzEESERAE The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Trading
HE RMB10,000,000 g5
EHEMER
AEK#10,000,0007T
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e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12831BILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43. AR EIMIB A RS (F)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
EE A8 ST B 2#TR
FS 3L B HRLERBRA/ KNRRERRRE
i) UNCIEA REIZERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023
12A31H 12A318
% %
LBERRENHEERAT  ThePRC Registered capital N/A N/A Technology
(Note v) HE RMB10,000,000 TER TER service
(Ktztv) A& R R
AK#10,000,0007T
WB(EBRRERLF The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Trading
FE RMB80,000,000 g%
EHEMER
AR#80,000,0007T
m)IIH R HEERER The PRC Registered capital 75 75 Restaurant
BRAF HE RMB25,000,000 operation
A& A EELE
AR#25,000,0007
TRESRENHERAT  The PRC Registered capital 95 95 Technology
HE RMB10,000,000 service
&R PR
AEK#10,000,0007T
)l txERE The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Restaurant
BABRAT H RMB?1,000,000 operation
EHEMER EERE
AK#1,000,0007T
EERE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43. AR EIMIB A RRFHE (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
EE A8 ST B E#ITR
B, ST 3t B HRLERBRA/ KRR HER
) YNGR REEERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
12A31H 12A318
% %
LEHEEREEBRAR  ThePRC Paid registered capital 80 80 Restaurant
H RMB20,000,000 operation
AK#20,000,0007T
Macau Haidilao Macau Ordinary share capital 100 100 Restaurant
Restaurant Limited il MOP100,000 operation
BPIBESER—ABRAR EBERRA EELE
100,0002F 7T
HDL Smart Technology Ltd. ~ The BVI Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment
RBRUEE USD1 holding
BEBERRA REER
1%
JAPAN HALLTD. Japan Ordinary share capital 100 100 Hotel
A JYP50,000,000 operation
HEERRA BERe
50,000,000 7t
LTREHEEREEBRAR  ThePRC Registered capital 70 80 Restaurant
H RMB10,000,000 operation
AK#10,000,0007T
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HE2024F12A31BILFE

43. FRRIMEA RS (E)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Issued and fully paid Proportion ownership
and principal ordinary share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiaries place of business registered capital  held by the Company as at Principal activities
EE A8 ST B B#ITR
FS 3L B HRLERBRA/ KNRRERRRE
i) UNCIEA REIZERME AMmER LR RS TEXH
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
20245 2023
12A31H 12A318
% %

M)A EREEAERAT  The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Investment
(Note ii) FE RMB160,000,000 holding
(i) A& REER

AE#160,000,0007T
BEMNEFEREEBRAR  ThePRC Registered capital 75 75 Restaurant
HE RMB25,000,000 operation
AR#25,000,0007T

BEHIE(LE)EEERAA  The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Trading
(Note i) HE SGD100,000 g%
(i) EHEMER

100,000 3% 7T
ARGHEENEREBRAT  ThePRC Registered capital 70.5 N/A Restaurant
HE RMB32,000,000 A operation
AK#32,000,0007T
FERSE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

This subsidiary is directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises with limited
liability established in the PRC. Other subsidiaries established in the
PRC are wholly domestic owned companies.

The place of operation of all these subsidiaries are the same as their
established place except for SINGAPORE HAI DI LAO CATERING
PTE. LTD., which was established in Singapore but operated in
Taiwan.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

On November 1, 2019, the Company acquired 100% equity interest
of EBEFRMAAEBHE AR AT at nil consideration through a series
of contractual arrangements which are designed to provide the
Company with the right and power to control over and the right
to enjoy the economic benefits generated by EEERAERIHE
FRA . The assets and liabilities of LEERAZR AR LT at
acquisition date is insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

For the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024512A31BILLEE
44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 44. AR FREHBRRR

As at December 31,

n12H31H
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Non-current Assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTEB R B RIRE 1,711,831 1,711,831
Other financial assets HihemEE 852,284 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries W B A R FIE - 2,686,178
2,564,115 4,398,009
Current Assets REEE
Trade and other receivables and BH REMEWRFIER
prepayments A RIE 11,779 1,025
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL PN - 917,874
Dividend receivable FEUS AR 2. - 142,066
Other financial assets Hihem&EE 460,815 1,162,426
Bank balances and cash RITESRRRSE 1,905,669 3,796,575
2,378,263 6,019,966
Total Assets LEMT 4,942,378 10,417,975
Current Liabilities REAE
Long term bonds REES 45,308 44,266
Amounts due to subsidiaries M B A BFE 88,926 =
Trade payables B S ESFIE 1,034 330
135,268 44,596
Net Current Assets MEEEFE 2,242,995 5,975,370
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities EEBERRBERE 4,807,110 10,373,379
Non-current liability EREERE
Long term bonds REIES 2,027,867 2,076,067
2,027,867 2,076,067
Net Assets EEFE 2,779,243 8,297,312
Capital and Reserves BARRHE
Share capital ik 183 183
Reserves & 2,779,060 8,297,129
Total Equity R 2,779,243 8,297,312
FEHE
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e M RR MR

For the year ended December 31, 2024
BZE2024F12A31AILLFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 44. ERRAHBRA T (F)

(Cont’d)
Reserves e
Share Retained
premium profits Total
B iEE R BT Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ETT AR®TT
As at January 1, 2023 #2023F181H 5,613,428 1,733,742 7,347,170
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNREE
income for the year WS4 5E - 1,520,438 1,520,438
Dividends recognized as distribution B 5D TKARE (570,479) - (670,479)
As at December 31, 2023 M2023F12A31H 5,042,949 3,254,180 8,297,129
Profit and total comprehensive FRBEAEEE
income for the year Un 54858 - 653,751 653,751
Dividends recognized as distribution B EDIKARE (4,180,711) (1,991,109) (6,171,820)
As at December 31, 2024 202412 A31H 862,238 1,916,822 2,779,060
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